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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888-908-6609

TDD ACCESS: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

HELEN E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON

DIRECTOR

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) to exercise a contract renewal option with
Catholic Medical Center (VC #177240), 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102, for the
provision oflnpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical services, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,900,000.00 from $2,850,000.00 to $4,750,000.00 and extending the completion date from June 30,
2023 to June 30, 2025 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval for the period
beginning July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025. The original contract was approved by Governor and
Executive Council on June 24, 2020, Item #94. 100% General funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-
82340000-101-500729 for Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Catholic Medical Center Original Contract

Account Description FY 2021-2023 FY2024 FV202S Total

02-46-46-465010-82340000-101-500729 Medical-Dental $2,850,000.00 - - $2,850,000.00

Amendment Agreement #1

Account Description FY 2021-2023 Fy2024 FY2025 Total

02-46-46^65010-82340000-101 -500729 Medical-Dental - $950,000.00 $950,000.00 $1,900,000.00

Total Contract Amount $2,850,000.00 $950,000.00 5950,000.00 $4,750,000.00

EXPLANATION

This Amendment is for the provision of Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical services for the residents

Promoting Public Safety with Respect, Professionalism, Dedication and Courage as One Team

Page 1 of2



of the Concord area consisting of the NH Slate Prison for Men (NHSP-M), Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU),
Residential Treatment Unit (RTU), NH Correctional Facility for Women (NHCF-W), and the NH
Department of Corrections Transitional Housing Units.

The NHDOC utilizes hospital services for short-term medical treatment for residents having an acute illness
or injury that is beyond the scope of primary care services provided by the medical staff within the prison
facility. These services include inpatient surgery, medical services, and outpatient procedures such as
ambulatory surgery, diagnostic and emergency services.

Respectfully Submitted,

Hanks

Commissioner

Promoting Public Safety with Respect, Professionalism, Dedication and Courage as One Team
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888-908-6609

TDD ACCESS: 1.800.73S-2964

wwwjih.cov^doc

HEI£N E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON

DIRECTOR

AMENDMENT AGREEMENT # I

This amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE, DEPAR™ENT OF CORRECTIONS rNfflXKr or "State" or "Dcpartiiicm"), and

Catholic Medical Center, P*Contractoi**^. a New Hampshire Nonprofit Cciporation with a place ofbusiness
at 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102.

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Contract ("Agreement 2020-94") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 24,2020, Item #94 with an effective date of July 1,2020, the Contractor agreed
to perfonn Inpatient &. Gu^tient Hospital/Medicai services based ̂ >on the tenns and conditions ̂)ecified
in the original Agreemeot as amended and in consideration of certain sums qiedfied; and

WHEREAS, the State and Contractor have agreed to make dianges to the completion dale, price
limitation and Scope of Services of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 17 of the Agreement and Scope of
Services,. Exhibit B, Paragraph 2.. Perfonnance Period, the State may extend contracted services for one
(1) additional period of up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory Contractor perfonnance,
Commissioner approval, continued appropriation and Governor and Executive Council (G&C) approval
only by an instrument in writing sign^ by the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the Agreement for two (2) additional years and increase
the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the original Agreement and set forth hereto, the parties hereto agree as follow:

To amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read: "June 30,2025".
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: "$4,750,000.00" a total

increase of $1,900,000.00.

3. Scope of Services, Exhibit B, Section 1, Purpose, adopt the amendmenl(s) to RSA 623-C:2
which came into effect July 1,2015.

4. Scope of Services, Exhibit B, Section 2., Perfonnance Period, to read:

"Amendment #1 exercises the option to renew for one (1) additional period of up to two (2)
years and shall become effective upon Governor and Executive Council for the period of July
1,2023 through June 30,2025 with the approval of die Commissioner of the NH D^rartment
of Corrections (NHDOC) and upon Governor and Executive Coimdl (G&C) approval."

5. That all other provisions ofthe original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect

PiDraottog Public Sare^ wiih Respca, Prolissiooaltsm, Oediestioo asd Coetagc as One Team



SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT AGREEMENT #1 TO: Inpatient & Outpatient
Hospital/Medical services 2020-94 ("Agreement")-

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF

CORRECTIONS

By:
Name: Hanks

Title: Commissioner

Date; J?//ul'ZirZ,'^

Catholic Medi

By:
: A1^3?/alker

Title: President

Date: 3>

STATE OF

COUNTY OF M-l) t(. 5 ̂  O /" U i*.

On this day of 20 . before me, Lcc. Qvlo^, the undersigned officer,
petsonally appeared Mmown to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose
name is signed above and acknowledged that be/she executed this document in the capacity indented above.

In witness thereof^ I hereto set my hand and official seal.

>tary PublipJustioe of th<Notary Publi(9lu3tioe of the Peaee ■ .lee M. COLON
NOTARY PUBUC

state of New Hampshire
My CoJiifnisSioD Expires: Mx/ commission Btpires

/s^ ChrUH^^ker
Approval by Nif. AttoApproval by Nil. Attorney General
(Form, Substance and Execution)

Approved by the N.H. Govemor and Executive Coundl

4/27/23

Date

Date

pRifflotina Public Safety with Respect, Pforessbnaltsm, Oedicsiton and Oranee as One Team



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Matthew Kfoury, do hereby certify that:

1. 1 am the duly elected Secretary of Catholic Medical Center, a New Hampshire voluntary
corporation ("CMC");

2. Alexander J. Walker, is the duly elected President & CEO of CMC;

3. The attached Exhibit A is a true copy of resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Trustees of CMC on January 26,2023;

4. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and
effect as of the '1>I day of 2023 and this authority remains valid
for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority; and

5. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this
certificate as evidence fit)m CMC that I am the Secretary of CMC and that Mr. Walker
has the authority to bind CMC. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of
Mr. Walker or myself to bind CMC in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.

I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of CMC diis day of 2023.

Matthe retary



:0,VHOL'C M£DICAl.CCNtBn

i. fam-'the duly'efected Secretai^ bf Gatjiyic M^ical'C^ aiNeW'Hampshire voluritariY
■ borpbration (''CMC');- ; > v . • ■

■2-.- "nie.Certlficate of Authority executed by me bh Janua»y 31/2023 and'Exhlbit A signatories have,
not been rescinded and are stidin full force and effect. - . ■ '

I haye'hereuntb set my hand as the Secretary^bfiGMG this " day of/''2iV^-"" 2023.:

.j • .

.Matthew- Kfourv,;Secretaryj.

■■
■aI iGO'McGregor Stre^ Marich^ter:Nfi;63lb2-377.0, 603.668:3545 ■ CathoflcMed'idalCcnter.cirg' '

■  ' ■ , ?■ 'v P ■ ; , , , •
• ,r-

•?«



Exhibit A

RESOLUTIONS

OF THE

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

OF CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER ("CMC")

Authorizing CMC to enter into Contracts with the State of New Hampshire

January 26,2023

RESOLVED:

RESOLVED:

That CMC be authorize to enter into contracts, amendments, renewals,
revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of"New Hampshire,
including any of its agencies or departments.

That Alexander J. Walker, as President & CEO of CMC, is hereby
authorized on behalf of CMC to enter into contracts with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he may deem
necessary, desirable, or appropriate.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary ofState of (be State of New Hampshite, do hereby certify that CATHOLIC MEDICAL

CENTER b a New Hampshire NoqaoHt Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 07,1974.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and b in good standing as

far as (hb office b coitcenied.

Business ID: 62116

Certificale Number. 0004896742

%

%
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause Ui be afRxed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

thb20lhd8yof April AJ).2020.

WllUaro M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

FOcd

Due Ftkd 12/1SQ020

Eflolhre D«tc 12/IS/2020

B«taiies ID: GI16

WaOamM. Gardner

■  ScocUByofSme

BUSINESS NAME: CATHOUC MEDICAL CENTER

BUSINESS TYPE: Docncs& Nonprofit Corporadoo

BUSINESS ID; 6ZU«

STATE OF INCORPORATION: NewHuapsliIre

CURRENT nUNOPAL OFnCE ADDRESS CURRENT MAIUNG ADDRESS

100 McGregor Street
Manebesta; NH. 03102, USA

too McGregor Street
Mancbestci; NH. 03102, USA

PRmOPAL PURPOSE(S)

NAICS CX>DE NAICS SUB CODE

OTHER / To cstabBsfa and operate an acete care htt^dtel to the
City of Manefaester, NH wltbout pecntilaty gain tod wilhotit
distlQctlon as to race, edoii creed, set erahflitytopay.See

amended Art n 12/30/16.

OFFICER /DIRECTOR INFORMAnON

NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS nHJE

Joseph Pcpe, MD 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH, 03102, USA President

Matthew KXotiry 100 McGregor Street, Maschestet^ NH, 03102, USA Secretary

Pamcb DIamantfs 100 Mc&egor Street, Mancbcstei; NB, 03102, USA TVeasorer

John G. Crooin, £sq. 100 McGregor Street, Maachestei^ NB, 03102, USA Chairman of flie Board of

Directors

Patricia Purey, MD too McGregor Street, Manchester, NH, 03102, USA Director

Carolyn danssen, MD . too McGregor Street, Mancbesto^ NH, 03102, USA Dhctiar

Lcnis Fink, MD 100 Mcdegor StreeL Manchesteiv KR, 03102, USA Director

Sttsan M. KtooQr, RN 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH, 03102, USA Director

John J. Mimoz, MD too McGregor Street Manchrstfr, NH, 03102, USA Director

Marie McKay, CA 100 McGregor Street, Mandiestei; NH, 03102, USA Director

Catherine Prcvencbcr 100 McGregor Street, Manchester; NH, 03102, USA DirccCor

Derek McDonald 100 McGregor Street, Martcfaestei; KB, 03102, USA Director

Timothy ROcy too McGregor Street, Manchester; NH, 03102, USA Director

NcQ Lcvesqne 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NB. 03102, USA Other Officer

L (he ttsderstgned, do hereby certxQr fim fitt Ottenents on this report ore true to (he best of my iofisnnBtion, knowledge end belkt

Tdlc President

BasoessNome: CatboUc Medical Center

gignrtitte; Joseph Pcpe, MB

Name ofSigner Joseph Pepe, MD

MsUog Address • Cetpondoa IXvisiaa, NH Dcpsitmcnt ofState, 107 Nonh Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301*4989
Physical Loeadca - St^ House Aimex, 3nl Floor, Room 317,2S C^ed Street, Coneord, NH

Pbeae: (603)271*32461 Fax: (603)271-32471 Eotall; oorpcrate@iotjfa.goy | WAsltc: coulvgov



jACORO CERTIFICATE OF UABILITY INSURANCE
OATECUunamrrY)

tQOU2022

THIS CERTIRCATE IS ISSUB) AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMAIWELY OR NEGATIVELY. AMBO). EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVBUGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCES
.BELOW. THIS CfcKIWCATE OF INiSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWSN THE .ISSUIM3 INSURER(SK AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ̂ D THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.'

-• IMPORTANT: If the-certtficate holdcr Is an MSDITIONAL MSURED, tho poUcy(le8) must have ADDmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
-If SUBROGATION IS WAIVB), subject to the terms and condttkms of the poDey, certain poOcles may require an endorse mervL A statement on
thfs-certlflcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In Beu of such cndorsementtsL

PRODUCER
" MARSHUSA.INC.

89KIGHS1REET
-  BOSTON, MA 02110

mcBoStmJoatnveil&laiAjm F8c212-94M377

CN10902176SAa-GAW)P-21-22

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE I FAX
rArc.««»F.n- llAfCNa):

AOORESS:

ncSURBUSI AFfORDtMG COVBtACE NAice

DCSURERA Tnn Spo'LJy WfawfO Cj wy 34495

iNsuaED
CgfftfAr Cfl*^

'  too McGreoer Bred
MsRGliener.NH 03102

tHSURERB
.

o8IWF080Q8u8S83I6fV0rp, • tsict..- ^

iNSuaarc RsAsstaanee Soeda&v Insutance Coraesnv

IMSURERD

nrSURERE

WSURCSF

COVERAGES CERTIRCATE NUMBER: NYIXn08510S2-0S REVISION NUMBER: 5

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BESt ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOt THE POUCY PERIOO
INDiCATEO. NOTWrTHSTANOtNG ANY REQURBilBfT. TERM OR CONDTnON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE tSSiSSD OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLtOES OESCRIBQ) HERBN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCtUStONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCa) BY PAID CLAMS.

pSScvbf
ftDtmo/rvmlftpwioninnnTYKOFMSURMCE BSOL POUCY watBBr LOUIS

INSR

JJB.
/tcitcp>« itaonfTif

CLA1MS4>ADE E Ii OCCUR

HFPOOm^-OI tODlROa IQiDICDM EACHOCCURR9<CE

BUIACETOROTEP
PRFMlSgKreaoeniiruw^

NH)EXP|A<iyoaapeapB>

PERSONN.« ADV OUURY

OOfl.AGGR^TEUWTAPPUE8PBt

POUCY LOC

OENSW.AOGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COUPlOP AGO

OTHER:
fcbUa^bWQUUMiT'

i.ooatfD

sojooo

SfiOS

XflOOffO

SjOOOOOO

uxxuno

AVTOttoetLEUAsarrY

ANY AUTO BOOILV CUURY (Perpenoft)

OWIMED
AUTOS ONLY
KRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNa)
AUTOS ONLY

BOOLY DUURY (Pci MdtenQ

PROPCRrr DAMAGE

UUBREUAUAD

EXCESS UAB

X I RETBlTlONtZSjOOQDS>

OCCUR

CLAMSAIAPC

KPStll KUDIOOS IQAUZOa EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE S,GOO/U»

SP <067329

'SRSTSOJIOO

WORKSrS CCHPENSAYIOM

AROEWUJVBtS'UAearTY vm
AHrPROPWETORffAICTHERrEXEamve
OFWCEWMEMBEReXCLUOan
(WMdMpryinNH)
bm— PBtafiMaidtf

olSRynON OF OPERATTONS below

« « •«

0

IttOUZOZZ 109112023
^ I STATUTE

NTA
EJLEACHACCtDENT tjmuno

El. DISEASE • EA BiaOTEE IjOGlLOOO

£1. OSEASE. POUCY UUfT 1.000X100

PROFESSIONN. UABILITY KPP00171-2241 t0AU2022 1001J20» PERGLAQI

AGGREGATE

txnLOOo

IXBOXIOO

DEBCRIPT10NQP0P6IATT0KS/tJ{XAT1Cia/VailCl£8 (AeOROiei,Ad«tlaodR«aiHtoSch*ddt.neybo«ttactodirB»M«epnat>i«qidrad)

NeNHOTpiMMiDcsflrtwenlofCoBecfas

PD. 00x1698

Coaoord.NH OSUS-ISOB

"

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPtRATtON DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERS) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOnzeO REPRfiSENTATTVe

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01986^6 ACORD CORPORATION. Ad rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered merles of ACORD



Catholic Medical Center

Mission Statement, Values and Vision Statement

2020

Mission

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to carry out Christ*s healing ministry by offering health,
healing and hope to every individual who seeks our care.

Values

Our values are rooted in the fundamental values of promoting and defending human dignity and
respecting the sacredness of human life. We are committed to:

•  Compassion
•  Respect
•  Patient-Centered Care >

•  Human Dignity
•  Excellence

Vision

Guided by our Mission and Values, we are committed to becoming the finest customer experience,
lowest cost, and best outcome provider in ̂ e region.



CMC Healthcare System, Inc.

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
With Independent Auditors' Report

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE

800.244.7444 I www.bnncpa.com



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Sq)tember 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Current assets: -

Cash and cash equivalents $110,979,667 $151,551,269
Short-term investments 3,582,157 3,572,434
Accounts receivable 71,559,507 62,791.576
Inventories 3,912,718 4,836,875

Other current assets 18.861.756 16.427.148

Total current assets 208,895,805 239,179,302

Property, plaint and equipment, net 144,872,110 147,642,544

Other assets:

Intangible assets and other 18,557,706 17,118,765

Assets whose use is limited:

Pension and insurance obligations 24,811,739 20,198,308
Board designated and donor restricted investments

and restricted grants 168,473,103 151,252,801
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements 1.250.410 1.345.012

194.535.252 172.796.121

Total assets



CMC HEAJLTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

Operating revenues:
Patient service revenues

Other revenue

Disproportionate share funding

2021

$455,963,619
40,909,118

21.483.694 '

2020

$391,158,922
■35,839,402
18.380.790

Total operating revenues 518,356,431 445,379,114

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

281,520,814
192,476,393

19,248,461
13,005,133
5.007.696

278,916,574
170,961,809
22,054,486
16,221,934
4.334.625

Total operating expenses 511.258.497 492.489.428

Income (loss) from operations 7,097,934 (47,110,314)

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income, net
Net periodic pension cost, other than service cost
Contributions without donor restrictions
Development costs
Forgiveness of PPP loan
Other nonoperating expenses and losses

26,082,136
(903,813)
551,406

(577,663)
618,500

flO.449.0581

9,801,818
(598,353)

1,337,194
(570,636)

f3.744.9291

Total nonoperating gains, net 15.321.508 6.225.094

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and gains over expenses 22,419,442 (40,885,220)

Unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released from restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost

(4,872)
204,639
70,304

50.168.380

13,723
(261,651)
159,168

f23.927.9031

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 72,857,893 (64,901,883)

Net assets without donor restrictions at beginning of year 39.470.152 104.372.035

Net assets without donor restrictions at end of year $112.328.045 $ 39.470.152

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

Operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile ch^gis in net assets to

net cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net realized and unrealized gains on sales of investments
Forgiveness of PPP loan
Change in interest in perpetual trust
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Bond discount/pronium and issuance cost amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Accrued pension and other liabilities

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

hivesting activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements
Proceeds from sales of investments

Purchases of investments

Net cash used by investing activities

Financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on capital leases
Bond issuance costs

Restricted gifts and investment income
Net cash provided by financing acti\dties

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at begiiming of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure:
During 2021 and 2020, the System entered into capital

lease obligations to finance certain equipment totaling
$1,739,803 and $253,781, respectively.

2021 2020

$ 76,429.856 $(49,150,816)

13,005,133
(50,168,380)
(3,396,210)

(23,060,105)
(618,500)

(1,546,976)
(204,639)
(238,116)

(8,767,931)
924,157

3,240,997
(1,438,941)

(20.921,857)
1,326,112

31,126,220
(47.190.175^

(31,499,355)

(8,482,503)
94,602

114,881,518
(116.623.848^

(10,130,231)

(2,672,713)
1,727,235
(223,098)

2.226.560

L057-984

(40,571,602)

151.551.269

16,221,934
23,927,903

(16,202,603)
(6,130,421)

(104,885)
261,651

(256,596)

16,531,066
(236,073)

(2,228,925)
1,481,849

19,617,964
1,576,241
9,702,839

46.377.405

61,388,533

(21,738,820)
17,500,343
40,581,691

(51.180.3541

(14,837,140)

(3,814,000)
42,993,018
(426,101)
(211,510)

10.208.979

48.750.386

95,301,779

56.249.490

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

1. Otynniyfltion (Continued)

On December .30, 2019, GraniteOne, the Medical Center, HH and MCH submitted a Joint Notice of
Change of Control to the New Han^shire Attorney General, Director of Charitable Trusts pursuant to
New Hampshire RSA 7:19-b beginning the regulatory review arid approval process of the Combination.
Subsequent to that date, -the parties also continue to participate in the nonpiiblic antitrust regulatory
review process. If all necessary approvals are obtained and closing conditions satisfied, D-HH GO will
consist of a major academic medical center offering tertiary and quaternary services, an acute care
community hospital in an urban setting (the Medical Center), an acute care community hospital in a mral
setting (Cheshire), five rural critical access hospitals (NLH, MAHHC, APD, HH and MCH), a post-
acute home health and hospice provider (VNH), and nearly 1,800 employed and affiliated primary and
specialty care physicians. D-HH GO System Members will combine their resources to offer a broader
array of inpatient, outpatient and ambulatory services.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis ofPresentation

The acconq)anying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Medical Center, PPA, Enterprises,
Resources, AAS, AHS, DMA and SPH. Significant intercon:q}any accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The prepaiatioD of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assunqitions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates. Significant
estimates are made in the areas of valuation of accounts receivable, estimated settlements with third-
party payors, accrued compensation and benefits, conditional asset retirement obligations, and
insurance-related reserves.

Income Taxes

The System and all related entities, with the exception of Enterprises and DMA, are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section S01(c)(3) of the Code and are exempt fiom federal income taxes
on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the System's tax
positions and concluded the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant
unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the
consolidated financial statements.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accounts Receivable . .

i ■ .V . *. ! » ^

Patient accounts receivable for which the imconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the
right to consideration is unconditional and oiily the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Accounts receivable at September 30, 2021 and 2020 reflect the fact that any
estimated uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a direct
reduction to accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful accounts. At Sq>temba'.30, 2021
and 2020, estimated implicit price concessions of $23,128,679 and $28,756,009, respectively, have been
recorded as reductions to accounts receivable balances to enable the System to record revenues and
accounts receivable at the estimated amounts expected to be collected.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies are stated at the Iowa* of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or net
realizable value.

Related Partv Activitv

The Medical Center has engaged in various transactions with GraniteOne, HH and MCH. The Medical
Center recognized approximately $3.1 million and $3.0 million in revenue fi'om these related parties for
the years ended Sq>tember 30,2021 and 2020, respectively, which is reflected within other revenues in
the accon^^anying consolidated statements of operations. The Medical Center also incurred expenses
to these related parties of approximately $6.5 million and $3.8 million for the years ended September 30,
2021 and 2020, re^)ectively, of which $600,000 is reflected within operating expenses, /^ditionally,
approximately $5.9 million and $3.2 million as of Sq)tember30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, is
reflected within nonoperating gains Qosses) in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
As of Sq)tember 30, 2021, the Medical Center had a net amount due fiem these related parties of
approximately $1.3 million, ofwhich $1.8 million is reflected within other current assets and $500,000
is reflected within accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying 2021 consolidated
balance sheet. As of September 30,2020, the Medical Center had a net amount due from these related
parties of approximately $2.6 million, of which $7.6 million is reflected within other current assets and
$5.0 million is reflected within accounts payable and accmed expenses in the accompanying 2020
consolidated balance sheet.

Propertv. Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation,
less accumulated depreciation. The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and charge maintenance and repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of the related assets. The provisions for depreciation and amortization have been determined using
the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives.
See also Note 5. Assets which have been purchased but not yet placed in service are included in
construction in progress and no d^reciation expense is recorded.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant AccoupHnp Pnlides fContiriuedl ; ..

The collection of outstanding receivables for Medicare, Medicaid, managed care payers, odier third-
party payers and patients is . the System's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating
performance: ̂ The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts, including patient •
accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the amounts' covered by the applicable
agreement, but patient responsibility amounts (deductibles and copayments) remain outstanding.
Iinplicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly fiom patients. Estimated in^licit
price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, r^ardless of the aging of those accounts.
Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and eternal collection efforts have been

performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based iqx>n managemoit's assessment of
historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in federal,
state and private employer health care coverage and other collection indicators. Management relies on
the results of detailed reviews ofhistorical write-offs and collections at facilities that rqjresent a majority
of hospital revenues and accounts receivable (the "hindsight analysis") as a primary source of
information in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable. Management performs the hindsight
analysis regularly, iitilin'ng rolling twelve-month accounts receivable collection and write-off data.
Management believes its regular updates to the estimated implicit price concession amounts provides
reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable. These routine, regular changes
in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-
to-period con^arisons of operations.

Retirement Benefits

The CathoUc Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement" benefits for certain employees
of the Medical Center and PPA who have attained age twenty-one and work at least 1,000 hours per
year. The Plan consists of a benefit accrued to July 1,1985, plus 2% of plan year earnings (to legislative
maximums) per year. The System's fimding policy is to contribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to
meet Tninimnm fimding requiremmts set forth in the En^loyee Retiremoit Income Security Act of 1974,
plus such additional amounts as may be d^ennined to be appropriate finm time to time. The Plan is
intended to constitute a plan describ^ in Section 414(k) of the Code, under which benefits derived fiom
employer contributions are based on the s^arate account balances of participants in addition to the
defined benefits under the Plan.

Effective January I, 2008 the Medical Center decided to close participation in the Plan to new
participants. As of January 1,2008, current participants continued to participate in the Plan while new
employees receive a higher matching contribution to the tax-sheltered aimuity benefit program discussed
below.

During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to fi'eeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective
December 31,2011.

The Plan was amended effective as of May 1, 2016 to provide a limited opportunity for certain
terminated vested participants to elect an immediate lump sum or annuity distribution option.

12



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continucdl

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restncted include assets held by trustees under indenture agrbements,'
pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which the
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes, and donor-restricted
investments.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are rqK>rted at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of the
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accon^lished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and rq>orted in the statements of operations as eitho* net assets released from
restrictions (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released fiom restrictions used for capital
purchases (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions have been restricted by donors
to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Except for contributions related to capital purchases, donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions
are met within the same year as received are reported as contributions within net assets without donor
restrictions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Pledees Receivable

Pledges receivable are recognized as revenue when the unconditional promise to give is made. Pledges
expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their net realizable value. Pledges that are
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The present value of estimated future cash flows is measured utilizing risk-free rates of return adjusted
for market and credit risk established at the time a contribution is received.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. See Note 8 for
further discussion regarding fair value measur^ents. Investment income (including realized gains and
losses on investments, interest and dividoids) and the net change in unrealized gains and losses on equity
securities are included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and gains over expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or
law. The change in net unrealized gains and losses on debt securities is reported as a separate conrqjonent
of the change in net assets without donor restrictions, except declines that are determined by
management to be otho* than temporary, which are reported as an impairment charge (included in the
excess (deficiency) of revenues and gains over expenses). No such losses were recorded in 2021 or
2020.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

• Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) -

.  Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with ̂ ecific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to maximize total return while preserving the capital values of
the fimds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to
provide a real rate of return that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon.

The System targets a diversified asset allocation that places en^hasis on achieving its long-term retum
objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Performance Indicator

Excess (deficimcy) of revenues and gains over expenses is con^rised of operating revenues and
expenses and nonoperating gaim and losses. For purposes of di^lay, transactions deemed by
management to be ongoing, major or central to the provision of healtli care services are reported as
operating revenue and expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains
or losses, which include contributions without donor restrictions, development costs, net investment
income (including realized gains and losses on the sales of investments and unrealized gains and losses
on equity investments), net poiodic pension costs (other than service cost), forgiveness of Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) loan, other nonoperating expenses and losses, and contributions to community
agCTcies.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the related expaiditure is
incurred.

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The System has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. A claims-made basis
policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy tenn. The System has
established a reserve to cover professional liability exposure, which may not be covered by insurance.
The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance
coverage may be asserted against the System. In the event a loss contingency should occur, the System
would give it appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting standards. The System expects to be able to obtain renewal or other coverage in future years.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, ̂Health Care Entities" (Topic
954): Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries^ at September 30, 2021 and
2020, the System recorded a liability of $15,491,857 and $14,511,532, respectively, related to estimated
professional liability losses covered under this policy. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the System
also recorded a receivable of $11,402,607 and $10,725,032, respectively, related to estimated recoveries
under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts are included in accrued
pension and other liabilities, and intangible assets and other, respectively, on the consolidated balance
sheets. -
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies {Continuedl

.. Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-tehn lease, lessees
will recognize a liability equivalent to the discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well
as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the System on October 1,2022. Lessees
(for capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases
existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting
for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full
retrospective transition approach. The System is currently evaluating the impact ofthe pending adoption
of ASU 2016-02 on the System's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure
Framework — Changes to the Disclosure Requirements fur Fair Value Measurement (ASU 2018-13).
The amendments in this ASU modify the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for
Level 3 assets and liabilities, and eliminate the requirement to disclose transfers between Levels 1 and
2 of the fair value hierarchy, among otho^ modifications. ASU 2018-13 is effective for the System on
October 1, 2020. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a material inq^act on these consolidate
financial statements.

In August 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-14, Compensation - Retirement Benefits—Defined Benefit
Plans - General (Topic 715) (ASU 2018-14). Under ASU 2018-14, the disclosure requirements for
employers that sponsor defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans are modified. ASU 2018-
14 is effective for the System on October 1,2022, with early adoption permitted. The System will apply
the amendments on a retrospective basis to all periods presented.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the
Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting^ which provides conpanies and organizations
with optional expedients and excq^tions to ease the potential accounting burden associated with
transitioning away fiom reference rates that are expected to be discontinued. The optional expedients
may be applied to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions that reference LIBOR or
another reference rate expected to be discontinued because of the reference rate reform. The
amendments in this update are effective for all entities as of March 12,2020 and may be adopted using
a prospective approach through December 31,2022. Management is currently evaluating the impact of
the guidance and may apply elections as applicable as additional changes in the mailcet occur during the
LIBOR transition period.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended Sq)tember 30,2021 and 2020

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continuedl >

Distributions from the Provider Relief Fund and GOFERR are not subject to .repayment, provided the
System is able to attest;.to and comply with the terms and conditions of the .funding, including
demonstrating that the dktributions received haVe'beai used for healthcare-related expenses or lost

. revenue attributable to COVID-19; Such payments ̂ e accounted for as government grants, ̂ d are
recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable assurance that
the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds will be met. Based on an analysis of the
conqjiiance and rqwrting requirements of the Provider Relief Fund and GOFERR and the inqjact of the
pandemic on operating results through September 30, 2021, the System recognized approximately
$17.6 million rdated to these funds, which is recorded within otho' revenue in the consolidated
statemoits of operations for the year ended September 30,2021. Based on an analysis of the compliance
and rq>orting requirements of the Provider Relief Fund and GOFERR and the impact of the pandemic
on operating results throu^ September 30, 2020, the System recognized approximately $17.1 million
related to these funds, which is recorded within other revenue in the consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended September 30,2020.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of payroll tax incurred
during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until December 2021, and the
remaining half until December 2022. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the System had defmed
approximately $7.2 million and $5.1 million, respectively, of payroll taxes, of which approximately
$3.7 million and $5.1 million, respectively, are recorded within accrued pmsion and other liabilities in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of Sq>tember 30,2021, approximately $3.5 million
of deferr^ payroll taxes are recorded within accmed salari^, wages and related accounts on the
accompanying 2021 consolidated balance sheet.

Subsequent to year end, the System received an additional approximately $5.7 million from the Provider
Relief Fund and approximately $920,000 from GOFERR. These payments are accounted for as
government grants and are not subject to rq>ayment, provided the Medical Center is able to conq)ly with
the conditions of the frmding, including demonstrating that the distribution received has been used for
healthcare-related expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVlD-19. The System anticipates meeting
the terms and conditions of these grants in the fiscal year ended September 30,2022. No amounts related
to these grants are reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and
February 18,2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

4. Patient Service Revenues . . „ .. L

As discussed in Note 2, during fiscal .year 2020, the System requested accelerated Medicare payments
as provided for in the CARES Act, which allowed for eligible health care facilities to request up to six
months of advance Medicare payments for acute care hospitals or up to three months of advance
Medicare payments for other health care providers^ One year from the date of receipt of the advance
payments (beginning April 2021) 25% of the advances will be recouped in the first eleven months. An
additional 25% ofthe advances will be recouped in the next six months, with the entire amount repayable
in 29 months. Any outstanding balance after 29 months is repayable at a 4% interest rate. During the
third quarter of fiscal 2020, the System received approximately $49.0 million from these accelerated
Medicare payment requests. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the current portion due within a year,
totaling approximately $35.7 million and $6.7 million, respectively, is recorded under the caption
"amounts payable to third-party payors" and the long-term portion as of September 30, 2020, totaling
approximately $42.3 million, in the caption "accrued pension and other liabilities" in the accon^anying
consolidated balance sheets. There is no long-term portion as of September 30,2021.

The System also maintains contracts with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance organizations,
preferred providw organizations and state and federal agencies. The basis for payment imder these
agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per day, discounts fix)m
established charges and fee schedules. The System does not currently hold reimbursement contracts
which contain financial risk components.

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues by major payor sources is as follows for the years
ended September 30:

Private payor (includes coinsurance and deductibles)
Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and DisproDortionate Share Payment

2021

$286,410,684
17,882,234

141,890,218
9.780.483

2020

$232,469,236
16,137,362

141,363.073
1.189.251

$391.158.922

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of the Medical Center's patient service revenues with certain exclusions.
The amount of tax incurred by the Medical Center for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
was $19,248,461 and $22,054,486, respectively.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

Property. Plant and Equipment (Continued)

•As of September 30, 2021, construction in progress primarily consists of the cost related to the
acquisition of land adjacent to the curroit hospital building, intended for a future expansion of the
Medical Center. As of the'date of these consoUdated financial statements, the Medical Center has
purchase commitments of approximately $7.2 million related to initial planning, design, and cost
estimate development for the hospital expansion.

Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30:

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds:

Series 2012 Bonds with inlCTest ranging from 4.00%
to 5.00% per year and principal payable in annual
installments ranging from $1,125,000 to $1,665,000
through July 2032

Series 2015A Bonds with interest at a fixed rate of 2.27%

per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $185,000 to $1,655,000 through July 2040

Series 2015B Bonds with variable interest subject to interest
rate swap described below and principal payable in
annual installments ranging fiom $220,000 to $665,000
through July 2036

Scries 2017 Bonds with interest ranging fiom 3.38% to
5.00% per year and principal payable in annual
installments ranging from $2,900,000 to $7,545,000

2021 2020

$ 15,500,000 $ 17,045,000

20,400,000 21,030,000

7,640,000 7,855,000

beginning in July 2033 through July 2044 61.115.000 61.115.000

104,655,000 107,045,000

Construction loans - see below 12,566.668 10,888,150

MOB LLC note payable - see below 7,330,500 7,564,500

Term loan - sec below 35,000,000 35.000,000

PPP loan - see below — 618,500

Capitalized lease obligations 1,688,468 171,759

Unamortized original issue premiums/discounts 4,339,925 4,687,958

Unamortized debt issuance costs n.285.5281 tl.395.4451

164,295,033 164,580,422

Less current portion t3.422.6091 (2.708.5851

$160,872,424 $161.871 837
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued!

Construction Loans . ,

..On July 1,2019, the.Medical Centerestablished.a nonrevolvinglineof credit up to $10,000,000 witha
bank in order to fund the C3q)ansion of the Medical Center. The line of credit bore interest at the LIBOR
lending rate plus 0.75%. Advances from the line of credit were available throu^ July 1,2021, at which
time the then outstanding line of credit balance automatically converted to a term loan. Upon
conversion, die Medical Center shall make monthly payments of principal and interest, assuming a 30-
year level monthly principal and interest payment schedule, with a final maturity of July 1,2029. The
bank computed the sch^ule of principal payments based on the interest rate applicable on the
conversion date (0.85%). Payments of interest only were due on a monthly basis until the conversion
date. The Medical Center hzs pledged gross receipts as collateral. As of September 30, 2021, the
balance outstanding under the converted term loan is $9,951,192. As of September 30, 2020, the
Medical Center had drawn $9,999,979 on this line of credit.

On March 20, 2020, the Medical Center established a second nonrevolving line of credit up to
$10,000,000 with a bank in order to further fund certain costs related to the expansion of the Mescal
Center. The line of credit bears interest at the LIBOR lending rate plus 0.75% (0.83% at September 30,
2021). Advances from the line of credit are available through March 20.2022, at whidi time the then
outstanding line of credit balance will automatically convert to a term loan. Upon conversion, the
Medical Center shall make monthly payments of principal and interest, assuming a 30-year level
monthly principal and interest payment schedule, with a final maturity of March 20, 2030. The bank
shall compute the schedule of principal payments based on the interest rate applicable on the conversion
date. Payments of interest oiily are due on a monthly basis until the conversion date. Hie Medical
Center has pledged gross receipts as collateral. AsofSq>tember30,2021 and 2020, the Medical Center
has drawn $2,615,476 and $888,171, respectively, on this line of credit.

MOB LLC Note Payable

On March 27,2018, the MOB LLC (a subsidiary of Enterprises) refinanced an existing note payable to
a term loan totaling $8,130,000. Interest is fixed at 3.71% and is payable monthly. Principal payments
of $19,500 are due in monthly installments beginning May 1, 2018, and continuing until March 27,
2028, at which time the remaining unpaid principal and interest shall be due in full. During 2021, the
fixed interest rale on this note payable was modified to a fixed rate of 4.52%. All other payment terms
remained the same. Under the terms of the loan agreement, the Medical Center and MOB LLC (the
Obligated Group) has granted the bank a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage
lien on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center and the System also
guarantee the note payable.

Term Loan

On August 21,2020, the Medical Center entered into a term loan with a bank totaling $35,000,000 with
the proceeds to be used for general working capital and liquidity purposes, as well as to pay the costs of
issuance related to the term loan. Interest is fixed at 2.11%, and payments of interest only are due on a
monthly basis through August 21, 2023, at which time the full principal amount outstanding is due,
along with any accrued and unpaid interest. The Medical Center has pledged gross receipts as collateral,
and the term loan is further secured by a mortgage until such time the aforementioned Authority bonds
are no longer outstanding.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

6, Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

Debt Covenants

•  - In conjunction witbthe.revenue.bonds, construction loans and terra loan outlined above, the Medical.
Center is required to maintain a minimura debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. In conjunction with the
MOB LLC note payable outlined above, the Obligated Group is also required to maintain a minimum
debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. In anticipation of the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the System's operations as discussed in Note 2, the System entered into consent agre^ents with the
various bank issuers involved to obtain a waiver of the d^t service coverage ratio requirement for the
fiscal year ending September 30,2020, as well as for quarters ending December 31,2020 and March 31,
2021 (the "affected period"). During the affected period, the various loan agreements were further
modified to include a cash to debt requirement of 0.60. The Medical Center, as well as the Obligated
Group for the MOB LLC note payable, was in compliance with this covenant as of S^tember 30,2020.
Further, despite the waiver obtained, the Medical Center, as well as the Obligated Group for the MOB
LLC note payable, were also in con^liance with the minimum debt service coverage ratio as of
September 30, 2020. The Medical Center, as well as the Obligated Group for the MOB LLC note
payable, was in compliance with all required debt covenants as of September 30,2021.

Derivatives

In January 2016, the Medical Center entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional
amount of $8,650,000 in connection with its Series 2015B Bond issuance. The swap agreement hedges
the Medical Center's interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments finm variable rat«
to a fixed rate. The swap agreonent is designated as a cash flow hedge of the underlying variable rate
interest payments, and dianges in the fair value of the swap agreement are reported as a change in net
assets without donor restrictions. Under this agreement, the Medical Center pays a fixed rate equal to
1.482%, and receives a variable rate of 69.75% of the one-month LIBOR rate (0.06% at September 30,
2021). Payments under the swap agreement began August 1, 2016 and the agre^ent will terminate
August 1,2025.

The fair value of the Medical Center's interest rate swap agreement amounted to a liability of $277,022
and $481,661 as of September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively, which amount has been recorded within
accrued poision and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance she^. The change in
the fair ̂ ue of this derivative of $204,639 and $(261,651), respectively, has been included within the
consolidated statements of changes in net assets as a change in net assets without donor restrictions for
the years ended September 30,2021 and 2020.

7. Operating Leases

The System has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical equipment. The
System also has noncancelable leases for office space and its physician practices. Rental expense under
all leases for the years ended September 30,2021 and 2020 was $5,274,755 and $4,422,377, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is T (Coptinued)

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from sources independent
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own askunptions about how market
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation
techniques used to measme fair value must maximize the use of observable ii^uts and minimi7i» the use
of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of
which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure
fair value.

The following describes the hierarchy of iiqjuts used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used by the System for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
The three levels of inputs are as follows:

Level 1 — Observable ii^uts such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or lio market data.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques. The
three valuation techniques are as follows:

• Market approach—Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities;

•  Cost approach - Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e.,
replacement cost); and

•  Income approach — Techniques to convat future amounts to a single present amount based on
market expectations (including present value techniques).

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30,2021 and 2020.

The following are desoiptions of the valuation methodologies used:

U.S. Federal Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels ofprice transparency. The System holds fixed income
mutual funds and exchange traded funds, governmental and federal agency dd)t instruments, municipal
bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as Level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2021.and 2020 '

Investments and Assets Whose llsg is^.imited (Continued)

Total investments, excluding pledges receivable, net, included the following as of Sqjtember 30,.2021:

Shorl4enn investments ■

Assets whose use is limited

$  3,582,-15T
193.419.116

SI 97.001.273

The following table presents infonnation about the System's assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input to the valuations at Sqjtember 30,
2020:

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. federal treasury obligations
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Investments measured at net asset value:

Private investment funds

Total investments at fair value

Liabilities

Interest rate swap agreement

Level 1

$ 26,439,851

2,631,848

49,734,005
40.706.741

Level 2 Level 3

$ -

Total

$ 26,439,851
2,631,848

49,734,005
40.706.741

119,512,445

50.862.486

$170.374.931

$481.661 $ 481661

Total investments, excluding pledges receivable, net, included the following as of September 30,2020:

Short-term investments

Assets whose use is limited

$ 3,572,434
166.802.497

$170.374.931

There were no significant purchases, issues or transfers into or out of Level 3 for the years ended
September 30,2021 or 2020.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

.. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Yeaj^ Ended September 30,2021 and 2020

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued!

Fair Value ofOther Financial Instruments

Other.financial instruments consist of accounts recdvable, pledges receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses, amounts payable to third-party payors and long-term debt. The fair value of all
financial instruments other than long-term debt approximates their relative book values as these financial
instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value. See Note
6 for disclosure of the fair value of long-term debt.

Retirement Benefits

A reconciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, the Medical Center's
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement
Income Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for the years ended September 30,
2021 and 2020, aud a statement of funded status of tlie plans for both years is as follows;

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

Changes in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations

at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid
Actuarial gain (loss)
Expenses paid

Projected bcMfit obligatioDS at end of year

Changes to plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning ofjrear
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions «
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Fair v^iie of plan assets at end of year

2021

$(351365,307)
(1,500.000)
(8,807335)
10,561,754
I633O3IO
1-579.951

2020

$(3223 54.937)
(1,500,000)
(9,916373)
8,975,011

(28,081,063)
I-512.055

Pre>l9S7 Suj^lemental
Executive Retirement Plan

2021 2020

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement Income Plan

2021 2020

$(4,046357) $(4,060,910) $(3,143346) $(3,151351)

(67304)

406,705
302,678

(103,480)
402374
(284341)

(20,000)
(65,014)
185,024
219,711

(20,000)
(86,108)
180387
(83,714)
16.a40

(333300327) (351365307) (3.404378) (4,046357) (2.819.916) (3,143346)

193,634,925
40,943,728
8332.117

(10361,754)
fi 579.osn

230.969.065

189347,537
13,874,454

900,000
(8,975,011)
fl-S12.055^

193.634.925

406,705
(406,705)

402,974

(402,974)

2,163,783
507,494

6I2399
(185,024)

f3.709^

2,126,777

155383

79,450

(180,887)
f 16.840^

,1021212 2.163.783

Funded status of plan at Septemba 30 $ MO?.331.76?^ $r3404?783 $f4 046J571 $ 27^077 $ f979S633

Amounts recognized bithe
balance sheets consist of:

Current liability
Noncunent asset (Itability)

$  - $

M02J31.2623

tMn?331 '}(0\

$ (331363) $ (391345) $

(2.072.71?) f3.654J123 275.027 f979.S63^

$f3.404378^ $r40463S73 $ 275027 $ f979S633

The net loss for the defmed benefit pension plans that will be amortized from net assets without donor
restrictions into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $5,365,311.

The current portion of accmed pension costs included in the above amounts for the System amounted to
$331,563 and $391,845 at September 30,2021 and 2020, respectively, and has been included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying balance sheets.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yeare Ended September 30,2021 ̂  2020

9, Retirement Benefits (Continued!

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at
September 30 are as follows:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase

2021

2.S1%

N/A

2020

2.57%

N/A

Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Rednjnent Plan

2021 2020

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement Income Plan

2021 2020

2.13%

N/A

1.77%

N/A

2.55%

N/A

2.22%

N/A

The weighted-average assun^tions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan net periodic
benefit costs for the years ended September 30 are as follows;

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Fbn

Pre-1987 Suj^lemenial
Executive Retircmem Plan

New Hampshire
Medical Labmtories

Retirement Income Plan

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

2.57% 3.12% \:rf% 2.70% 2.22% 2.93%

N/A N/A N/A ■ N/A N/A N/A

6.90% 7.30% N/A N/A 6.90% 7J0%

Discount rate

Rate of compensatioD increase
Expected bng-teim return on plan assets

The System expects to make employer contributions totaling approximately $5.8 million to the Catholic
Medical Center Pension Plan for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. Expected en^loyer
contributions to the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and New Hampshire Medical
Laboratories Retirement Income Plan for the fiscal year ending September 30,2022 arc not expected to
be significant

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years
ending September 30 are as foUows:

Catholic

Medical Center

Pension Plan

Pre-1987

Supplemental
Executive

Retirement Plan

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement

Income Plan

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027-2031

$10,953,061
11,863,419
12,580,216
13,419,482
14,100,027
79.845,607

$ 335,076
324,211

312.275
299,265
285,197

1,182,138

$188,475
189,598
186,360
184,761
182,257
852,378

The System contributed $8,532,117, $406,705 and $612399 to the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan,
the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and New Han^shire Medical Laboratories
Retirement Income Plan, respectively, for the year ended September 30,2021. The System contributed
$900,000, $402,974 and $79,450 to the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, the Pre-1987
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement Income
Plan, respectively, for the year ended Sq)temb€r 30, 2020. The System plans to make any necessary
contributions during the upcoming fiscal 2022 year to ensure the plans continue to be adequately funded
given the current market conditions.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

11. _ Functional Expenses • , : . *

The System provides gCTeral health care services to residents within its geographic location including
inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows at

-  • September 30: .

2021

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Han^shire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

2020

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Healthcare

Services .

$242,888,323
155,847,809
19,248,461

7,038,102

3.873.113

General and

Administrative

$38,632,491
36,628,584

5,967,031

1.134.583

Total

$281,520,814

192,476,393
19,248,461

13,005,133

5.007.696

$428.895.808 $82.362.689

$232,497,773

130,099,534

22,054,486
9,775,267
3.182.303

$46,418,801
40,862,275

6,446,667
1.152.322

$278,916,574

170,961,809
22,054,486

16,221,934
4.334.625

$397.609.363 $94.880.065 $492.489.428

The consolidated financial statonents rqmrt cotain expense categories that are attributable to more than
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as
dq)reciation and interest, are allocated to a flmction based on square footage. Supporting activities that
are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the
expenses were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended Sq)tember 30,2021 and 2020

13. Endowments and Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (Continued)

2020

Board-designated endowment fimds

Donor-restricted endowrhent funds:

Original donor-restricted gill amount and
amounts required to be maintained in
perpetuity by donor

Accumulated investment gains

Total endowment net assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$117,950,965 $

Total

$117,950,965

7,342,731

3.340.810

$10.683.541

7,342,731
3.340.810

Changes in endowment net assets consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balance at September 30, 2019

Investment return, net

Contributions

/q)propriation for operations
Appropriation for capital

Balance at September 30, 2020

Investment return, net

Contributions

Appropriation for operations
Appropriation for capital

Balance at September 30, 2021

$110,175,169 $10,244,891 $120,420,060

7,616,628 203,284 7,819,912

159.168

861,295

(466,761)
(159.1681

117.950,965 , 10,683,541

23,772,092 1,834,839

70,304

1,338,169
(1,046,594)

(70.3041

861,295

(466,761)

128,634,506

25,606,931

1,338,169

(1,046,594)

$154533012

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level (hat the donor requires the Medical Center to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. There were no such deficiencies as of September 30,2021 or 2020.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'  : ■ Years Ended September 30,2021 2020

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been
threatened against the System. The System intends to defend vigorously against these claims. While
ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indetenninable, it is management's
opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the System

Resulatorv

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning
possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could
result in the imposition of si^hcant frnes and penalties as well as significant rqiayments for patient
services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations are subject to government review
and interpretations as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.
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CathoLic Medical Center

Board of Trustees

Timothy Riley, Chair
The Harbor Group -

Pamela Diam^tis, Vice Chair
Curbstone Financial Management Corp

Marie McKay, Treasurer
Bigelow & Company

Matthew Kfoury, Secretary
K4E Company

John 0. Cronin, Esq., Immediate Past Chair
Cronin, Bisson & Zaiinsky, P.C.

Alexander J. Walker, ex officio
President & CEO

Catholic Medical Center

Derek McDonald, ex officio
Bishop's Delegate for Catholic Health
Caret Diocese of Manchester

Carolyn G. Claussen, MD
Willowbend Family Practice

Louis I. Fink, MD
New England Heart & Vascular Institute

Susan M. Kinney, RN, MSN
Retired

Grace Tung
Volunteer & Entrepreneur

William Furlong
St. Anselm College

Patricia Furey, MD, ex officio
President of CMC Medical Staff
Vein and Vascular Specialists

John J. Munoz, MD
Manchester Urology Associates, PA

Matthew Albuquerque
Retired

Robert Gossett

Gpssett Consulting, LLC

Kristy Merrill
New Hampshire Bankers Association

Roger Jean
Retired

Rev. Msgr. Anthony Frontiero S.T.D
Saint John's Seminary

Carrie Perry, Sr. Executive Assistant / Board Liaison
603-663-6552 / carrlc.pciTvCmcmc-nh.org
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Alexander J. Walker, Jr.
President & CEO

Alex is the Presidient &.CEO, of Catholic Medical Center-vAlexv^^
CMC in 2012, and has served in several, roles, including^^jiie^Q^^^
Officer,-Senior Vice President for Strategic Developmeiit'andiGenefalA'- J.
■Counsel. ' ' /

.  V.-
Alex has been actively involved in tlVe community for^many-yearevdde/j,

''•currently ser\'es on the Board of Trustees of the Uhiversily'Systerh.pf»
■ New Hampshire.-He has ser\'ed as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees
of the Palace Theatre. He has also served as past Chaintian of the Board

of Director of Granite United Way. He has also ser\'ed on the New Hampshire Bar
Association's Board of-Goveniors, the New Hajnpshire Supreme Court's^Access 'to Justice
Cormtiission, the Board of Directors of City Year-New Hampshire, the!B6afd of Directors of
the Business and Industry Association of New Hampshire and Greater Manchester Chamber of

"Commerce Board of'Directors where he served as Chairman of the Board in'2011."

■y{{

B.

Alex graduated from Nortlieastem University School of Law, with his juris doctorate. He-has a
Bachelor of Arts de^ee, with honors, in English-and Political Science from the'UhiVe'rsily of
Massachusetts,'at Boston. Alex also proudly sen'ed for several years in the'Uiiited'States'Mafine
Corps. : .

Alex is a recipient of the BSA Daniel Webster Council Distinguished Citizen Award, Pastoral
Counseling Services Good Sajnarilan Award, the Han'ard Pilgrim Foundation's Commimiiy
Sendee. Award, the American Hospital Association's Grassroots Champion Award; and the New
Hampshire Hospital Association's Leslie A. Smith President's Award. Alex and.his family
reside in Manchester.



Carolanne O'Sullivan, Senior Vice President of Provider.t^chvork.
Operations & Integration

Ms. O'Sullivan joined CMC in October 1999. Slie is responsible for the
prg^izatio'n's Physician Practice^NeiAvork as well as the New England:

■ 'Heartp&Vascularlnstitiate. Previously she served as Admiriisfrative ̂
v-'Birectpr for theOep^nient of Obstetrics and Oynccology ffom'.-f 998^16
1999 at Boston Medical Center, as Practice Manager forFainily
Medicine from 1997 to 1998 at Boston Medical Cenlefj aS/Adrniriistratdr
of the Department of Psychiatry at Bro\yn University; frprnd 99.416.1997

Provider Contracting Administrator at.Healthsource'^eSwMainpshir^^^
, ■ ■ ~ ■ ;fTom«l 992 to 199;4,.and as Practice .Operations Manager atE|lj6t''^-^''^""''

Hospital Ser\'jces from. 198S.to 1992. '

Ms. O'Sullivan is.a Member of tlie Medical Group Management Association and. tlie American •
College of Healthcare Executives. Shehassen'ed on the Board of Trustees, for ;the Greater
Manchesterjamily ̂!tT^CA, the New»Englarid Heart lnstitute Foundation and.oh-theiExecutive
Leadership Comm.iltee.for Uie Go Red for Women Luncheon, she volunteered.for the United
Way, and as a Religious Education Teacher;

"  * 1 •

Ml O'Sullivan,received ..her Master of Business; Administration from Providence College
(Providence, Rl)jn 1998 and her Bachelor of Science in Health Administration and Planning
from the University of New Hampshire (Durham) in 1985.



Edward C'Teii"^ Dudlgv Hi.

•Execum-eA^ce Presidem aad'Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Dudley joined CMC in 2011. He is iheCFO for GraniieOue. Health, A
s)'stem of the hospitals Catholic Medical Center (CMC), Hugeins Hospital
ai^ Monadnod: CoahnuniT)* Hospital He currently sm'w on the Board
and Fiuancc/'lnvestmeat and Audit Committee of Riticr Univenit>'-aud'
New Hampshire Catholic Charides Healthcare Committee. Kepretdously
sch'cd on the Board of New Han^xJiire.Catholic Charities as the as the •

. Dcput)' Vice Chair of the Board and ̂ irir ou tl» InvestuKut andi Audit
•Comminee.

Prior to joining ChIC, he scu'cd for foiu" \ears as Vice President/Chief Financial OSco at
Lanrence General Hospital in LawTeace htissachusetts. hior to tliat, Dudle>* sened as.
Director of Finance and et'ennulh' Vice Presideni ofFinance at Southoii New Hampshire Medical
Ccaier in Nashua Neu'Han^jshire from 1997-2007.

Kfr. Dudlfft' also woiited in ses'eral nuance leadership roles fm Hospital Corporation of
America'C^nnn Health Resources from 1987- 1997. Mr, DudlesAs a Feilow in the Health Care
Finance Managemehi Associanon, has a Master's in Business Admndstradon from PJner
Umvcrsit)', New HaugKhire and a Bachelor's degree from Ithaca College, Ne*»v "Vork.
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Michael Gilbetr. MD. MHCDS

Vice PreskJeht end Chist Medlcal.Officer

Dr..Gilbea joined OvlCln 2020.- He oversees che adminisiraiive and

professional funcitons of ail medical^naff servk^'relaied to physicians,.
surgeons and advanced practice providers.

PriortojGlningCMC,Dr.-.GilberTsen.'edforfGurYearsasrheMedical
direaor of Danmouth-Hitchcock Goncord. He also serv'ed.as'Medical

Director of Monadnock Community Hospital Endoscopy Unit from 2013-2020.

Dr. Gilbert obtained a Master's of Health Care.DeRvery Service ffpm.the Juck School of Business

at Dartnwuth Coliege, New Hampshire..He received both hislDoaor^e"degree and his Master's;
in Microbidogy and Immunology' from Thomas Jefferson Unrvefiity.iPenhsyfvania. He attended
LaSalle University, Pennsylvania and obtained his BachelorsJn Biology..Dr. Gilbert also proudly

served in the US Navy Reserve Medical Corp. achieving the rank of Commander.fOS) from 2012-

2015; He has served on.the Board of Trustees Catholic Chanties NH frorri 2015-2020.

j

T . . .



Vice President Nursing/Cliief Nursing Officer

Jferjiifer Cassiii. MS. R>.'. CNS. CENT

{enui/Ef Cassia joined Cithclic Me^cil Cecar in >Uy 2018.
nursm^/Chief Kiirang OSlcer.

i Vice President

In n^e, Jeuiferlus full ucounabUi^for, and cversiglit of the cursins organizaoon.'
^E aii^'ues the senior leadership, die medicip sain board and indhidual cUsica!
fadlides and tnher internal and eaemal gmups b>* pra-.idins input resarding die
hnplicaQons of decisions and diinge on the qualit>' of patient carer on nursing practice,
and on nursing care provider, ieniufer de\idop3 a.nd ensures a safe and ̂ectii'e padent
care ervirocioent thrcu^ partidpAtiontc insdditioiul planning, pro^ct evaluadoti.
and evalnarinn of cews^-sams and programs diatimpan nursing care in the
organgaaon. Jennifer ̂  provides leadership and direction for the development of
STTsagies to premote the recruisnent retendon. and recognition cf esceUeoce in
Hurang: including but ooclimrad to die oversigh: and recommendations regarding

compensadbn zed ber.efit programs for the nursing staff.

Jennifer Is a results-oriented Nurse Execjttve u-ith a proven gad: record of clinical and administrative operational
leadenbipi She was consisiecdy recognired for her ability o improve quaiity, safety, and patient oumomes and to
reduce costs: slalled in organizanor^l seeds assessment and encution ofredesigns. Jennifer has increased hospital
capadt)' throu^ leading the opening of nev.* units, service lises^ and faciiities'arJ by optimizing patiens flow. > She also
led organiiatibns throng acoWitatior. C<1Q' state and federal regidator>' r<vietvs.-and multiple senice line
ceitifications. Mnov\-n for recruiting, tnentonng. and training both runagement and nursing staff.

Jennifer comes to CadicUc Medical C^ter froza a position of VP Pen-Operative Services of Albany Medical Center .
Kos^xtal In tiiis role, she reported directly to the Chief Nursing Offtc^ andbeld full accounab&i^ for the
penej^rative service tine in collaboration vvith the Triad Leadership of N'ursihg. Anesthesia, and Surgery. Jecnifer-
was also iespor,sibie for the effective and effitieot delivejycfperi^>er<ttireser%icu on two campuses. 15 direct
reports and 650t FTrs:S171 rmllion annual operating er^nse budget.

Prior tc ti'.ai, Jenrnfer held the position of Intenm Oiief Nursing OfTicer a; Albany Medical Cemer Hospital
in the absence ofa dftigr-ired CNO. -She led the nursing organization witii appronnutely 2900 full-time equivalent
sufil She partidpotcd as a member of±e seniorleadenhip team and represented the nursing oi^aaization to the
Board of Oirectbn, hospiul committees, ph^'sician leaders, arui man>' other key partners. As inmrim Q^O-Jermifer
responded to unprecedented \-o!ume mcrieises by hnpiementing strategies to optimize patient flow and bo^ital
capacit/'. She also increased bed capadt>' in the Intensive care and medicine uztits and recruited 504 PTEs to core for
patients In the expanded units.

Prior to these roles. Jennifer held tite position of Chief ofPadent Sernces at BeDevue Woman's Hospital. Kiska>'una.
NT where she reported tn the CEO and heM eseeuti'.'e accouncabiliT for all hospital clinical departments.

Jennifer received ber AA5. Nursing from Ma.na College in Albany-. fT in i9B2.65, Nursing from Rttssell Sage College in
1995 in NY and her MS. .Nurrlng in 2001 from SUNY Nev; Palm. NewPaltz. NY. She also earned ber CEN? in
2017 from &e Amencan Oigastzation ofNurse Execonves. Exectdve Nursng Practice.

"c.-F. , • -?■" ,.
"" 'T
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Jennifer is cvsretnly a member of the American Organizauon of Nurse Executives and Association of Peri-operative
Nurses.



Jaton £. Cola. Esq.. CPA. MS/MBA: Vki Fresicgfit'^ Generzi Counsel.

Mr. Cole recently joined QviCu General Counsel in the spring 2017 after serving
as outside couruelto Cf»ICsirKe'2006. Prior to joining C^!C,,Mr.'Cole was a
shareholder st the la-z.-fimof Devine, Miilimet ̂ Branch, Prcfessidrul
Association practicing corporate, tax, mergers arid acquisitioru, rton-profa and

healthcare law. Mr;.Colc.vuas selected as a 'Risirtg Sta<':b^v'Mev.'Erigla;^ Super
Lawyer" frorri 201i-2bl6inTax.- -

Prior to attending lav/sdwoirf^. Cole Mr.-ed as auditor for ' ' ■
'• .'.i .1 ■ I • : <■ .r •■i• 1'j- „•>

Price^vaterhousepsbpers foci^tng on fiiuncial^servkes and non-prohl
orgamzations arsd subsequently ser.-ed as the AssUtan; InternstipnalContrpller^ai the StateStreet
Corporation.

Mr. Ci^e is a graduate of Suffolk Unr.-ershy Lav.- School, has earned a Master of Sdence in Accountancy
and Masterof Business Administration from the fjorxKeastem UhrversKV Graduate School of
Professional Accounting and has earned a Bachelor of Ajts from Colgate University.

In addition to his professiortal and educationai exp^rKes.lA-. Cb{e currentty^ryes onthe.^ardof
Oireaors of the New Hampshire Society of Certined Public Accountants and Mr/ei on the Board of
Diredorsof Granite United Way v.-here he has been an ^ve member of the Audit/Finance a^ ■
Gb^-e'mance Committees: He has served on the Board of Trustees of the Manchester Histoiv
il^odation earning the 2010 Presiderrt's Av/ard and in 2013 was a member of the Maridier.er Union
Leader "40 Under 40" class in reo^rutlonof his's&riice torKirt-prbfriorgariizations.
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RotuldDoKasTsr

Senior Vice Presideni and Giief Operating Officer

Ron has O'.'er m^eni^'-five years of clinical and- sendee operarions
•le^rship experience. A dedicated team buflder and leader .rviih a lusion'
•of developin2,iun£niUfe sohiaous and progr^s for the ing)ro\*cajcni od-
, grosstb of opentiwis, sendee and people.

ftddr to joining CN4C Ron sen'ed as Ihc Nadonal Vice President of
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TIMOTHY M.SOUCY,MPH

SUMMARY OF QUAUFICATIONS

■  Vice President and Senior Leadership Team Member, Catholic Medical Center

■  28-Year Manchester Health Department Employee, 12-Years as Public Health Director

■  Recognized Public Health Leader In the City of Manchester and State of New Hampshire

■  Experienced in Managing Employees, Budgets and Community Collaborations

■  Lifelong Manchester, New Hampshire Resident

EDUCATION

■  Master of Public Health Degree May 1998 Boston University School of Public Health

Boston, Massachusetts Concentration: Environmental Health

■  Bachelor of Science Degree May 1989 University of Vermont

Burlington, Vermont Major: Biology

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

7/22 - Present: Vice President ~ Mission Integration

7/20 - 7/22: Senior Executive Director - Support Services & Mission, Catholic Medical Center

Catholic Medical Center (CMC) is a nonprofit 330-bed acute-care hospital and regional health system

based in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Senior Executive Director of Support Services and Mission

oversees the delivery of CMC Support Services including Security, Telecommunications, Patient Transport,

Food and Nutrition Services, Environmental Services, Facilities, Safety Officer, as well as Emergency

Management and Project Management In addition, the Senior Executive Director performs the duties of

the Executive Director of Community Health 8t Mission as outlined below.

9/18 - 7/20: Executive Director - Community Health & Mission, Catholic Medical Center

The Executive Director of Community Health & Mission is responsible assessing, evaluating and

prioritizing community needs and identifying CMC's role in meeting these needs through the completion

on the annual Community Benefit Report and the Community Health Implementation Plan. In addition,

the Executive Director manages the delivery of CMC's Community Health Services Including Healthcare

for the Homeless, Poisson Dental Facility, Medication Assistance Program, Breast and Cervical Cancer

Screening Program, Veteran's Care Coordination, 1115 Waiver -Integrated Delivery Network, The

Doorway of Greater Manchester, Women's Wellness and Fertility Clinic and the Office of Catholic

Identity. The Executive Director rotates as the Administrator on Call for the hospital, serves on multiple

hospital committees and acts as a liaison between the hospital and the Community.

12/06 - 8/18: Public Health Director, Gty of Manchester

The Public Health Director serves as the Chief Administrative Officer for the Manchester Health

Department providing administrative oversight to all operations and activities including exclusive

personnel responsibility, supervisory authority and budgetary authority. The Public Health Director
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oversees the routine assessment of the health of the community and recommends appropriate policies,

ordinances and programs to Improve the health of the community. The Public Health Director oversees

investigations, communicable disease control, environmental inspections and investigations necessary

to protect the public health and is also responsible for the provision of school health services in
Manchester. The Public Health Director serves as the CEO of the Manchester Health Care for the

Homeless Program (330-h) and has overseen the AmeriCorps VISTA Program and Weed & Seed Strategy.

11/02 -12/06: Public Health Preparedness Administrator, City of Manchester

In addition to carrying out all of the functions as the Chief of Environmental Health, the Public Health
Preparedness Administrator planned, directed and supervised all activities to assure local readiness,

interagency collaboration, and preparedness for bioterrorism, outbreaks of infectious disease, and other
public health emergencies. The Public Health Preparedness Administrator routinely participated in City
Emergency Operations Center activations, sheltering operations and hospital preparedness activities.

08/94 -11/02: Chief, Division of Environmental Health, City of Manchester

The Chief of Environmental Health planned, directed and supervised all environmental health activities

carried out within the City. Evaluated and recommended public health standards, ordinances and

legislation. Advised governmental leaders, community representatives, and the general public on
environmental health issues. Planned and conducted professional public health training programs.

Coordinated epidemiological investigations for specific disease outbreaks. Supervised division staff and

evaluated personnel performance.

02/90 - 08/94: Environmental Health Specialist / Sanitarian, City of Manchester

The Environmental Health Specialist / Sanitarian performed duties related to a comprehensive

environmental health program, including, but not limited to inspection of food service facilities.

Investigation of foodbome illnesses, inspection of institutional facilities, swimming pool inspections,

indoor air quality investigations, inspections of septic systems, investigation of public health nuisances,

and investigation of childhood lead poisoning cases.

HONORS. RECOGNITIONS. APPOINTMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS

■  Timothy M. Soucy Day in the City of Manchester, August 31,2018

■  Fellow, Kresge Foundation, Emerging Leader in Public Health, 2017-2018

■  Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Culture of Health Prize Award - City of Manchester, 2016

■  Appointee, Network4Health Steering Committee, 2016 -Present

■  Appointee, Governor's Advisory Board, State Innovation Model, 2015 -2017

■  Graduate, Leadership Greater Manchester, Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce, 2016

■  Friend of Public Health Award, New Hampshire Public Health Association, 2015

■  Presenter, NACCHO Survive and Thrive Leadership Graduation, 2013

■  Appointee, New Hampshire Health Exchange Advisory Board, 2012 - 2016

•  Poster Session, NACCHO Annual Conference, 2010
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■  Presenter, NALBOH Annual Conference, 2009

■  Presented with Key to the City, Honorable Mayor Frank C. Guinta, 2009

■  Vice-Chair, Survive & Thrive Workgroup, NACCHO, 2009 - 2013

■  Fellow, Survive & Thrive, National Association of County & City Health Officials, 2008 - 2009

■  Guest Lecturer, University of New Hampshire, MPH Program, Law School and Undergraduate

Programs, 2006- Present

■  Associate, Leadership New Hampshire, Class of 2005

•  40 Under Forty, The Union Leader & Business and Industry Association of NH, Class of 2004

■  Appointee, Legislative Study Committee for Public Health and the Environment, 2000-2003

■  Inductee, Delta Omega Honor Society, Boston University School of Public Health 1998

COMMUNITY and VOLUNTEER ACTIVmES

Member, New Hampshire Guild of Catholic Healthcare Professionals, 2019 - Present

New Hampshire Charitable Foundation, Manchester Regional Advisory Board, 2019 - Present

City of Manchester Homeless Task Force, 2019

Decade Knight, West High School Blue Knight Foundation, 2016 - Present

Member, Manchester Historic Association, 2016 - Present

Leadership Greater Manchester Steering Committee, Greater Manchester Chamber of

Commerce, 2008- Present

Member, 100 Club of New Hampshire, 2008- Present

Member, Board of Directors, Families in Transition, Housing Benefits, Inc., 2010 - 2019

Volunteer, Dance Visions Network, 2007 - Present

Health Department Campaign Coordinator & Leadership Donor, Granite United Way, 2008 -18

Member, Greater Manchester Mental Health Center CEO Search Committee, 2015

Member, Manchester Community Health Center CEO Search Committee, 2013

Member, Management Team, Manchester Homeless Day Center, 2012 - 2015

Member, Board of Directors, Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, 2008 - 2015 (Board

Chair 2012-2014)

Member, Seniors Count Collaborating Council, Easter Seals of New Hampshire, 2006 - 2014

Member, Board of Directors, New Horizons for New Hampshire, 2004 - 2010 (Board President

2007-2009)

Coach, Parker Varney Girls Basketball Team, 2004-2005

Assistant Coach, Rising Stars Recreation Soccer League, 2002

Assistant Coach, Manchester Angels Recreation Soccer League, 2001-2003

Member, Advisory Council, Endowment for Health, Inc. 2000-2003

Assistant Coach, Manchester West Junior Soccer League, 2000-2003

Assistant Coach, Manchester West Junior Deb Softball League, 2000

Member, Allocations Committee, United Way of Greater Manchester, 1998-2003
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CiTY OF MANCHESTER ACTIVITIES

Acting Director, City of Manchester Welfare Department, 2018

CO'Chair, Mayor's Opiold Task Force, 2018

Mentor, City of Manchester Leadership Academy, 2016 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester 911 Ambulance Review Committee, 2013 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester Enterprise Resource Planning Committee, 2012 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester Labor / Management Committee, 2011 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester Local Emergency Planning Committee, 2011 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester Refugee and Immigrant Integration Task Force, 2010 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness, 2010 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester Quality Council, 2008 - 2018

Appointee, City of Manchester AFSCME Sick Leave Bank, 2006 - 2018

CATHOUC MEDICAL CENTER ACTIVmES

Millworks Condominium Association 2019 - Present (President 2020 - Present)

Human Trafficking Committee, 2019- Present

Behavioral Health Clinical Learning Collaborative, 2019 - Present

CMC / DH Behavioral Health Integration Committee, 2019 - Present -

CMC Board of Directors, Ethics & Mission Committee, 2018 - Present

Environment of Care Committee, 2018 - Present

Cancer Committee, 2018 - Present

Emergency Management Committee, 2018- Present

Substance Use Disorder Strategy Group, 2018 - Present

Wilson Street Condominium Association Board Member, 2018 - Present

Lung Cancer Steering Committee, 2018 - Present

POLST Advisory Committee, 2018 - Present

Preventatlve Food Pantry Advisory Committee, 2018 - Present

Ethics Consultative Committee, 2018- Present

Gift of Heart Campaign 2018 -Present

Holiday Turkey Distribution 2018 - Present

CONTINUING EDUCATION

National League of Cities - Mayor's Institute on Opiolds, Boston, MA 2018

CMC's Annual Summit on the Treatment of Opioid-dependent Patients and Pain, 2017, 2018

500 Cities; Local Data for Better Health, CDC Foundation, RWJ Foundation, 2016

Culture of Health Prize Award Learning Event, Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 2016

Government Leaders Development Program, Tuck Executive Education at Dartmouth, 2016

Roadmaps to Health Aaion Awards Convening, Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 2016

New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services, Educational Seminars, 2010 - 2016

Avoid, Deny, Defend Training, City of Manchester Police Department, 2016
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Culture and Cultural Effectiveness, Southern New Hampshire AHEC, 2015

American Public Health Association Annual Meeting, Boston, MA, 2013

Reasonable Suspicion Supervisory Training, City of Manchester Human Resources, 2010

ICS 300, MGT 313, Incident Management/Unified Command, Texas A&M, 2008

M6T -100 WMO Incident Management/Unified Command Concept, Texas A&M, 2008

ICS 100, ICS 200, US Department of Homeland Security, 2008

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Primary Care Conference, 2007

Public Health Preparedness Summit, National Association of City & County Health Officials, 2006

National Incident Management Systems (NIMS), US Department of Homeland Security, 200S

Healthcare Leadership & Administrative Decision-Making in Response to Weapons of Mass

Destruction (WMD) Incidents, US Federal Emergency Management Agency, 2004

Forensic Epidemiology, US Department of Justice & US Centers for Disease Controi, 2003

BioDefense Mobilization Conference, University of Washington, School of Public Health, 2002

Emergency Response to Domestic Biological Incidents, US Department of Justice & LSU, 2001

Financial Skills for Non-Financial Managers, University of New Hampshire, 2001

National Environmental Health Association Annual Education Conference, NEHA, 2000

Management Perspectives for Public Health Practitioners, US Centers for Disease Control, 2000

Investigating Foodbome Illnesses, US Food & Drug Administration, 1999

Environmental Health Risks to Children, US Environmental Protection Agency, 1998

Food Microbiological Control, US Food & Drug Administration, 1998

Computer Assisted Modeling for Emergency Operations, Harvard School of Public Health, 1997

Local Radon Coordinators Network Training, NACCHO, 1996

Introduction to Indoor Air Quality, US EPA & Harvard University, 1995

Hazard Analysis & Critical Control Point (HACCP), US Food & Drug Administration, 1995

Safety Measurement, Bloodbome Pathogens, Confined Space Entry, UNH, 1994

Environmental Health Sciences, US Centers for Disease Control & Prevention, 1992

Field Description of Soils, University of New Hampshire, 1992

Kentucky Lead Training Workshop, Jefferson County Health Department, 1991

Foodbome Disease Control, US Centers for Disease Control & Prevention, 1991

Lead Paint Inspectors Course, PCG PRO-Tech Services, Massachusetts, 1990



Jennifer Higgins Pitre

Work 603.665.2569

Kingston, NH 03848

SUMMARY

EXPERIENCE

Dynamic and enthusiastic professional with 27 years of fundraising experience in healthcare, higher
education and social services with an expertise in major gifts. Strong track record of creating authentic
relationships with colleagues, donors, and advisors. Takes pride - and much enjoyment - in helping
donors achieve their philanthropic dreams. Possesses excellent verbal and written communication skills.

November 2017 to Present
Vice President of Philanthropy

Catholic Medical Center

Manchester, NH

Catholic Medical Center (CMC) is a nonprofit acute-care hospital and regional health system with 3,000
employees. Recruited to build a "culture of philanthropy" by working with the Board, Senior Leadership,
providers, staff and volunteers. Accomplishments include:
•  Growing annual fundraising by more than 50% through individual and foundation giving, special

events, and employee giving

•  Conducting a comprehensive campaign planning study and launching the "Building with Heart
Campaign" in 2019, successfully raising over $22 million, including a $15 million gift and multiple
six and seven-figure gifts

•  Creating a grateful patient program, resulting in a 20% increase in donor acquisition
•  Revamping the organization's Volunteer Services department and significantly improving

volunteer and staff engagement and satisfaction
•  Developing unique and meaningful donor stewardship opportunities and cultivation events

February 2008 to November 2017
Vice President of Development

Granite United Way

Offices in Manchester, Concord, Lebanon, Berlin,
Plymouth, Littleton, Laconia, and Portsmouth, NH

Managed 15 regional staff in the Development department of New Hampshire's largest United Way,
raising over $12 million annually. Grew the organization's Leadership Giving Society (gifts of $1,000 -
$9,999) from 900 to nearly 1,200 supporters and the "Alexis de Tocqueville Sodety" (gifts of $10,000 or
more) from 48 to 75 donors.

Other achievements and responsibilities:

•  Increased the number of corporate donors through creative campaigns including a "Get on the
Bus" matching gift challenge that recruited 50 new corporate donors in two years

•  Managed the President's portfolio and created donor correspondence and major gift proposals
•  Oversaw the organization's first wealth screening, developed prioritization strategies, and

managed all prospect research and moves management meetings

April 2002 to January 2008
Senior Associate Director of Maior Gifts

University of New Hampshire Foundation, Inc,
Durham, NH

Hired as an Associate Director during "The Next Horizon: $100 Million for UNH" campaign and promoted
to Senior Associate Director. Traveled extensively to communicate University initiatives to corporate and
individual stakeholders. Managed a portfolio of 200+ prospects - cultivated, solicited and stewarded
outright and planned gifts of $25,000 or more. Served as a mentor to new major gift staff. Collaborated
with the President and Senior Leaders to develop effective fundraising and stewardship plans.



Vice President. Marketing & Communlcatlorts

United Way ofMenimack Valley, Inc

Ward Hill, MA
December 1998 to April 2002

Hired as a Communications Specialist and promoted to Vice President in 2000. Responsible for the
development and implementation of a year-round marketing and communications program to support a
$5.1 million campaign. Successfully developed content delivered compelling donor communications and
created the organization's first website. Also managed key corporate donor relationships.

Training & Community Relations Manager

Walmart Logistics

Raymond, NH
June 1996 to December 1998

Completed a comprehensive three month management training program and successfully managed 40
employees as a Receiving Manager and was promoted to facility Training Manager in 1997. Received
additional management training at the corporate headquarters in Bentonville, Arkansas. Also
responsible for community relations, allocating corporate donations, and coordinating internal
charitable initiatives Including the United Way campaign.

TEACHING & Adjunct Faculty

ADVISING University ofNew Hampshire

Durham, NH

September 2005 to May 2011

Taught an "Introduction to Business" course to 25 undergraduates which provided an overview of
accounting, business administration, public speaking, management, marketing, computer information
systems, entrepreneurship and corporate social responsibility.

Fundraising Advisor

Simmons College

Boston, MA

September2007 to May 2012

Served as a subject matter expert for Or. Claudia Momer's, "Academic libraries" graduate course.
Instructed students how to create compelling major gift proposals.

EDUCATION Master of Business Administration

Bachelor of Arts in Communication

University of New Hampshire
University of New Hampshire

COMMUNITY Member, Bedford, NH Rotary Club

& LEADERSHIP Member, UNH Entrepreneurship Center Advisory Board
Member, Camp Huckins Development Committee

Member, UNH Manchester Advisory Board

Legislative Liaison, National Alopecia Areata Foundation

Founder, Gina Trafton Memorial Scholarship
Member, UNH Alumni Association Board of Directors (2 terms)
Leadership New Hampshire Graduate - Class of 2017

2020

2018

2018

2018

2013

2020

2012

2016

2005

1995

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

Present

2018

2017



Andrew H Watt, MD FACEP

Andrew. watt@cmc-nh. org

Professional Summary

Information Technology Physician Executive

A strategic, thought-leading IT Physician Executive, Chief Information Officer (00), and Chief Medical

Information Officer (CMIO) with experience managing all components of the IT division for a New Hampshire

Health System. Knowledgeable working In multi-hospital environments with independent and affiliated multi-
specialty provider groups across southern New Hampshire. Proven business executive with 14 years' experience

of better than budget performance, low turnover rate, advanced automation, and smart strategic growth,

influential leader within the State of New Hampshire on informatics topics such as population health,

information exchange, behavioral health, integration, health care/privacy law, and the opiold alsls.

Continues to provide dlnlcal care to the patients of New Hampshire in practice of Emergency Medicine.

Core Skills

Oinlcally active board-certified Emergency Physician

More than 10 years' experience working as a Chief Information Officer (ao)

Held dual appointments as CtO and CMIO

Experience with multi-hospital health systems

EMR Vendors & Products including Soarian, Cerner, Allsciipts, and Epic

Success leading IT governance In complex matrixed systems

Aligning technolc^, information security, and business strategy

Building effective teams and Individuals' talents

Operating complex business units on a budget

Implementing and managing technology and organizational initiatives

Engaging stakeholders and customers

Negotiating and managing complex vendor relationships & contracts

Cyber security and compliance

Telehealth technology implementation

Leading large EMR and software projects

Certified Epic Physician Builder

Physidan Leadership

Professional Experience

Granite One Health (GOH) - Catholic Medical Center (CMC)

A $750-mililon Health System Network based entirely in New Hampshire. Partners Include Muggins Hospital,
Monadnock Community Hospital, and Catholic Medical Center (CMC). The system employees more than 4000

people, 950 physicians, and operates more than 380 inpatient beds. The flagship site In the group, CMC

located in Manchester, New Hampshire, is a BSO-bed acute care hospital with a 700 provider medical staff.

February 2020 1



Chief Information Officer (GIG), Qiief Medical information Officer (CMIO), Vice President Information

Services (IS), Catholic Medical Center 08/2021-Present.

Responsible for all aspects of Information Technology and Clinical Engineering at CMC. Also responsible for

supporting GOH's enterprise network which serves a common application ERR and EMR portfolio across

CMC and Hugglns Hospital. Working to modernize, stabilize, and uplift the current technical infrastructure.

Within one year, led successful project to increase performance in some areas of the EMR by over 25%.

Improved EMR stability by 40% including changes to voice recognition tools via partnership with the vendor.
This new version introduced spedficatly for CMC welcomed major improvements in word recognition

making the product widely re-accepted by providers. Experience working with multiple complex products

and vendors including Kronos, Orade Qoud, and Allscripts Sunrise Enterprise (Ambulatory/lnpatient/Rev

Cycle). As CMIO, I continue to practice Emergency Medidne in CMCs main ED and I serve on CMCs Medical
Staff.

Tegria • Cumberland Consulting Group

A leading healthcare consulting and strategic advisory firm founded in 2004. Consistently rated in the KLAS

top 10 for HIT Enterprise Implementation Leadership services. Known for offering vendor agnostic full

lifecycle healthcare software advisory services and partial spedalized health IT outsourdng.

Leadership Physician Consultant, 12/2020-7/2022

Provide strategic consultation and implementation advice to healthcare executives (CMIO/CMO/CIO) in

organizations contracting, implementing, or considering transitioning EMR solutions. Subject matter

expert on clinical workflows and physidan tools within the Epic EMR. Have advised executives from health

systems using or moving to Allscripts, Epic, and Cemer.

SolutionHealth (SH), Bedford, New Hampshire

Southern New Hampshire Health (SNHH) and Elliot Health System (EHS) merged to form a new $18 corporate

parent to both health systems, called SolutionHealth. The organization is focused on providing scale, high

value, and specialty health care to the residents of New Hampshire and northern Massachusetts. As a
condition of the merger, all Information Technology and Systems became a function of SolutionHealth.

Chief Information Officer (QO), Vice President Division of Technolc^ and Information Services (DOT.iS)

for Southem New Hampshire Health, SolutionHealth 05/2019-12/2020.

Managed several combined teams of more than 100 people working to refuel (re-implement) Epic EMR to

latest release and implemented Epic at Southern New Hampshire Health using SolutionHealth's Epic

enterprise license. In addition to this $50M implementation, led teams consolidating application and

infrastructure portfolios as well as deploying new corporate budget and financial systems. Continued to

manage all Southem New Hampshire IT budgets in this new matrixed corporate environment. Reported

to SNHH CEO and triad division leadership with SH Corporate QO and EHS ClO. Key responsibilities

Included Informatics, Training, Data Analytics, Regional Integrated Delivery Network/ACO, and

Infrastructure.

Continue to practice medicine as a staff physician in the Emergency Department of Southern New

Hampshire Health.

Attending Physidan, Emergency Services, SolutionHealth - Southern New Hampshire Medical Center

Emergency Department, 08/08-Present. Now Per Diem

Experienced board-certified ED physidan working in ~45K patient per year department. Currently cares

for patients of all ages in the Medical Center (trauma (level-3), stroke (gold), and cardiac reperfusion
center). Credentiaied in bedside ultrasound for ED skills such as trauma and vascular access. Diagnose

and treat numerous conditions in patients presenting with minor ailments to those requiring aitical care
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and life support. Works with medical students (UNE) and PA students (MGH-Harvard) as a supervisor

during shifts. Great relationships with colleagues and nursing staff. Completes records in a timely

manner and has high patient satisfaction scores.

After leaving Southern New Hampshire Health, I was asked to remain on the medical staff. I continue to

retain full clinical privileges.

Southern New Hampshire Health, Nashua, New Hampshire

A $400M New Hampshire Health System comprised of the Medical Center and Foundation Medical Partners,

the largest multi-specialty provider group in New Hampshire.

Chief Information Officer (GIG), Chief Medical Information Officer (CMIO), Vice President Information

Technology and Services (ITS), 09/2009-05/2019 {transltioned with merger).

Provided strategic and operational management of ail information technology systems. Managed a budget
of more than $14M In expenses and acquired more than $1M of new hardware and technologies annually.
Supervised a team of more than 60 people supporting more than 2000 end-point devices, 300 applications

including Cerner and GE EMRs, and 2S00 end-user customers. Worked to acquire and independently license

Epic for the organization before the merger. Leader in major EMR conversion at SNHH to Epic. Reported to

the CEO and served as executive on both the System and Medical Center Senior Management teams.

Selected Acromplishments

•  Created a single IT organization at the Health System by consolidating the Medical Center's technology

team, the nursing clinical informatics team, and the Foundation Medical Partners IT and EMR

Implementation groups.

•  Developed an initiative focused on adopting best practices. Led to SNHH being recognized as a technical

leader among hospitals within New Hampshire and received the nationally recognized 2017 Most Wired

Award.

•  Supported customer service focused leadership by providing IT staff-specific service excellence training,

introducing innovative applications to improve project transparency and by promoting a culture which

encouraged soliciting feedback at all levels.

•  Led implementations of CMS certified EMR technology generating more than $1M in annual incentives
payments and avoided reimbursement penalties in the MIPS/MU/PIP programs.

•  Introduced new security technologies, developed and promoted risk awareness and education leading

to a phishlng susceptibility risk of < 2%.

•  Conducted EMR replacement vendor RFP/RFI process including stakeholder demonstrations and vendor

contract negotiations with Cerner and Epic.

•  Effectively managed vendor expenses, resulting in IT expense < S% of Health System expenses.

•  Negotiated key technolc^ and software contracts including multi-year multi-million-dollar
engagements with Microsoft and Cerner.

Chief Medical Information Officer (CMIO), Associate Vice President of Medical Affairs for Informatics,
09/2008-09/2009

•  Continued this role concurrently after being named the System's ClO.

•  Worked on the dinlcal aspects of technolc^ projects. For example, made recommendations to the ClO

regarding strategic software acquisitions; championed technology projects to improve patient safety
and care quality.
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•  Developed agreements with Foundation Medical Partners and other local health care organizations,

such as the Lahey Qinic, to allow providers real-time view-only access Into their EMRs, to improve

patient care and safety.

•  Introduced 'IT rounding', a concept like dinical rounds where IT leaders meet with hospital dinical staff

to get feedback, and to inspect equipment for overall health and function.

Johns Hopkins Medicine and InstKutions (JHMI), Baltimore, Maryland

Internationally recognized medical college, university, and academic health system with 6 hospitals and 4

community health and surgical centers. The main medical campus located in downtown Baltimore is the

home of Johns Hopkins Hospital, a 1,154-bed academic medical center recognizing over $2.S biilion dollars in

annual revenue.

Chief Resident, Emergency Medidne, Johns Hopkins Hospital, 07/07-06/08

Managed 35 ED physidans in training, and rotating interns and residents from other spedalties. Elected the

Emergency Medicine Residents' Association (EMRA) representative for the Johns Hopkins System. EMRA is a
national group advocating for physidans in training.

MEDITECH, Medical Information Technologies, Inc., Westwood, Massachusetts

A privately held EMR vendor, reporting $481M in revenue last year, with approximately 25% of the US market
share. Meditedi supports several application platforms across 2400 customers in the US and 22 other

countries.

Senior Application Specialist for Product Development, 8/1999-8/2001.

Managed a product development team which designed a new (software] module for use in Emergency

Departments. The module was dted by Becker's in 2015 as the leader In market share of the ~$600M EDIS

market. One of Meditech's most successful new modules, it was the first to introduce prescription

printing, patient tracking, and a visual display of patients.

Education and Board Certifications Board

Certifications:

ABEM - Emergency Medidne, 2009 (exp 2029)

ABPM-CI - Clinical Informatics, 2016 (exp 2026)

Education:

Emergency Medicine Residency, Johns Hopkins Hospital, Baltimore, Maryland 7/05-6/08

Medical Doctorate, University of Massachusetts, School of Medicine, Worcester, Massachusetts 8/01-6/05

Bachelor of Arts, cum laude, College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, Massachusetts 8/94-6/98
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .

OFFICE OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

HEALTH FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

ANNUAL LICENSE CERTIFICATE

ampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter RSA 151, this annual license certificate Is Issued to:
±CENTER

FREET

03102 .

Subtype: General

ffectlve under the conditions and for the period stated below;

Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

ER,JR

T

Chief Legal Officer
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CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
CUNICAL LABORATORY I^^ROV^MENT A3MENDMENTS

<  ' ' C *

CERTIFICATE OFACGREDifA'nQN

LADORATORYNAME AND ADDRESS

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER LABORATORY
100 MCGREGOR STREET
MANCHESTER. NH 03102

LABORATORY DIRECTOR

CUA. ID NUMBER

- 30D0993032

EFFECTIVE DATE

04/23/2022

EXMRATION DATE

WELDON SANFORP^.D.

Pu««nx to Section 353 oftheRiWl^ Habh ScrActs Aa (42 U5.C 26W
(he eW o«m<xl hbertoiy lo€*ted « iIk odditM ih<n«»!««» <aad «!>«

V  . for the purposes ofpeWbrmlng fabmototjr exm^.netinnt. or pfomum.
TIUs ceniBote xbiU be vidJd untfl the ocplntiJoo date abow, bot b ttiblecr io ftroeaito Uiuitttloo. or other nnetionj(or viobtioa eftbe Act or itie tecuiadaaj ptomulgtted (hereondec

cuomn«mom* mopiMKo

04/22/2024

"  jMonlflueSpnillli Director
Divblon ofCUnlcxl LaboratoryInipiwesncat tc Qttality

,, C^lty dC Safety Orcrright Croup
Cculer for Cllaical Scandatds uid QoaiUy

r.««llt?_032922

ourentty hoM • Certificate of CompUance or Ccrdflcatc ofAOTedltation, below fa a Urt of the bbprotocy
apecUiaes/subspedaltica yoa are certified to per&xm and tfidr effd^ye datej

LAB OATION iCODm iWKCl'iVEDATE

BACTERIOLO<5Y(110)

MYCOBACTERIOLOGY (115)

MYCOLOGY (120)

PARASrrOLOGY(130)

VIROLOGY (140)

SYPHIUS SEROLOGY (210)

GENERAL IMMUNOLOGY j^)
ROUTttiE CHEMISTRY (310)

UR1NALYS1S (320)

ENDOCRINOLOGY (330) i

TOXICOLOGY (340) _

HEMATOLOGY(400)

ABO & RH GROUP (510)

04/23/^

03/05/2010

04/23/2002

04/23/2002

08/03/2002

'Oa/Op/2007
04/^002
pA^l2m
04/23/2002

04/23/^

04/23/2002

'"SO v 04/23/2002

04/23/2002

TAB CEimPICATTON fCQDEl BEEOlYEJjAEE

ANRBOOY TRANSFUSION .(620) 04/23/2002

A mBODY NON^TRANSFUSION (530) 04/23/2002

A JTlBObY IDENTIFICATION (540) 04/23/2002
C 5MPATTBIUTYTESTTNG (550) 04/23/2002

H STOPATHOLOGY (610) 11/13/2007

ClTOLOGY(630) 12/22/2009
ctiTOGENETlCS (900) . . "

FOR MORE mPOKMATION ABOUT CUA. VISIT OUR WEBSnE^^WVm^-^V/CUA
ORCONtACT YOUR LOCAL STATE AGENCVT PLEASE SEE THE REVERSE FOR

vnim .<rrATF. AGENCY^ address AND PHONE NUMBER.



Catholic Mpdical Center

Manchester, NH

has been Accredited by
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The Joint Commission
r  ' . , •

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for the

Hospital Accreditation Program'

August 15, 2020
Accreditation is custoniarily valid for up to 36 months.
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Ttic Joint Commission is an independent, not-for-profit national body that oxxntcc-s the safety nnd qoaliiy of health care and
oiJicr sufvicus provided in accredited organizoiions. Infommion about accredited organisations may be provided directly to
The Joint Commission m I-800-994-^10. Iiifomuiiun icgurding uccrcdliatiun and the.accrcdiiaiion performance of
individual organizations can be obtained through The Joint Commission's web site at www.jointcommi^ion.org.
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O :t CATHOUC MEDICAL CEMTERHOSP
5i 100 MCQREQOR ST

S  MANCHESTEa NH 03102-4730
<9

OEAREGSTRATION
NUMBER

TKBREGBTRATTON
EXPIRES

FEE
PAID

AN0443060 $731

SCHBRHES .'^^RESSACnvnY ISSUE IMTE

2.2N, HOSPrrAli?Ci:tNIC-COlXECTOR)7-.28-2020
3.3NA5

CATHOUC MB>tCM:CB{7ER HOSP
PHARMACY DBPARTMB^
lOOMCQREGORST .

MANCHESTERVH-03102-3730

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REOSTRATION CGRTTFICATE
UWTEO STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
ORUQ ENFORCEMafTAOMIKlSTRATION

WLSHINOTON D.C. 20S37

SecOoRS 304 Bfxl 1008 (21 USC 624 snd 9S8) of (he ControOdd
Sutatanees Act of 1970, os smtndad, piovfdo that the Attorney
General may revotce or suspend a rcglstraSan to roamjtaetura,
dbtrOiute, dbpSRse, knport or expoft a oontroOed eubstance,

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE ON CHANGE OF
OWNERSHIP, CONTROL, LOCATION, OR BUSINESS ACTIVmr,
AND rris NOT VALID AFTER THE BTtRATlON DATE.

r«

g

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REQSTRATION CERTIRCATE
UNTTHD STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

.  . DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMtNlSTRATtON
'  WASHINGTON D.O 20637

OEAREOtSTRATtON
NUUBSt

rs
PAID

AN0443060 $731

scKBOtJiES /SiMfy? tissue DATE

2.2N. .-^i^KOSPllJSikyGLIfi^C-COkLEOTOR <07-28-2020
3.3NA5 . %

:y

PHARMACi^DEPARTMENT
100 MCGREGORS "
MANCHESTER. NH 03^02-3730

SecCioRs 304 and 1008 (21 USC 624 end 958) of (he
CcntroQed Substanoea Act of 1970. es emended,
provide that (be Attorney General may revoke or
ausp^ a registration to manu&etare, distrOMite.
dispense, import or export a oontroOed sutrstance.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE ON CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP. CONTROL. LOCATION. OR BUSINESS ACnVlTY.
AND IT IS NOT VALID AFTER THE EXPIRATION DATE.



ACR*
American Colleee of

RADiamGY

^xmvxcnn

PET Services of

Catholic Medical Center

100 McGregor Street
Manchester, New Hampshire 03102

were surveyed by the
Committee on Nuclear Medicine Accreditation oftiie

Commission on Quality and Safety

The following unit was approved

Siemens Biograph Horizon 2020

For

Oncology, Cardiac

Acoeditedfiom:

October 14,2020 through June 12,2023

CHAIR, COMMmEE ON NUCLEAR MEDICINE ACCREDITATION PRESIDENT, AMERICAN COLLEGE OF RADIOLOGY

PETAP# 50994-02



ci±» I Accredited
Catholic Medical Center

ing been ̂ sessed by AABB, has been found to meet the requirements

ipplicable Standards of this organization and therefore is granted this

FiCATE OF ACCREDiTATION

for the following activities:

transFusipn Activities

itness whereof the undersigned, being duly authorized, have caused this

Certificate to be issued and the AABB Corporate Seal to be affixed.

Effective Dates:

July 01, 2022 - June 30, 2024

President, AABB

Chair, Accreditation PrograiTi Conunittee
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Alex Walker S 643,750.00

Ted Dudley S 502,657.82

Ron Doncaster S 369,526.00

Medical Information Officer Andrew Watt $ 412,000.00

r Jennifer Cassin $ 284,064.88

Jason Cole S 338,391.00

twork & Integration Carolanne O'Sulllvan S 369,490.00

er Michael Gilbert S 554,268.75

Jennifer Pitre $ 214,593.00

s Merryll Rosenfeld S 285,035.00

on Tim Soucy S 185,000.00



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

Cor 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shaU consist of:

a) Any sub^ance or item whose possession is unlawful for the person or the general public
possessing it including but not limited to:

(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any ftreann, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a
person, animal or target

d) Any m^losive device, bomb, grenade, (^mamitc or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these
items.

e) Any diug hem, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in
sud) quantities that a person would suffer intoxication or illness if the entire available
quantity were consumed alone or in combination whh other available substances.

f) Any intoxicating beverage.
g) Sums ofmoneyornego^le instruments in excess of $100.00.
h) Lock-picking kits or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

surreptitious entry or exit
i) The following types of hems in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehicle, but

shall not be contraband stored in a secured vehicle:

(1) knives and knife-like weapons, clubs and club-like weapons,
(2) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription drugs unless prior approval is

granted in writing 1^ the facility Warden/designee, or Director/designee,
(3) mrqrs of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of

the facilities, hs grounds or its vicinhy,
<4) pornography or pictures of vishors or prospective visitors undressed,
(5) radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on the police band in the possession

of other than law enforcement officials,

(6) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the
person to whom propedy issued,

(7) ropes, saws, gra(^iing hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches,
cutting wheels or string rope or line impr^nated whh cutting material or similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(8) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers ̂ ich could
facilitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transport, introduction, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the commissioner of
corrections or his designec is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any per^n or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall cortstitute implied consent to search for contraband. In such
cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to
the search or immediate^ leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual searches in situations where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest

b) All motor v^lclcs parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the removed.
Custodial personnel shall check to insure that vehicles are locked and shall visually inspect
the plain view interior of the vehicles. Vehicles discovered unlock^ shall be searched to
insure that no contraband is present Contraband discovered during searches shidl be
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discovered during plain view inspections.

c) All persons entering the facilities to visit with residents or staff, or to perform services at the
facilities or to tour the facilities shall be subject to having their persons checked. All items
and clothing carried into the in^itution shall be searched for contraband.

Alex Walker. President \ -31 20-Ad
Name Signature Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. Engaging in any of the following activities with persons under departmental control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, including correspondence, other than the performance of your services
for which you have been contracted.

b. Giving or sell ing of anything
c. Accepting or buying anyditng

2. Any person providing contract services who is found to be under the influence of Intoxicants or drugs
will be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to NH Department
of Corrections property.

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of
Administrative Rules, Part COR 307 is a violation of the rules and frie laws of the State of New
Hampshire and may result in l^al action under RSA 6^:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the instructions of
the escorting staff or report immediately to die closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Corrections are designed for the safety of
the staff, visitors and residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of necessary movement
and activtties. If unsure of any policy and procedure, ask for immediate assistance from a staff
member.

s*

6. Harassrhent and dismmination directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national
origin or age are ill^al under federal and state laws and will not be tolerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to removal for failing to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you are responsible to the facility administratpr, and by your
signature below, agree to abide by all the rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the NH
D^artinent of Corrections and the State ofNew Hampshire.

8. In lieu of Contracted staff participating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor through the
Commissioner or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor to
supplement this reiquirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, policies and
procedures of the Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshire;

Alex Walkcfj President yf _f_ \'5i 2n3
Name Signature Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CQRRECTIQNS

CONFIDe^nALITY OF IMFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that all employed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all
rules, regulations and laws of the State ofNew Hampshire and the NH Department of Corrections that
relate to the confidentiality of records and all other privileged information.

I further agree diat all employed by or subcontracted through the organization I represmt a;e not to
discuss any confidential or privileged information with family, friends or any persons not
professionally involved with the NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or residents of the NH
Dq)artment of corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH Department of Corrections* employ
approaches any of the prganization*s employees or subcontractors and requests inforihation, the
staft/employees of the organization I represent will immediately contact their supervisor, notify the
NH Department of Corrections, and file an incident report or statement report with the appropriate
NH Department of Corrections rquesenCative.

Any violation of the above rô  result in immediate termination of any and all contractual obligations.

Alex Walker, President 1 31
Name ^ Signature Date



NH OtI'AR I MICNI Ol- COKKl* Cl lONS

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 10^191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, **Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and
"Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions

a. *Ti<'^'phflted Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

b. "Data AppTcpation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

c. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care.operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191.

e. "Individual" have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal rq}reseatative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

f. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 aoid 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United. Slat» Department of Health and.
Human Services.

g; "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health information"
in 45 CFR Section 164jOI, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or
on bdialf of Covered Entity.

b. "Reouired bv Law" have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR Section
164301-

i. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Sovices or his/her
designee.

j. "Security Rule" ̂ all in^ the Swurity Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Infonnation at 45 CFR.Paii 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

Ic dither Definitions - All tenns not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(H Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

Slate ofNH, Depertmeat ofCorrecHota c/S
Divisiett of Mdleal and Forensic Sendees

^  Vendort



a. Business Associate ̂ all not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement
Furtbo', the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, ofllc^, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursoanl to die tenns set fordi in paragraph d. below; or
(iiQ for data aggregation purposes for the healdi care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party.
Business Associate must obtain^ prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that sudi PHI will be held confidentially and used or fiirUier disclosed only as required by law
orfor the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an a^eement from such third party
to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it
has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless sudi disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entify so that Covded Entity has an oppOitunify
to object to the disclosure and to seek ̂ propriate relief If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, die
Business Associate shall refrain fiom disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security ̂ eguards of PHI pmsumit to the Privacy and
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be boimd by such additional restrictions and not disclose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3\ ObligatloDs and Activities of Bosiness Associate
a. Business A^cjate shall rqioit to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of fhc Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclostn^ or security incident

b. Business Associate ̂ aJl use administrative, ji^ysical and technical safeguards that reasonably and
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected bf^lth inforinatioh, in
electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other <hnn as
permitted by the Agreement

c. Business Associate sh^ make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of detennining Covered Entity's compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

(L Business Associate sbali require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entify shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Contractor's business associate agreements widi Contractor's intended business associates, who will be

State e/NU, Department ofCorreahns Pa^
Dlylsian of Afedleai and Fareasie Services

Vendor InlUalr: /
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receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who ̂ 11 be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with the tenns of the Agreement

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to nn in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incoiporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall documoit snch disclosures of PHI and information related to such disdosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by aii individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 ClETl S^on 164.528.

I Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a reque^ for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting- of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, die Business As^iate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Birsiness Associate to violate EOPAA and the Privacy and Security Riile, the Buriness Associate shall
mstead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of tennination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, m spewed by Covered lEntity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agr^ment, and shall not Main any copies or hack-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not fe^ible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in die Agre^ent, Business Associate shall continue to extend the prote^ons of die Agreement,
to such PHI and limit frudier u^: wd disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the retum or
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PIH. If ̂vered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or ail PHI, the Busing Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity diat the PHI has been destroyed.

Ml Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any dianges or limitation(s) in its Hotice of Privacy
Practices provid^ to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

State efNH, DtpartmeitttffCerrealons
DMaoa of Medical aad Forensic Servtces
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b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly nobfy Business Associate of ahy restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has aj^eed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

Termibation for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately lerminale
the Agreement or provide an oj^rtunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
rimftframft speclfted by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible. Covered Entity shdl rqwrt the violation to the Sectary.

(6) hCsceUaneoos

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not. otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time to
time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Biminess Associate agree to take such action as is necessary
to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the changes in fee requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal
and state law.

c. Data Ownerslup. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on bdialf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in fee Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application feereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this md the terms
and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in feis Exhibit I regarding fee use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of fee Agreement in section 3 k, the defend and
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of fee Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABILny AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREI

State of NH, Oepanment of ̂mcdons
Divisiait ofM^ad end ForettA Servica
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NH Dcpartnicnt of Corrections Catholic Medical Center

State of New Hampshire Agency Name Contractor Name

SigHature of Authorized Representative Contractor Representative Signature

Helen Hanks Alex Walker

Authori^ DOC Representative Name Authorized Contractor Repres«itative Name

Commissioner President

Authorized DOC Representative Title

Date

Authorized Contractor Representative Title

Date

8*5 or

Veodor loltisU!

StBte of NH, Depertmtat efCorreetioHS
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888-908-6609

TDD ACCESS; 1-800-736-2964

www.nh.g6v/nhdoc

HELEN E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON

DIRECTOR

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Prison Rape EUmiration Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule August 2012) is a federal law
establiriied to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
correctiooal systems and detention fecilities. This Act applies to all correctional fBcilities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve
the following conduct:
• Resident-on-residcnt sexual assault

• Residcnt-on-iesident abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
information gathering. The NH Department of Corrections h^ zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offeaders and recognizes these offenders as crime victims. Due to this recognition and
adherence to the fedeml Prison Rape ElimihatioD Act (PRJBA) of2003, the NH Department of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:
• Contractor/subcontractor misconduct

• Contractor/subcontractor harassment, assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Departm^ of Coire^ons, I acknowledge that 1 have been
provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of2003 Public Law 108-79—Sept. 4. 2003 and
have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor ofthe NH Dq>artmeot of Corrections, sexual
conduct betweea Contractbr and/or Subcontnictor and offenders is prohibiteii Sebcual harassmeot or sexual
misconduct involving an offender cw be a violatioh of NH RSA 632-A:2,632-A:3 and 632-A:4, Chapter
632-A: Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecutioiL

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Dq).artment of Coirections, I understand that I shall mform
ail employees of die Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies conceniing PREA, RSA 632-
A:2, 632-A:3, RSA 632-A:4 and departmental policies induing NHDOC Administrative Rules.
Conduct and Confidentiality Iriformation regarding my conduct, Fqxirting of inddents and treatment Of
those undd the supervision of the NH Dd)artment of Corrections. (Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A, and
Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons Providing Contract Services, Confidentiality of
Information Agreement).

Name (print):

Signature:

Alex Walker iddit

(Name ntract ngnato

(Signature of Contract Signatory)

Promoling Public Satety ndlh Respccl. ProrcsdonaDsm, Dedlcatioo asd Courage as One Team
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03S02-1806

603-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908^609

TDD Access: 1-800-738-2964

www.nh.gov/ahdoc

Helen £. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin H. Maddaus

Director

May 11,2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

G&C

Pending
Approved June 24, 2020
Item # Item # 94

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) to enter into a contract Agreement with Catholic Medical
Center (VC# 177240), 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102, in the amount of $2,850,000.00, for the
provision of Inpatient & Ou^atient Hospital/Medical services, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval for the period beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, with the option to renew for one (I)
additional period of up to two (2) year(s). 100% General Funds.

Funding is available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-8234-101-500729 as follows with the
authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the Fiscal Year through the Budget OfBce if necessary and justified.
Funding for FY 2022-2023 is contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds.

Catholic Medical Center

FY22 I FY23 |Account Description FY21 Total ]
02-46-46465010-8234-101-500729 | Medical - Dental | 950,000.00 | 950,000.00 | 950.000.00 | 2,850.000.00 1

Total Contract Amount $  2,850,000.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is for the provision of Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services for the residents of the
Concord Area consisting of the NH State Prison for Men (NHSP-M), Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU), Residential
Treatment Unit (RTU), NH Correctional Facility for Women (NHCF-W) and the Commtmity Corrections of
Concord and Manchester, NH.

The NHDOC utilizes hospital services for short-term medical treatment for residents having an acute illness or
injury that is beyond the scope of primary care services provided by the medical staff within the prison facility.

Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism. Collaboration and Accountability
Page I of2



These services include inpatient surgery, medical services and ou^atient procedures such as ambulatory surgery,
diagnostic and emergency services.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was posted to the NHDOC website www.nh.gov/nhdoc/business/rfp for eight (8)
consecutive weeks and five (5) potential vendors were notified of the solicitation. As a result of the publication,
one (1) potential vendor responded by submitting a proposal. After the review and evaluation of the proposal and
in accordance with the RFP terms and conditions, the NHDOC awarded the contract, in the amount of

$2,850,000.00, to the incumbent. Catholic Medical Center.

The RFP was scored utilizing a consensus methodology by a four (4) person evaluation committee which
consisted of the following NHDOC employees: Paula L. Mattis, Director of Medical & Forensic Services,
Bemadette Campbell, Deputy Director of Medical & Forensic Services, Ryan Landry, Director of Nursing,
Medical & Foroisic Services and Kalendonia Dubrey, Administrator II, Medical & Forensic Services.

Respectfully Submitted,

len £. H

Commissioner

Piomotmg Public Safety (hxou^ lolcgrity. Respect, PiofcssionaUsiQ, ColIaboratioQ aod Accountability
Page 2 of2
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF MEDICAL & FORENSIC
SERVICES

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

RFP Bid Evaluation and Summary
Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services

NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Helen M. Hanks

Commissioner

Paulo L. Mattis

Director

Proposal Receipt and Review:

•  Proposals will be reviewed to initially determine if minimum submission requirements have been met. The
review will verify that the proposal was received before the date and time specified, with the correct
number of copies, the presence of all required signatures, and that the proposal is sufficiently responsive to
the needs outlined in the RFP to permit a complete evaluation. Failure to meet minimum submission
requirements will result in the proposal being rejected and not included in the evaluation process.

•  The Department will select a group of personnel to act as an evaluation team. Proposals will not be
publicly opened. Upon receipt, the proposal information will be disclosed to the evaluation committee
members only.

•  The Department uses a consensus scoring methodology to evaluate submitted Proposals. The Department
reserves the right to waive any minor irregularities as that it considers not material to the proposal.

•  The RFP does not commit the Department to award a Contract. The Department reserves the right to reject
any and all Proposals; to cancel the RFP; and to seek new proposals under a new solicitation process.

Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

•  Proposals will be evaluated based upon the proven ability of the respondent to satisfy the requirements of
the evaluation criteria. Specific criteria are:

a. Technical Proposal - 200 points
b. Cost Proposal - 800 points

•  Awards will be made to the responsive Vendor(s) whose proposals are deemed to be the most advantageous
to the State, taking into consideration all evaluation factors in section F of NHDOC 20-03-GFMED RFP.

a. Contract(s) may be awarded to a Bidder submitting a response that demonstrates the required
capabilities and approach as identified in the RFP and does not reduce the current functions of the
Department.

Evaluation Team Members:

a. Paula L. Mattis, Director of Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
b. Bemadette Campbell, Deputy Director of Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
c. Ryan Landry, Director of Nursing, Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
d. Kalendonia DuBrey, Administrator II, Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections

Promoting Public Safety tlirough Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Aecountabilily

Division ofMedical & Forensic Services RFP 20'03'GFMED, closing date: 3/20/2020



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF MEDICAL & FORENSIC
SERVICES

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-5610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

RFP Scoring Matrix
Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services

NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Helen M. Hanks

Commissioner

Paula L. Mattis

Director

Respondents:

•  Catholic Medical Center

Manchester, NH

Scoring Matrix Criteria:

•  Proposals were evaluated based on the proven ability of the respondents to satisfy the provisions set forth in
the Scope of Services in the most technical and cost-effective manner.

1. Technical Proposal - 200 points
2. Cost Proposal - 800 points

NHDOC 20-03-GFMED RFP Scoring Matrix

Evaluation Criteria

RFP

Weight
Point

Value

Catholic Medical

Center

Technical Proposal

Executive Summary 100 100

Organizational Capability 100 100

Cost Proposal

Inpatient Hospital Services 100 80

Emergency and Urgent Care Services 175 150

Outpatient Hospital Services 200 175

Rate Adjustments 75 65

Hospital Claims Processing 100 100

Physician Services 50 50

Physician Services Claims Processing 50 50

Other Services at Discounted Rates 50 50

Total 1000 920

Contract Award:

Catholic Medical Center

} 00 McGregor Street
Manchester, NH 03102

Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF MEDICAL & FORENSIC
SERVICES

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-5610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

Helen M. Hanks

Commissioner

Paula L. Mattis

Director

RFP Evaluation Committee Member Qualifications
Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital Services

NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Paula Mattis FACHE. Division Director, Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. Mattis joined the NH Department of Corrections serving as the Non-Medical Director, Division of Medical & Forensic
Services. Her professional history includes seven years as Administrator of Community Integration at the State of New
Hampshire, New Hampshire Hospital, four years as Chief Operating Officer and three years as Acting CEO. Prior to this
appointment, Ms. Mattis was President and Chief Executive Officer of the Animal Rescue League of New Hampshire. Ms.
Mattis received her Bachelor of Arts degree with honors in Psychology (major) and Sociology (minor) from the University of
Texas and a Master's of Social Work, specializing in Community Mental Health from the University of Illinois.

Bernic Campbell, BS. FT. Deputy Director, Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. Campbell is the Deputy Director for the Division of Medical & Forensic Services for the NH Department of Corrections.
In this capacity, Ms. Campbell's role is to administer and supervise allied health services for the Division of Medical &
Forensic Services and is responsible to ensure public and institutional safety for all sites through staff and contract
monitoring and evaluation. Ms. Campbell is a graduate of UMass Lowell and has involvement with the Department for over
twenty-eight years, most recently in the capacity of Director of Rehabilitation Services. Ms. Campbell's past experience has
included ownership of a physical therapy clinic as well as vast acute care hospital experience.

Ryan Landrv. Director of Nursing. Medical & Forensic Services:

Mr. Landry is the Director of Nursing in the Medical & Forensic Department of the NH Department of Corrections. Mr.
Landry currently organizes and facilitates nursing care throughout all facilities at the NHDOC while supervising members of

the nursing team. He has over 14 years of experience in various nursing roles within the division, including Nurse Specialist

and Nurse Coordinator of both the Northern New Hampshire Correctional Facility and the New Hampshire State Prison for

Men. Mr. Landry is board certified by the American Nurses Credentialing Center with a specialty in Pain Management

Nursing. He received an Associate of Science/Nursing Degree from the White Mountain Community College, as well as a

Bachelor of Science Degree/Nursing and Masters of Science/Nursing Leadership and Management Degree from Western

Governor's University.

Kalendonia Dubrev. Operations Administrator. Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. DuBrey has been working for the NH Department of Corrections for approximately 14 years. She was recently

promoted to the position of Operations Administrator for the Division of Medical and Forensic Services. In her new

capacity, she is the liaison between the division and the different contracts the division oversees. She has a bachelor's degree
in International Relations from the University of Mobile and is currently pursuing certification in medical billing and coding.

Promoting Public Safely through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Aceountability

Division of Medical & Forensic Services RFP20-03-CFMED, dosing date: 3/20/2020



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF MEDICAL & FORENSIC
SERVICES

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

Helen E. Hanks

Commissioner

Pouia L. Mattis

Director

Bidders List

Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services
NHDOC RFP 20-03-GFMED

Catholic Medical Center

Andrea Rathbone, MHSA

Director, Managed Care Contracting
195 McGregor Street
Manchester, NH 03102

(o) 603-668-3545
(o) 603-663-6383
(e) andrea.rathbone@cmc-nh.oru
(w) www.catholicmcdicalcentcr.org

Elliot Hospital
Eva Martel

Director of Managed Care
One Elliot Way

Manchester, NH 03103

(o) 603-669-5300

(o) 603-663-6181
(e) emartci@ellioi-hs.org
(w) www.elliothospital.org

Concord Hospital

Scott Sloane

Senior Vice President & CFO

250 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

(o) 603-227-7000
(o) 603-230-6049
(e) ssloane@crhc.org
(w) www.concordhopital.org

^Southern New Hampshire Health

Michael S. Rose

President & CEO

8 Prospect Street
P.O. Box 2014

Nashua, NH 03061

(o) 603-577-2000
(w) www.snhhealth.org

* Mailed RFP Solicitation

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Lynn Guillette, FHFMA, CPA
VP, Payment Innovations, Contracting «& ACO
One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756

(o) 603-695-2500
(o) 603-653-1255

(e) lvnn.m.guillette@.hitchcock.org
(w) www.dartmoulh-hitchcock.org

Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 11/7/19)

Notice: This agreement and all of Its attachments shall become public uix)n submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is fxivale, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby thutualiy agree follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agen^ Name
NH Department of Corrections

14 Stale Agency Address
105 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301
P.O. Box 1806, Concord. NH 03302

13 Contractor Name

Ca-ihoiic Mcdif*l Center
1.4 Contractor Address

/OP Mc 6irf£jOr
Manchr^-fcr, NH O'^iO'X

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

ffOO- V 37'^6-66

1.6 Account Number

02-46-46-/i650l0-823A-

101-500729

1.7 Completion Dale AUlV
;BcixiiibLi 31, 2022

June 30, 2023

1.8 Price LIrhitation

$2,850."000.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Helen E. Hanks, Commissioner

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271.5603

1.11 Contract^ Si^ature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

JoSeph Pepf, N t>
PrfSidfHi fC^O

1. 13 Slate

H luFytJiw ? 1 m)
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Helen E. Hanks, Commissioner

l.tS Approval by t^he N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ij applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by (he Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifopplicablc)

By, On: 6/9/2020.

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

WPOIY SECRtraiffWmTE «(m

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Mampshire, acting through the agency identified iti block 1.1
("Stale"), engages contractor identified in block- 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT D which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve (his Agreement as indicated in block 1.18,
unless no such approval is required,.in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("Effective.Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to- the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Conlraclpr prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the Slate shall have no liability- to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. '
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legiislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provide in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part, in no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. - In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such--fund5
become available, if ever, and shall have the right fo reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving* the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in the Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The.contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is.incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of-whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-cor any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price.Limitation set-forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.'l In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies, of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations,
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
.property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age,-sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3 The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose orascertaining cprnpliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
-Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel,
necessary to perform the Services; The Contractor warrants that
alt personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreemcrit, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion.Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm of
corporation with whom it is engaged In a combined elTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurerherit,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be.the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall bc final for the State.

Page 2 or4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundw ("Event
ofDefault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure lo submit'any report required hercunder; and/or
8.li3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (3.0) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective.two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8:2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying'the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thait the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period
from the date of such notice' until such time as the State

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set ofT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suficrs byrc^n of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3 No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the.right of the State to enforce each and
all of-the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION^
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in w4iole or in
part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the Sta^e is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of, this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be
identical to those of any Final Report described In the attached
EXHIBIT B. -In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in the Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
reco.rdings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, corhputer programs, corhputer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

IO_.2All data and any property which has been received from the
State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be
returned to the State upon demand or upon termination of this
Agreemefit for any reason.
10.3Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of the Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, etfiployees, agents or members shall haye authority to
bind the State.or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12.ASSICNMENT/DELEGATI0N/SUBC0NTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise irarisfer any"
interest'in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least, fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a trahsaction or^series ofrelated transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%)' or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of-the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services rshall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written noticc.and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and. hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and ail claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Stale shall not be
liable Tor any costs incurred by the Coniraclpr arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of this sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby rcsci-ved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall -survive the
termination of this Agreement. ^

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, ajid shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain -in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an ampunt not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endprsernents approved, for use iri the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTlcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiflcate{s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policies. The ccrtincate(is) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incoi^ratcd herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

jS.l By signing this agreement, die Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the .requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A {"H(orkers'
Compensalion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to ithe requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her-successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached .and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers-
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, of any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16.NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to, the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed- to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire unless no such. approval is required
under this circumstances pursuant to State'law, rule or policy.

18.CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govefried, intefprctcd and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, .and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be appl.ied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agrecrnent'-shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between- the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendrncnt-thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20.THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer-any such benefit.

21.HEADINGS. The headings throughout"the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no.way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. 'SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions.set forth in the attached,EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by rcfCTcncc.

23. SEVERABILITY; In the event any of the provisions of^this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to. any state .or federal law, the remaining provisions of"
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number-of counterparts, each ofwhich shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and superse'des 'all prior
agreements and understandings with respect'to the subject matter
hereto.
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State of NH, Department of Corrections
Inpatient & Outpatient Hospitat Services
CONTRACT NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Special Provisions, Exhibit A
1. FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 7/11/19),

"To modify the Form P-37vGeneral Provisions, Section 1'4. Insurance, paragraph 14..3, by adding,after
the last sentence of the clause to read:,"Cancellation notice.by the Insurer to the Certificate Holder will
be delivered in accordance with the policy provisions."

2. Scope of Services, Exhibit B
5. Inpatient Hospital Services:,

5.5. Observation stays shall be defined as a stay of less than twenty-four (24) hours. Any hospital
stay of 24 hours or greater, whether coded as observation or inpatient admission will be
reimbursed at the DRG fate for inpatient stay not to exceed .1 10% Of the Medicare.allowable,
rate and will be billed to NH Department of Corrections for payment: based on this

methodology.

Catholic Medical Cente'r's Exception to Scope of.Services, Exhibit B,.Inpatient Hospital Services;

Catholic Medjcal Center is not able lb code and bill and assign avDRG for observation stays
greater than twenty-four (24) hours according to the description in Section 2. Scope of
Services, Exhibit B, paragraph 5., Inpatient Hospital Services, sub paragraph 5,5, above.
Catholic Medical Center's systems are not capable of producing a bill.

Catholic Medical Center is proposing to code and bill for Observation services up to forty-
eighl(48) hours.

Promoting Public Safety tIs rougb Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Acco.untability
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Exception to Terras and Conditions

A R^ponder shall be presumed to be in agreement with the Terms and Conditions of RFP NHDOC 20-
p3-GFNffiD Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services and the Standard Terms and Conditions in
Appendix C - Stand^d Terms ̂ d Conditions unl^ the Responder takes specific exception to one or
more of the conditions on this form. Resppnders are cautioned that by taking any exception they may be
materially deviating from the RFP specifications. If a Responder materially deviates fi-orn a RFP
specification, its Proposal may be rejected.

A material deviation is an exception to a specification, which 1) ̂ ords the .Responder taking the
exception a competitive advantage pver other .Responders or 2) gives the State something significantly
different than the NH Department of Corrections requested.

INSTRUCTIONS: Responders must explicitly list all exceptions to the NH Department of Corrections
concerning the Terms and Conditions of RFP NHDOC 20-03-GFhffiD Inpatient & Outpafient Hospital
Services and the Standard Terms and Conditions in Appendix C - Standard Terms and Conditions.
Reference the actual number of the Terms and Conditions for which an exception(s) is being taken. If lio
exceptions exist, state "NONE" specifically chi the. form below. Whether or not exceptions irt taken, the
Responder must SIGN this form and submit it as part of organization's Proposal response. (Add
additional pages if necessary).

Term &

Condition

Number

Sifcitov^C

I' 5

Explanation of Exception

Observation stays:

1.5. Observation stays shall.be defined as a stay of less than 24 hours. Any hospital stay of 24 hours oi

greater, whether coded as observation or inpatient admission will be reimbursed at the DRG rate for

inpatient stay not to exceed 110% of the Medicare allowable rate and will be billed to the NH

Department of Corrections for payment based on the methodology.

Gathglic Medical Center is not able to code and bill and assign a DRG for observation stays greater th<

24 hours accordjng to the description in the RFP. Our systems are not capable of producing a bill.

By. signing this form, I (Contract Signatory) acknowledges and accepts, without qualification, all Terms and Conditions of RFP
NHDOC 2(^3'GFM£D Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services and terms and conditions of the Af^ndix-C - Standard Terms
and Condiqatss fmdipiher required documents stated in (he RFP except those clearly outlined as exceptions above.

Contract

^ (ED
Signatureand Title



State of NH, Department of Corrections
Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRACT NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Scope of Services, Exhibit B
I. Purpose:

The purpose of this Contract is to seek Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services and professional
medical services for the Concord and Southern area for the patient population of the NH Department-
of Corrections. This Contract is deigned to comply with RSA 623-C:2 as amended effective July I-,
2013.

2. Performance Period:

Cdntract(s) awarded by the Governor and Executive Council (G&C) on behalf of the NH Department
of Corrections (NHDOC) as a result of this RFP is anticipated to be effective for the period beginning
July I, 2020, of upon approval of the Governor and Executive Council, whichever is later through
June 30, 2023. The Depaftmeht mayextend contracted services for one (i) additional period of up to
two (2) "years, contingent upon satisfactory Contractor performance, continued appropriation and
G&C approval.

3. Resident Population Served:
^Residentpopuiation served from the following facilities are marked with an "X" below:

Concord Area Correctional Facilities

X NH State Prison for Men - (NHSP-M) 281 North State Street Concord, NH- 03301

X
Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU)/Rc$idcntial
Treatment Unit (RTU)

28! North State Street Concord; NH 0330.1

X North End Transitional Housing Unit I Perimeter Road Concord. NH 03301

X Concord Transitional Work Center 275 North State Street Concord, NH 03301

X NH Correctional Facility for Women-(NHCF-W) 42 Perimeter Road Concord, NH 03301

X Shea Farm Housing Unit 60 Iron Works Road Concord. NH 03301

Southern Area Corrcclional Facilities

X 1 jCalumctTransitional HousinR.Unit 126 Lowell Street Manchester, NH 03104

4. Average Resident Population, Medical Transports and Hospital Visits for SPY 2019:

Average Resident
Population

Medical TransportsTor SFY

2019
Hospital Visits for SFY 2019

2474 2916
Emergency
Room

450
Inpaticiit
Stay

139

5. Inpatient Hospital Services:
5.1. The NH Department of Corrections is seeking inpatient services to be reimbursed on a

Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) methodology. Specifically, the Contractor is asked to
acknowledge the payment methodology and provide a DRG coefficient for evaluation. Such
payment methodology will allow recognition of case rnix and still provide an all-inclusive rate
for inpatient hospital services.

^ On rare occasions patients may be.brought from the NH Northern Correctional Facility, Berlin, NH to ,receive services at the
Contractor' facility and in such circumstances all cohtract conditions shall apply.
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Sfafe ofNH, Department of Corrections
Inpatient &. Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CTNHDOC 20-03-GFMED

5.2. In develojjing the.pRG rate, the Contractor should review the provisions of amended RSA 623-
Ci2 enacted as df.July 1,2013 requiring hospitals prbvidihg inpatiehf serVices to this population
to accept fees hot greater than one hundred ten percent.( l 10%) of the Medicare al lowable rate.

5.3. Please Note: The NH Department of Cpircctioris.requests the CohtraCtpr to comment oh the
competitiveness of the DRG coefficleht provided'as ItTelates'tO-RSA 623''C:2. l and II, private
commercial payment and other public sources of third party payment.

5.4. Medicaid covered seiViccs provided by a residential care and/or health facility licensed
pursuant to RSA- 151 shall be paid at the'NH Medicaid rate. In addition, please see RSA
623C:2n'ih. The NH IDeparthieht of Cbfrectiohs will assist patients iri applying for this
reimbursement as allowed by rules and regulations of the NH Medicaid program in effect, oh
the date of service.

5.5. Observation stays.shall be defined as a stay of less than twenty-four (24) hours. Any hospital
stay of 24 hours or greater^ whether coded as observation or inpatient adihission services will
be reirribursed at the DRG rate for inpaticntstay not to exceed.! 10% of the Medicare allowable
rate and will be billed to NH Department of Corrections for payment based on this
methodology.

6. Emergency and Urgent Care Services:
6.1. Please Note: Indicate the Contractor's acceptabje reimbursement level for Erriergency and

Urgent Care Seryices as a percentage discount off the hospital billed charge. At a minimum,
the Cohtraclpr shall adhere to the requirements of the amended RSA 623-C:2 requiring that the
hospital rate does not exceed 110% of the Medicare allowable amount for these services; The
Contractor shall, indicate the availability of.an Urgent Care facility and/or service as part of the
Emergency Services requirement. The;Contractor-will follow industry standard billing:practices
if any of these services rendered (e.g. emergency or urgent care services), revert to an inpatient
stay as these services would then be billed as part of the overall inpatient stay.

6.2. Please Note: The-NH pepartment .of Corrections requests the Contractor to, comment pn.the
competitiveness; of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements, of the amended RSA
623-C:2. effective July 1, 2013, private commercial payment and other public sources of third
party payment and indicate the Contractor's availability of an Urgent Care facility and/or
setyice as part of the Emergency Services requirement.

7. Outpatient Hospital Services:
7.1. The NH Department of Coirections is seeking proposals for outpatient' services to be,

reimbursed as a jDercentage of the January 2020 relevant NH Medicare Fee Schedule and
•indicate the percentage,(%) multiplier, below. The following NH Medicare Fess Schedules are
to be used:

VH January 2020 Medicare FeeSchcdule .Percentage (%) Multiplier

Outpatient Laboratory //(?%
Outpatient Radiology //n7c
National Level ll, Codes (HCPCS) JlO'/o

7,2. Please Note; The NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on the
competitiveness of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements of the amended RSA
623-C:2 effective July 1, 2013, private commercial payment and other public source of third
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State ofNH, Department.of Corrections
Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CTNHDOC 20-03-GFMED

party payment.

7.3. Please Note: All other outpatient services riot covered by the NH Medicare Fee Schedules
above .shall be paid as a percentage of the .facility charge'structure. Indicate the perceritage
discount off the hospital's billed charge.
7.3.1. Please Note: The NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment

on the competitiveness of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements of the
amended RSA 623-C:2 effective July I, 20'li, private commercial payment and other-
public sources of third party,payment.

7.3.2. Please Note: The Contractor shall provide a complete list of all affiliated facilities that
routinely provide services not covered under the Contractor's lax -ID number. The
Contractor shall provide vsritten confirmation that the affiliated facilities will accept the
contracted rate or will be reimbursed under iJie provisions of RSA 623-C:2;

713.3. Please Note: the Contractor shall provide a complete list of all. set^'ice^'procedure
provided by affiliated facilities.not coveted under the contracted.reinibufsemerit fate.

8. Rate Adjustments:
8.1. The NH Department of Coirectiohs, requests a three-year, rate proposal arid agreeiherit because

of the need to. properly apprbpriate funds over the next biennium. If the Contractor proposes an
arinual adjustriient to the rates, please indicate what the adjustment will be and the rationale for
siich adjustment.

8.2. The NH Department- of Corrections will review the Contractor's request Tor rafe adjustment-
using hospital reimbursement rates by the most recentiy:published Consumer Price Iridex by the
Bureau of Labor Statistics, Boston-Gambridge-Newton, MA-NH/Noi^east Region^ the
adjustment'request shall not violate the intent of RSA 623-G:2.

8.3. Please Note) During, the term of the agreement with any selected Cbntractpf, the NH
Pepartment Of CbrrectibhS will, require by Agreeriierit'that the Cbritfa'ctbr. provide .written
ribtificatiori bfariy annual, rate increases. Any rate adjustments may require .witten agreement
and/or possible-contract amendriient from the NH Department of Corrections prior to going, into
effect.

8.4. If it. is necessary to 'increase the price limitation of the Contract this provision shall require
Governor and-Executive Gouncil approval.

9. HbspitarClaliri Pfoccsslrig:
9.1. Please Note: The NH.Departrrieri't of Corrections lacks electronic claims system capacity. For

Hospitals SeiVices, the NH,Department of Corrections will require the. Contractor to invoice the
discounted amount ofservices rendered to patients. Claims are to be provided in the industry
standard- format (CMS 1500, UB-04) but should indicate the amount expected to be reimbursed;
For, inpatient admissions,, the submitted UBr04 shall Teflect the. pRG and DRG, fate expected
for reimbursement The CbntractOris asked in this section.to describe in detail the method.by
which it will address this requires and provide a sample format of the methodology. In
addition, the Contractor should be aware of the requirements of RSA "623-C:2('ng.

9.2. All invoices shall clearly reflect if the patient's'Status is observation, emergency room,
inpatient, or outpatient.
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State of NH, Department of Corrections
Jnpatient & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CT NHDOC 20'03-GFMED

10. Physician Services:
10.1. The NH. Department of. Corrections seeks to include professional medical services. In

particular, it seeks to access services for employed physicians to be reimbursed at a discounted
level. The Contractor should indicate its willlngnesis to provide discounted professional
services for its employed physicians and provide the.following:
10.1.1. Listing of the employed physicians and relevant-specialty:
16.1.2. Level of reimbursement expressed as a percentage of the January 2020 Medicare

Physician Fee Schedule not to exceed 110% of Medicare.
10/2. Please Note: The NH Department pfCprrections requests the Contractor to comment on the

cornpetitiveness of the discount it relates to Wiled charges, commercial third party payrnents
and other public program third party payer reimbursements (i.e. Medicaid, Veteran
Adrnihistration, etc.).

11; Physician Services Claims Processing:
il.l. The Contractor should validate the Physician Service claims will be provided to'the NH

Department of Corrections in a tirriely mariner arid'consistent with the industry fprriiat (CMS,
150.0). Claims for Physician Services will be processed by the NH Departmeht of correctidhs
by applying the tiegotiated pefceritage of the January 2020 NH Medicare Fee Schedule to the
services, re^rdless of ariiouht billed.

i 1.2. Please Note: The NH Deparlrhent of Corrections requests that the Contractor-invoice at 110%
of Medicare rate for employed Physician Services: No.payments of services rendered under
this methodology will exceed the 110% Medicare amount:

12. Other Services at Discounted Rates:

12.1. The NH.Department of Correciipris is Interested in access to other necessary services that the
Contractor may!be willirig'to provide at a discount^ rate under the one .hundred twentytfive
percent (.125%) of Medicare rate;

12.2. Please Note: The Contractor shall indicate in. this sections if any other such services are
available. Items of Interest- include but .hot limited, to on-c^pus (NH Department of
Corrections facilities) rehabilitation services: Physical Therapy (PT), .Occupational Therapy
(OT), Speech Therapy (ST) and Respiratory Therapy (RT), Oncology, Radiation Therapy,
chemotherapy, or alternative to hospital based rehabilitation services.

!2.3. Please Note: For inpatient rehabilitation services; Contractors shall provide pricing based On
Medicare's Case Mix Groups (CMO) utilizing the payrnent oh. account factor (PAF or % of
charge) for January 2020. The NH ̂Department of Coirections is seeking a rate not to exceed
110% of Medicare per RS A 623-C:2.

13. Auditing:
13.1,. The NH De'partraeht of Cprrections'reserves the rightto retrospectively audit-any ̂ d airdaims

submitted, for conformarice.to'the contracted rate and rhedically appropriate cjaiiri desi^ation,
i.e. inpatient, outpatient, emergency or obseiVatibn .'status. Such auditing function may be
performed by employees of the NH Department of Corrections, the NH Depariment of
Administrative Services, the Department of Health and Human Services or a contracted service.

13.2. The Contractor shall'be expectwJ to provide itemized copies of invoices and access to clinical
records substantiating billing status.

13.3. The Contractor should be able to defend its pricing .fnethodolOgy and properly detail any
internal process controls for ehsurihg accurate pricing of claims RSA .623-C:2rg').
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State ofNH, Department of Corrections
Ihpatieht & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CT NHDOC 20-03-GEMED

14. General Service Provisions:

14.1.. Notlficatioh of Required Services: The KH Department of Corrections shall contact the
Cbntractof when service is needed. A list of NH Department of Corrections key personnel by
site and contact information will be provided to the Contractor.

14.2. Rules and Regulations: The Contractor agrees to comply with all Policies, Procedure and
Directives (PPD's) of the department of Corrections. The Contractor shall adhere to the
Department's Administrative Rules, Conduct and Confidentiality of Information policies.

14.3. Additional Facilities: Upon agreement of both parties^ additional facilities belonging or
associated to the NH Department of Corrections may be added to the Contract .

14.4. Licenses. Credentials and Certificates: The Contractor shall ensure NH State licensed

professionals provide the services required. The Contractor and its staff shall possess and
maintain the credentials, licenses and/or certificates required by law and regulations to provide
such services for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof.

15. Administrative Rules, Policies, Regulations and Policy and.Proccdure Directives:
Contractor shall comply with any applicable ̂  Department of CbiTcctions: Administrative Rules,
Policies, Regulations and Policy .and Procedure Directives (PPD'sj to include but not limited to PPD
5.08:, Staff Personal Property Permitted In and Restricted from Prison Facilities. ,Additional
information can be located as a separate link:
http:y/www.nh.gov/rihdoc/busihess/rfp. bidding tools.htm.

16. Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003:
Contractor shall comply with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (Federal Law 42
U.S.C. 15601 et. seq.), with all applicaible Federal PREA standards, and with all State poiicies and,
standards related to PREA for jpreventing, detecting, monitoring, investigating, and eradicating any
form of sexual abuse within facilities/piXJgjraLms/offices o.wned, ojDerated, or coritracted. Cohtractor
acknowledges that, in addition to Self-mbhltofing requirements, the State will conduct compliance
monitoring Of PREA standards, .which may require an outside independent audit. Additional
ihfoimatibn.can be located as a separate lirik:
http://www.nh.gov/nhdoc/business/rfp bidding tools.htm.

17. Protected Health Information (PHI):'
Contractor shall safeguard any and all PHI according to the teims of the Health Information,
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 1.04-191 arid the Stand^ds for Privacy and
Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts J60j 162 and 164 and
amendments.

In performing its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access;tp,infprrnatioti.pf the
patients, including confidential information or Patient Health Information (PHI). The Contractor
shall not,use infoimatibh deyclpped or obtained during the perfoimance-of, or acquired of develo'ped
by reason of the Contract, except as is directly connected to, and necessary for the Cohtiactbr's
performance under the Contract.

The Contractor agrees to maintain the "confidentiality of and to protect from unauthpriKd uscj
disclosure, publication, reproduction and all information of the patient that becomes available to the
Contractor in connection with its performance under the Contract. In .the event of 'unauthofized use of
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or disclosure of the patient's inforrnatign, the Gohtractbr shall immediately hbtify 'the NH Department
of Gprrectlons.

All .financial, statisticial, pcrsbhhel ahcl/br tischnical data supplied by.NH Department of Gorrections to
the Gbritractbf are cbhfidehtial. The Cohtractof is required, to use reasonable care to protect the
confidentiality of such data. Any use, sale or offering of this data in any form by the Gontractor, or
any individual or entity in the Gbhtraictor's charge or employ, will be considered a violation of this
Gbhtract ̂ d .rhay result in contract termiriatioh. Iii addition, such conduct may be reported to the
State Attorney Genera! for possible criminal prosecution.

18. Change of Ownership:
In the event that the Gontractor should change ownership for any reason whatsoever, the NH

Department of Gbriections shall have the option of continiiing'under the Contract with the Gontractor
or its successors or assigns for the full remaining term of the Contract, continuing under the GbhtraCt
with the Gbhtfactor or, its successors orj assigns for such period of time as determined necessary by
the NH Department of Gorrections, or terminating the Contract.

19. Contractor.Designated Liaison:
Gontractor shall designate a representative to act as a iia;isbn between the Gbhtractbr and the
Department of Corrections for the duration of the Contract and any renewals thereof. The Contractor
shall, within five (5) days after the award of the Contract: submit a written .identification and
notifnratiOn to NH Pepartmeht of Gorrectibris of the harhe, title, address, telephone &Tax number, of
its organizaliph as a duly authorized representative to whom all correspondence, official notices and
requests related to the. Gontractbr's.^fformance under the Contract.
19.1. Any written notice to the Gontractor shall be deemed sufficient when deposited in the U:S.

mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the person designate by the Contractor under this
paragraph.

19.2. The Gontractor shall have the right to change or substitute the name of the individual described,
above as deemed neCess^ provided that aiiy such change is not effective until the
Gpmmissioher of the NH Department of Goffectiohs actually receives notice of this change.

19.3. Changes to the named Liaison by the Gohtfactor must be made in writing and forwarded to NH
Department of Gbrrections, Director of Medical & .Forensic Services, or designee, P.O. Box
1806, Concord, NH 03302.

20. Gontractor Liaison's Responsibilities:
Contractor's desi^ated iiaisbn shall be'fespbrisibleTor:
20;!. Representing the Contractor on all matters pertaining to the Gontractand any renewals thereof.

Such a representative shall be authorized and empowered to'^represent the Gontractbr regarding
all aspects of.the Contract and any renewa|s'thereof.

20.2. Monitoring the- Contractor's compliance with the teims of the Gbhtract and any renevyals
thereof.

20.3. Receiving and responding: to all inquiries ahd requests made by NH Depahment of Gorrections
in the time frames and format specified by NH Department of Gorrections in this RFP and.in
the Contract and any renewals thereof; and

20.4. Meeting with representati ves of NH Department of Gorrections nn a periodic or as-needed basis
to resolve issues, which may arise".
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21. NH Department.of Corrections Contract Liaison Respoiisibiliti^:
NH Department of Corrections' Commissioner, or 'des.igncci shall act ^ liaison between the
Contractor and the NH Department'of Corrections for the diction of the Contract and any renewals
thereof. The NH Departmerit of Corrections reserves the right to change its representative, at its sole
discretion, dmhg the temi of the Contract, ̂ 'd shall provide the Contractor with written notice of
such change. The;NH Departmerit;6f Corrections representative shall be responsible for:
21 il. Represeritihg.the NH pepaiimeht of Correctidhs on air matters pertaining to the Contract. The

lejDreseiitative shall be authorized and empowered to represent the NH Department of
Corrections regarding all aspects of the Contract, subject to tlie approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New-Hampshire, where needed;

21.2. Monitoring compliance with.the terms of the Contract.
21.3. Respbhdihg to all inquiries and requests related.to.the Contract made by the Contractor, under

the terms,and in the time frames-specifled by the Contract.
21.4. Meeting with the Contractor's representative on a periodic or ̂ rheeded basis arid resolving

issues, which arise.

21.5. Informing the Contractor of any discretionary actiori takeii by the NH Department of
Corrections pursuant to the provision of the Contract.

21.6. Ensuring thaVa minimum of two (2) NH Department of Corrections security officers shall
transport and be present during a patient's evaluation arid treatment at the Cohtractbr's facility.

21.7. Providing the Contractor with a list of key personnel and contact information.

22. Reporting Requirements:
22;I. The Contractdf shall pr^ovide, at a minimum, quarterly reports on outpatient utilization by the

Pepartmeht's facility arid inpatieht utilization by DRG. Descriptions of reports or sample
reports should be provided as an attachment to the RFP response.

22.2. The Coritraclor shall provide any and all reports asTequested on an w needed basis accordirig'to
a schedule and format to be.determined by the NH Dep^ment'of Cor^rectiohs including but riot:
limited to:

22.2.1. Quarterly suihnfiary of the cost by product, line by DRG for. inpatierit and product line
by primary diagiiosis for outpatient seiVices;

22:2.2. Length" of stay information;
22.2.3'. Breakdowns of inpatient and outpatient'billings by Current Pfdcediiral Terminolp^

(CPT) and'Healthcare common ProcedureCoding Syrterh (HCPCSj cbdeis;
22.2.4. Quarterly summary'of Charges to Reimbursemcntfeportihg by' inpatieht and outpatient

services;
22.2.5. Quarterly sumitiary of Inpatient Case by Department (Cost Centers) and Outpatient

Cases by pep^ment (Cost Centers); and
22.2.6'. Billings are to be provided in a format consistent with Medicare and Medicaid billing'

on industry standard form (CMS 1500; UB-p4).
22.3. The Contractor shall pro'vide propf'of any and all permits to pet'fotth inpatieht^ahd outpatient

hbspitel/medicaj services as. required by authorities having local, state and/or federal
jurisdiction at.ahy tithe during the life of the Contract and any rencwalsrthereoC

22.4. All material developed or acquired by the Contractor, as a result of work under the Contract
shall .become the property ofthe St'ate of New Hampshire. No material or reports prepared by
the Contractor shall be released to the public without tiie prior written consent of the NH
Department of Corrections,
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State ofNH, Department of Corrections
Iripatient & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CT NHDOC 20-03-0FMED

22;5. Any information and/or reports requested by theNH Department of Corrections forwarded .to
NH Department of Corrections, Director of Medical & Forensic Services, or designee,. P.O.
Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302.,

23. Performance Evaliiatibn:

NH'Department of Corrections; shall, 'at its sole discretiph mdhitbr and evaluate the Cdntfactbf's
compliance with' the Tenrjs and Conditions and adherence to the Scope of Ser/ices of the Contract for
the life of the Coritracfand ̂ y renewals thereof.
23.1. The NH Department of Cbirections niay request a mceting with the Contractor'afa'minimurii of

twice a ye^ to assess the performance of the Contractor relative tb'the Contfactof's conipliance
with the.Gohtfact ais set forth in the approved Contract.

23.2. The NH Departrheht of Coirections shall determine the acceptability of any reports siibrhitted
by the Contractor. If they are not deemed acceptable, NH Department of Cbrtections-shall.
notify the Contractor and explaih.'the deficiencies.

23.3. Perfonn periodic programmatic and Tinaricial review of the Contractor's peHbrmahce or
responsibilities. This may include, but limited to, on-site inspections audits conducted by the
NH Department of Corrections or 'its agents of the Contractor's records. The audits may, at a
minimum,.'include a review of the following:
23.3.1. Claims and financial.administration;
23.3.2. Program operation;
23.3.3. Financial reports;
23.3.4. Staffqualiflcations;
23.3.5., Chriical protocols; and
23.3,6. Individual medical,records.

23.4. Inform the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's perfonhance arid. Ihclude
requirements for corrective action.

23.5. The: Contractor-uhdefstands and agrees that the NH Department of Corrections Tcscrves the
right to amend the claims process for Hospital and Professional Services as outlined in Exhibit
B, Scope.of Services. The NH Department of Corrections' continues to work on alternative
mechanisms to expedite the claims prpcess_an.f provide useful real time data tohnd Departrrient
of Corrections. Ariy such charige tb'the clairns process will be provided .with witten notice;in
adyarice of the required change;.
•23.5.1. Patient specific discharge summaries shall be completed arid prbyided within twenty-

four (24) hours of discharge to the NH Department of Corrections for one-hundred
percent (100%)' of patients seryed;

23.5.2. For patiejhts fejeased from an emergency room or urgent c^e evaluation, a nui;se-|d-
nufse report between the yeridof and the appropriate NHDOC Nurs shall be completed
arid.pr6yided .for '100% of patients served; and

23.5.3. -Ebr patients being released from an inpatierit or observation, stay, there shall be a
provider-to-provider and nurse-to-nurse report- prior to discharge back to a.NHD'OC
facilityTor 100% of patients seen.

24. PeiTormarice Mciasurcs:
NH Departriierif of Cbitectioris shall, at its sole discretibri:
24.1.'Iriforrii the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Coritractbf's perfonriarice ia'rid iriclude

requirements for corrective action.
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State ofNH, Department of Corrections
Inpatient & Outpatient Hospiial Services
CONTRACT NHDOC 20-03-GFMEI>

24.2. Terminate the Gontira'ct.^ permitted, by law, if the NH Department of Gorrections determines
that the Gontfactor:

-24.2.1. Does not comply with the terms of the Contract.
24.2.2. Has lost of has.been notified of ihtentidh to lose their ceftification/llcensure/permits.
24.2.3. The Gont'ractof shall ftijly coordinate the performance activities of the Contract with

those of the NH Department' of Gofrectiohs. As the work of the Contractpf progresses,
advice and infoffnatibh oh .matters covered by the Cdhtract shall be.made.avajlable by
the Gohtractof to the NH Department of Gbrfectidhs as requested by the Dep^ment
throughout the ;effective period of the Contract.

24.2.4. All other expectations outlined in this Contract with regard to rates, claims processihg,
liaison expectations, reporting requirements, licehsure/ceftification .and tjpes "of
services.

25. Bankruptcy or Insolvency Proceeding Notifications:
25.1. Upon filing.for any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by of againh the.Contractor, whether

voluntary or'involuntary, or upon the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or assignee fof the
benefit of creditors, the Contractor must notify the NH Department of Corrections imrhediately.

25.2. Upon learning of the actions.herein identified, the NH Department of Corrections reserves the
right at its sole discretion to either cancel the Contract in whole or in ,part, or, re-affirm the
Gontrapt in whole Or in part.

26. Embodiment of the Contract:

In the event of a conflict an language between the documents referenced below, the prpvisiohs and
requifemehtis set forth and/or referenced In the negotiated document noted in 26.1.1. shall.govefh.
The NH Departnient-df Correctidhs reserves the fight to clarify any contractual,relationship'in.writihg
with-the concurrence of the Contractor, and such written clarification.shall govern Jn case of conflict
with the applicable requirements stated in the RFP or the Proposer's.Proposal and/or tlie result of a
Contract.

26.1. Order of Precedence:

26. i .1. State of NH Department of Cbirections Cpritfact Agreemeht NHPQ020-03-GFMED.
26.1.2. State ofNH Department of Corrections RFP NHDOe;20-03-GFMEb.
26.1.3. Proposer'.s Response to RFP'NHDOC 20r03-GFMED.

-27. Canccllatipn.of Contract:
NH, Department of Corrections may cancel the Contract at any time for breach of contractual
obligations by prdvidjrig'the Contractor with a written,lidtice oCsuch cancellatipn.. Should the NH
Depaft"meht of Cbfrectiohs exercise Its right to cancel the Contract, the cancellation 'shall become
effective on the date as specified in the Notice of Cancellation sent to the Cdhtract'dr.
27.1. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to cancel this Contract for the

convenience ofthe State with.mo penalties by giving the Contractor-sixty (60) days' notice of
said cancellation.

27.2: The NH Departmeht of, Corrections reserves the fight to tenninate the Contract without penalty
or recourse by givihg the Cphtractor a writteh notice of such'terminatibn at least sixty (60) days
prior to the effective termination date.
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State ofNH, Department of Corrections
Inpatienl & Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRA CT NHDOC 20-03-0FMED

28. Contracbr Transition:
NH Department of Corrections, at ilis discretion, in any Contract or renewals thereof; resulting from
this R.FP, rnay require the Contractor to wortc cooperatively with any predecessor and/or successor
Contractor to assure the orderly and uninterrupted transition from one Contractor to another.

29. Audit Requirement:
Contractor agrees to comply with any recommendations arising from periodic audite on the
performance of the Contract; providing that the recommendations do not require unreasonable
hardship, which would normally affect the value of the Contract.

30. Notification to the Contractor:
NH Department of Corrections shall be responsible for notifying the Contractor of any policy or
procedural changes affecting the contracted services at least thirty (30) days before the
implementation of such policy or procedure. TTie Contractor shall implement the changes on the date
specified'by the Department.

i31. Other Gontractuai pocumcnts Required by the NH Department of Cbrrectiphis:
Form Number P-37 (version 11/7/19); Certificate of Good Standing; Certificates of Authority/Vote;
Certificate of Insurance; -Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct, Confidentiality of Ihfoimation
Agreements; Health Ihsufance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Form, PREA
Acknowledgement Form and ALT-W9 Registration.shall be applicable for the requested contracted
activities and are located as a separate link on the NH Department of Corrections website;
•httD://www.nh.gov/nhdoc/busihess/rfD bidding toolis.htm with instructions found in the: Proposal
Check Sheet.

The remainder of,this page is intentionally blank.
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Exhibits

Scope of Services

RE: RFP Title: Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital Services
RFP Number: NHDOC RFP 20-03-GFMED

Vendor's Organizational Name: Catholic Medical Center

Section C: Description of Services:

1  Inpatient Hospital Services

1.1. Inpatient Coefficient — 110% of the current annual Medicare coefficient for Catholic

Medical Center's ["CMC"].

1.2. RSA 623-C;2: CMC is bidding at the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement.
CMC's bid of 110% of Medicare.

1.3. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at
CMC.

2. Emergency Services and Urgent Care Services

2.1. Reimbursement- CMC is proposing an overall reimbursement rate for Emergency
services at 110% of Medicare.

CMC does offer an Urgent care center located in Bedford, NH. Urgent Care is staffed by
board certified physicians, nurse practitioners and physician assistants. On site laboratory and
x-ray services are available for urgent care needs. CMC is proposing a reimbursement rate for
Urgent Care services at 110% of Medicare.

2.2. RSA 623-0:2: CMC is bidding at the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement.
CMC's bid is 110% of Medicare.

2.3. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at
CMC.

3. Outpatient Hospital Services

3.1. Outpatient Laboratory and Radiology NH Fee Schedules — 110% of the NH 2020

Medicare Laboratory and Radiology Fee Schedules.

NH January 2020 Medicare FS Percentage Multiplier

Outpatient Laboratory 110%

Outpatient Radiology 110%

National Level IT Codes (HCPCS) 110%



3.2. CMC is bidding at the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. CMC's bid is 110%
of Medicare. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial
contracts at CMC.

3.3. All Other Outpatient Services ; 110% of Medicare reimbursement for all outpatient,
non-fee schedule, services.

3.3.1. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at
CMC.

3.3.2. There are no afTiliated facilities that routinely provide services not covered under
CMC's tax ID number.

3.3.3. Not applicable

4.0 Rate Adjustments

4.1. The second and third year rate adjustment will be tied to the most recent annual Medical
CPI for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. These will be determined through the federal
government ELS website as of May for a July l** implementation.

Likewise, for year two and three, the PAF will be adjusted such that CMC's annual July 1*'
rate increases do not yield an increase in reimbursement by the DOC in excess of the annual
Medical CPI for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. This will be determined through the
federal government BLS website as of May for a July 1** implementation.

The inpatient DRG coefficient will increase on July 1" of year two by the annual Medical CPI
for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. This will be determined through the federal
government BLS website as of May for a July l" implementation.

Additionally, each October 1", the Medicare DRG tables, including updated weights and
DRGs will be employed. In the event Medicare makes adjustments to DRGs and/or weights
outside the typical annual October l" updates, such changes shall apply to the reimbursement
terms under the proposal.

5.0 Hospital Claim Processing; Process and attach a sample claim

5.1. CMC calculates estimated claims reimbursement using internal contract management
software. CMC will utilize the standard CMS 1500 and UB-04 claims forms for submission.
Please see attached sample

6.0 Physician Services:

6.1. A listing of current providers, including specialties, is enclosed with this RFP.
Primary Care - Family Practice and Internal Medicine
Cardiology - Medical, Interventionists and Electro physiologists
Cardiothoracic Surgeons

OB/GYN

General Surgery

Rates - 110% of the annual current Medicare Fee Schedule



6.2. CMC is bidding at the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. CMC's bid is 110%
of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this amendment. The rate is significantly
less than currently available to any commercial contracts at CMC.

7.0 Physician Claims Processing;

CMC will bill physician claims at 110% of the Medicare rate in a timely manner to the DOC
consistent with industry standard.

8.0 Other Services at Discounted Rate;

8.1: N/A

8.2. Inpatient Rehab PAP — 110% of current annual Medicare Reimbursement.

Medicare reimburses inpatient rehabilitation on a CMG basis.

Because CMC does not have the ability to price inpatient rehabilitation services at a
CMG rate, CMC is proposing using 110% of the current annual Medicare rate.



State of Department of Corrections
Inpatient <6 Outpatient Hospital Services
CONTRACT NHDOC 20-03-GFMED

Estimated Budget/Method of Payment, Exhibit C
I. Method of Payment:

1.1. Services are to be invoiced-monthly commencing thirty (30) days after the start of service. Due
dates for monthly Invoices will be the l5* following the month in which services are provided,

i .2. Invoices shall be sent to the NH Department of Corrections, Director of Medical & Forensic
Services, P.O. Box 18()6, GoncOrd, NH 03302i or designee, for approval. The; "Bill To"
address on the invoice shall .be: NH Department of Corrections, Director of Medical & Forensic
Services, P.p. Box 1806, Poncord, "NH 03302.

1.3. The NH Department of Corrections may adjust the payment amount identified on a
Contractor's, monthly invoice. The NH Department of Corrections shall suspend payment to an
invoice if an invoice is hot submitted in accordance wjth the instructions established by theNH
.Departrheht of Corrections.

1.4. The NH Department of Corrections Bureau o.f .Financial Services .may issue payment to the
Cohfractof within thirty (30) days ofreceipt of ah approved invoicei lnvoices shall be itemized
by facility using industiy standard forths (CMS 1500 and yB-p4). and shall contain the
follo.wlng infortnatioii;
1.4.1. .Dates' of Service (DOS);
.1.4.2. NHDOC title and billing addrea;
1.4.3. Patient name, patient.idehtificatioh (ID) number, patient account nUniber, date of

birth (DOB), and all Other applicable fields per the industiy sta.hdard form;
1.4.4. itemized service/product total chai^e:per service/product type;
1.4.5. NH Department of. Corrections prefers the Contractor to -provide the associated

adjustments per RSA 623rC:2 on claims submitted; and
1.4.6. Patient's Status: Observation, Ernergency Room, Inpatient or Outpatient.

1.5. P^rtieht-shall be made to the name and/address identified in the Contract as the "Contractor"
unless: (a) the Contractor" has authorized a different name arid .mailing addr^s in vmting or; (b)
authorized a differerit name arid mailirig address in an official State of New. Hampshire
Conlractor Registration Application Fonn; or (c) unless .a court, of law specifies otherwise". The
Contractor- shall not invoice federal tax. The State's tax-exempt certificate number is
026000(5j8W.

1.6. The Contractor's shall fpllpw the State's Fiscal Year Calendar for budgeting purpose. Original
(2ontract,Period shall commerice on July .1,2020.

The remainder of this page iis intentionally blank.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that CATHOLIC MEDICAL

CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 07, 1974. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 62116

Certificate Number: 0004896742

u.

A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 20th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Matthew Kfoury, hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Catholic Medical Center, a New
Hampshire voluntary corporation ("CMC");

2. Joseph Pepe, MD is the duly elected President and CEO of CMC;

3. The following are true copies of resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Trustees of
CMC, duly held on February 20,2020 at which a quorum of the Trustees were present and
voting:

RESOLVED: That Catholic Medical Center ("CMC") enters into a Request for
Proposal with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Corrections, Division of Administration, for the provision
of inpatient and outpatient hospital medical services (the "RFP").

RESOLVED: That Joseph Pepe, MD, as the President & CEO of CMC is hereby authorized on
behalf of CMC to negotiate, execute and deliver the RFP with the State of New
Hampshire and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and other
instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he may
deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate.

4. It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this Certificate of Vote as evidence
that Dr. Pepe is currently the President & CEO of CMC and has the full authority to bind CMC.

5. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended, repealed or revoked and remain in full force
and effect as of /7 . 2020.

2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as Secretary of CMC this MatUn ■

Matthe

Secretary
iy?Rfoury,^atiIy^horized
arv </

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

This instrument was acknowledged before me this , 2020 by Matthew Kfoury as Secretary
ofCMC.

on E. Cole, Notaiy Public
ly Commission Expires: _ JW'

i  \
I I



/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {MM/Dormnf)

03A)5/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTinCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsoment{s).

PRODUCER

MARSH USA, INC.

99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON. MA 02110
Altn: Boslon.ceftequesl@Marsh.com Fax; 212-948-4377

CN109021768VVLL-GAWXP-19-20

CdKtAtY
NAME:

PHONE FAX
INC. No. ExD: INC. No):
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A: Pro Seled Insurance Comoarv

INSURED
Catholic Medical Center

100 McGregor Sired
Manchester, NH 03102

INSURER B: Safety NaSonal CasuaiN Con>. 15105

INSURER c; Arch Soedallv tnsuance Comoaiv 21199

INSURERD;

INSURER e ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; NYC-010851052-01 REVISION NUMBER; 4

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SSBCT

maTYPE OF IHSURANGE
sueR

mi POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF
IMWDOiYYYYI

POUCY EXP
fMM/DPiYYYYI UMHS

NSR
LTR

COMMERCML GENERAL UABILfTY

CLAIMS-UADE a OCCUR
002NH000016a52 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACETORERTED
PREMfSES rEa occuirencal

MEO EXP (Any one pefwn)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES reR:

POLICY I )

OTHER:

□
GENERAL AGGREGATE

LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1.000,000

50.000
5.000

1.000,000

3,000,000

3,000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABILfTY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa accktenll
BODILY U4JURY (Per p«non)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par accUant)
PROPERTYOAMAGE
fPet aaaHann

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

UHL005089&47 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

AGGREGATE 5,000,000

RETENTION $

mmw 10A)1/2020WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANYPROF^IErOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLU0E07
(Mandatory in NH)
V yaa, deaofee «>ndaf
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

m N/A

SP 4061345

*SIR $750,000

V  PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

PROFESSION/a. LIABILITY 002NH000016D52 10/01/2019 10/01/2020 PER CLAIM

AGGREGATE

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OFOPERATIONSr LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Ramarica Schaduta, may ba attachad II mora spaca Is taqiiiiarf)
The State ol New Hampsl^, New Hampshin} Department of Conoctions is/are nduded as additionai insured (except wrXeis' compensation) wtiere requjred by wtillen contracL

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department ol Corrections
P.O. Box 1806
Concod, NH 03302-1806

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED P0UC1ES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

of Manh USA Inc.

Manashi Mukherjee

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

ADMrNISTRATIVE RULES

Cor 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of:
a) Any substance or item whose possession in unlawful for the person or the general public

possessing it including but not limited to:
(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any firearm, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target.

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a
person, animal or target.

d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these
items.

e) Any drug item, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in
such quantities that a person would suffer intoxication or illness i8f the entire available
quantity were consumed alone or in combination with other available substances.

f) Any intoxicating beverage.
g) Sums of money or negotiable instruments in excess of $ 100.00.
h) Lock-picking kits or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

surreptitious entry or exit.
i) The following types of items in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehicle, but

shall not be contraband stored in a secured vehicle:

(1) knives and knife-like weapons, clubs and club-like weapons,
(2) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription drugs unless prior approval is

granted in writing by the facility Warden/designee, or Director/designee,
(3) maps of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of

the facilities, its grounds or its vicinity,
(4) pornography or pictures of visitors or prospective visitors undressed,
(5) radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on the police band in the possession

of other than law enforcement officials,
(6) Identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the

person to whom properly issued,
(7) ropes, saws, grappling hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches,

cutting wheels or string rope or line impregnated with cutting material of similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(8) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could
facilitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, trarispbrt, introduction, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grbuiids- without prior appixiyai of the- Commissioner of
Corrections or his desighee is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches arid Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
conlriaband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute implied coiiseht to search for contrabaiid. In such
casesr where-implied.consent- exists;,the visitor will be given-a choice of either cbnsehtirig to
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual searches in situations where probable cause exisls to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest.

b) All. motor vehicles parked on prison .grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed.
Gustodiai personnel shajl check'to insure that vehicles are ibcked and shall visually inspect
the-plain view interior of the vehicles. Vehicles discovered uniocked shall be searched to
insure that no contraband is present. Contraband discovered during searches, shall be
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discbveie.d during plain view inspections.

c) All persons entering the'facllities to visit with residents of staff, of to perform services at the
facilities or to tour the facilities'shall, be subject to having their persons checked. All items
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband.

Joseph Pepi% M t>
Name.

WitneSsName 4

S

Signature

Date

Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF GORRECTtONS

RULES OE CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. Engaging in any of the fpUowing 'activities with persons under dep,^mentaJ control Is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact; including cdrrespondencci other than the performance of your services
for which.ybu Have been contracted.

b. Giving or selling of anything
c. Accepting or buyiiig anything

2. Any pereon providing contract services who is found-to be under the'influence of intoxicants or drugs
wiU'be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to NH Department
of Corrections property.

3. Possession, of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of
Administrative Rules, Part COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New
Hampshire and-may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 "or other statutes.

4. In the "event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, df^rbarice; etc., you will follow the instructions of
the escorting staff or report immediately to the closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations arid policies of the NH Department of-Cbrrectioris are designed for the safety of
the staff, visitbre arid residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of necessaiy movement'
and activities; If unsure of any policy and procedure, ask for immediate assistance from a staff
member.

6. Harassment and discrimination directed'toward, anyone based on sex, race^ creed, color, national
origin or age are illegal under fedefaj arid state laws and wjll riot be tojerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work envirbnirient is also prohibited. Everyone h^ a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to ferridval for failirig to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you are responsible to the facility administratori andby your
signature beloWj agree to abide by all the rules, regulations,, policies and procedures of the NH
Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshiie.

8. In lieu of Cohlracted; staff participatihg iri. the Corrections Acadeiriy, the Vendor through the
Cbmrriissioner or his desigriees will, establish a. trainirig/orientatiori facilitated by the Vendor to
supplement this requirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, policies and
procedures of the. Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshire;

Josrpl^ Pepf. MD
Name Si^nipt^ Date

Witness Name Z) Signature U Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that all emplpyed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all
loiies, regul ations and jaws of the State of New Hampshire ̂ d the NH Department of Corrections that,
relate to the confidentiality offecords and all other privileged information.

I further agree that, all employed by or subcontracted through the organization 1 represent are not'to
discuss any cpnfidenti^, or privileged infpimation with family, friends or any persons not
professionally involved, with the- NH' Department of Corrections; 'If persons under Deptutmental
control of iJie NH Departmehi of Corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH .Departrhent of
Corrections' employ approaches any of the ofgahization's emplbyees or subcoiitractofs and fequests
information, the staff^mpl6yees of the organization I represent will immediately contact their
supervisor, notify the NH Department, of Corrections, and file ah .incident report Of statement .report,
with the .appropriate NH Department of Corrections representative.

Any violation of the above may result in immediate termination,of any and all contractual obligations.

Joseph Pppg-, mD
Name Date

c
Witness Name Signature A

3n-2.o2.(?
Date



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1^00-736-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

Helen E. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin Maddaus

Director

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule August 2012) is a federal law
established to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
correctional systems and detention facilities; This Act applies to all correctional facilities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve,
the following conduct:,
•  Resident-on-resident sexual assault

•  Resident-on-resident abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
irifohnation gathering. The NH Department of Corrections has zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victims. Due to this recognition and
adherence to the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003, the NH Department of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:

•  Contractor/subcontractor misconduct

•  Contractor/subcontractor harassment, assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the.NH Department of Corrections, I acknowledge that I Have
been provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law 108-79—Sept. 4.
2003 and have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of-the NH Department of
Corrections, sexual cohduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor:and offenders is prohibited. Sexual
harassment or sexual misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2, 632-A:3
and 632-A:4. Chapter 632-A:>Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I understand that I shall
inform all employees of the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA,
RSA 632-A:2, RSA ,632-A:3, RSA ,632-A:4 and departmental policies including NHDOC PPD 5.19 r.
PREA: NHDOC Administrative Rules. Conduct arid Confidentiality- Infonnation regarding my conduct,
reporting of incidents and treatment of those under the supervisioii. of the NH Department of Corrections..
(Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A, NHDOC PPD 5.19 and Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons
Providing Contract Services, Confidentiality of Information Agreement).

Name (print): Ph j
(Nanjp Coritract Signatory)

Signature:

Date: / 7 0

Contract Signatory)

Rromoling Public Sflfcty (hrouch Inlegrily, Respecl, Proreuioniiilsfn, Collaboration and Accountability



Nil DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-19.1 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, "Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and.subcontractors and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and
"Covered,Entity" shall mean the State ofNew Hampshire, Department of Health and Human.Services.

(11 Definitions

a. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

b. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

c. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191.

e. "(hdividual" shall have the same meaning as'theterm "individual" in 45 CFR Section 1.64.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g):

f. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idehtifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services.

g. "Protected Health Ihfofmatidn" shall have the.same meaning as the term "protected.health information"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or
on behalf of Covered Entity.

h. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in '45 CFR Section
164.501.

i. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

j. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(2) Use and Disclosure of.Protected Health Information.

Sittle ofNH, Deparlmenl of Corrections . Poge ! pji
Division ofMeitico! and Forensic Services

Vendor Initials:



a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Informatibh (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party.
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or fiif^er disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to Immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it
has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis,
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity
to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered,Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from djsclosing the PHI until Covered Eritity has exhausted all remedies.

e. I f the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions on.the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuanfto the Privacy and
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate
a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security'incident involving Covered
Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days, of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incident.

b. Business Associate shall' use ̂ administrative, physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health information, in
electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by the Agreement.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by-the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. \

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates thM receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and,(3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be

State NH, Department of Corrections 2oJ'S
Division of Medical and Forensic Services

Vendor Initials:
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receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and.procedures relating to the use and disclosure Of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreerfient.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Cpyered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered.Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business, days of receiving a written request from Covered Erjtity for an amendrhent of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR.Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures

as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving,a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall rnake available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations, to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the resporisibility of responding tp forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding, the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon aspracticable.

k. Within ten (10) busihess days of termihatioh of the Agreemeht, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, pr created or received by
the.Business Associate in connection .with the Agreement, and shall,not retain any copies.or.back-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the Agreement,
to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosure of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate majntai.ns such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the B.usiness Associate destroy any or all PHJ, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity
a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in .its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided tp individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

State of Deparlmenl.ofCorrections Page 3 of5
Division of Medical and Forensic Services
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b. Cpyered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions oh the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's iise or disclosure.of PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately'tefniinate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by .Business Associate of the Busineiss
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timcframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

(61 Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othehyise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time;to
time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such, action as is necessary
to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal
and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate-acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement ,shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance .is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without ̂ e invalid term or condition; to this end the.terms
and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.

State of NH, Department of Corrections ^
DMs\on ofMedical and Forensic Services

Vendor.Inilials:



NH Department of Corrections

State of New Hampshire Agency Name

Ca^iholic MfJiut CmUr
Contractor Na/he

of Auture on Representative entative SignatureContracti

Helen E« Hanks
Joseph Pepe, Mt>

Authorized DOC Representative Name Authorized Contractor Representative Name

Commissioner ICPO
Authorized DOC Representative Title Authorized Contractor Representative Title

Xo>o

Date Date

StttteofNH.DepartmtniofCefrectiom
Division of Meiadmd Forensic Sendees
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVK

OFFICE OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICE

HEALTH FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330:

ANNUAL LICENSE CERTIFICATE

Under provisions of New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter RSA 151, this annual license certifical

Name: CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER

Located at: 100 MCGREGOR STREET

MANCHESTER NH 03102

To Operate: Hospital . Subtype: General

This annual license certificate is effective underthe conditions and for the period stated below:

License#:

Effective Date: 01/01/2020 Expiration Date: 12/31/2020

Administrator: JOSEPH PEPE, MD

Medical Director: WILLIAM GOODMAN, MD

Comments:

Number of Beds: 330 1. CRIM WAIVER 802.17{c)(l&2)



o

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE fic MEDlCAID SERVJGES

GLimCALXABOPJffORY IMPROVEM]^ AMENDMENTS

CERTIFICATE OF PRO VIDBR'PERPnRMED MJCROSGOPYPROGEDVRES

LABORATORYNAME AND ADDRESS

HEALTH CARE FOR.THE HOMELESS
199, MANCHESTER STREET

MANCHESTER, NH 03103

.Laboratory director

KEITH srAHLM.P.

cijaid number

EFFECTIVE DATE

10/08/2019

EXPIRATION DATE

10/07/2021

punoant ts 3^3 the PaUk HMhli Seryjces Aa (42 IfiC.-IjS ai ^ OliikJ.Lab^rBtmy linpro«emc:/u Airwdaicou (CDAT
thcaboMDam^labotaiofjlbiaiMstbesultl^s tbown bef«ai;(smLa(Ii<Er UtciiJbici) may! accept Kmhan^Matnens

ro't.'ihep«ixposaofpe(Ibattin{lil>ontniyeaainetioiu ocpracedures.
Tkb ctf^custhaO bevalidaniil Uteopinitioo.dwebovei.btrt-ij subject U;iTW0ctiion>fBqKn3^n,llfaitauan,ot other Mnnioos

for^aliuibn of ibc AcTordte tegulMOU pnunolgaci^ themniei'.

ICvi^W-Dycr, OMctor
pivbioa of LebbratoiySei^Lce^
StuYcy »od.Certification Group
Ceoicr for Clinical Siandardi arid Qualitycbmu NkmsKm t Moiuib«M(x<

51 Cami_l 12510

If.tbb'u a CetttRfte nf RefMnrotifln. it (cpresents only the enroUin'cat-ortkelabdratdty in:the CLIA ph>!gnm uxidocs not
jpHyaf<> a Fedenl cier^cstion pf corppli.ance- tvidi "otfacr CLXA ̂equtrenigm. The laboratory is pcomtted to begia CBstifig
npoo recent ofibts certilicatp, but b not detunuitcd to be ia rrunpllaxice urt'tU asuiv^ It sncpessfuliy cqsnpletod.

If thisis a Ct>rfifi<~ife-for'Prorvidef-PerfofTned Miq^CTtyrErocedures> it cerrifiea the Isiboratoty to p^brtn onlytbdse
laboratory proceduta that have bedi tpedfiol id provida-perfiiihned'jniaoscopy'prcdedures ahdj If applicable,
'odimlaatioiu or procedures-that have been approved'as waned tests b^tbe Departmeot ofHcalth:anil Horn an Services.

Tf rhta.ilt.a Caritfir-ite of\>%iver. it certifies the laborarory to pcifdrm.cnly acaniineiions or procednres-thar have been
ApprpviMl as waived. t»ts'by the Depai^ent ofHeahh and JHtunati.Sertnces.

FOR.MORE INEORMATION ABOUT CLlA. VISIT GURXtTESITE AT\rVCNKCMS.,GOV/CLIA
OR.CONTXCTYOURIOCAL STATE AGENCY PLEASE.SEB THE REVERSE FOR

YOUR STATE AG^CS?S ̂ pRESS AND PHONE NUhlBES.
PliASE CONTACT yOUR-STATE AGENCV FOR ANY CHANGES TO YOUR .CURRENT. CERTIFIGATE.



OEA REGISTRATION

NUMBER

THIS REGISTRATION

EXPIRES

FEE

PAID

08^31-2020 $731

SCHEDULES BUSINESS ACTIVny., ISSUE DATE

2.2N.3
3N.4.5

HOSPITAL/CLINIC-COLLECTOR 07-24-2017

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HOSP

PHARMACY DEPARTMENT - .

100 MCGREGOR STREET ■ '
MANCHESTER. NH 03102 . .. r '. .'"

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION
WASHINGTON D.C. 20637

Sections 304 and 1008 (21 USC 824 and fiS8) ot the Controlled
Suttttances Ad of 1970, as amended, provide that the Attorney
General may revoke or suspend a registration to manufacture,
distribute, dispense, import or export a conlrolled substance.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE ON CHANGE OF

OWNERSHIP. CONTROL, LOCATION, OR BUSINESS ACTIVITY.
AND IT 18 NOT VALID AFTER THE EXPIRATION DATE.

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

UNITED STATES DEPARTMEhfT OF JUSTICE

. . . : DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION
:  . WASHINGTON D.C. 20537

0£A REGISTRATION

NUMBER

THIS registration
^  EXPIR6S:;.V,:-\^. ...'

FEU-

PAID

•08-31.-202p;:-, :$731

SCHEDULES :: ISSUE DATE

2.2N.3 ;
3N.4.5

. HOSPITAL/CLINIC-COLLECTOR ; i 07-24-2017

1,'."

0

Ci
m

fO

1
O

CATHOLIC MEDICi^L CENTER HOSP
PHARMACY^DEPARTMENT , .V- "

100 MCGREGOR STREET . vl;;,... . c.y.
MANCHESTER....NH:03102: : '

Sections 304 and 1008 (21 USC 824 and 958) of the
Controlled Substances Act of 1970, as amended,

provide that the Attorney General may revoke or
suspend a registration to manufacture, distribute,
dispense. Import or export a controlled substance.

o
u.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS NOT TRANSFERABLE ON CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP. CONTROL. LOCATION. OR BUSINESS ACTIVITY.
AND IT IS NOT VALID AFTER THE EXPlRATiON DATE.
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ACR*
American Doulebe or

RADtDLaGY

PET Services of

Catholic Medical Center

100 McGregor Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03102

were surveyed by the
Committee on Nuclear Medicine Accreditation of the

Commission on Quality and Safety

The following unit was approved

General Electric Medical Systems DISCOVERY ST E 2015

For

Oncology

Accredited from:

June 12,2017 through June 12,2020

CHAIR, COMMmEE ON NUCLEAR MEDICINE ACCREDITATION PRESIDENT, AMERICAN COLLEGE OF RADIOLOGY



Catholic Medical Center

Manchester, NH ,

has been Accredited by

it

y.vt

92^

^4^

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for the

Hospital Accreditation Program

January 12, 2018
Accreditation is customarily valid for up to 36 months.

7
taooen

Print/llepnni Due: 04/20/2018 Mtck K. Oiutin, MD. PACP. MPP. MPH

Picsident

The Joint Commission is an independent, QOt>for-profit national body that oversees the safety and quality of health care and
other services provided in accredited organizations. Information about accredited organizations may be provided directly to
The Joint Commission at 1-800-994-6610. Information regarding accreditation and the accreditation performance of
individual organizations can be obtained through The Joint Commission's web site at www.jointcommissioa.org.

AMA)
AMERICAN

MEDICAL
ASSOOATtON



Catholic Medical Center

Mission Statement, Values and Vision Statement

2020

Mission

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to carry out Christ's healing ministry by offering health,
healing and hope to every individual who seeks our care.

Values

Our values are rooted in the fundamental values of promoting and defending human dignity and
respecting the sacredness of human life. We are committed to:

Compassion

Respect

Patient-Centered Care

Human Dignity
Excellence '

Vision

Guided by our Mission and Values, we are committed to becoming the finest customer experience,
lowest cost, and best outcome provider in the region.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees

CMC Healthcare System, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CMC Healthcare System, Inc., which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

'Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes die
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fî ud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of die entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Board of Trustees

CMC Healthcare System, Inc.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of CMC Healthcare System, Inc. as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of
its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019, CMC Healthcare System, Inc. adopted
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Not-for-
profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities and applied the
guidance retrospectively for all periods presented. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

f ̂ 1^ LVC
Manchester, New Hampshire
February 4,2020



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, BSC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $20,265,887 in 2019 and $20,526,837 in 2018

Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:

Intangible assets and other

Assets whose use is limited:

Pension and insurance obligations
Board designated and donor restricted investments

and restricted grants
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements

Total assets

2m

$ 56.249,490
4,021,270

79,322,642

4,600,802
14.198^23

158,392,427

143,111,363

2m

$ 61,849,320
29,009,260

55,326,986
3,583,228
10.664.957

160,433.751

134,597,894

18,600,614 17,581,549

18,832,810 17,859,458

129,341,870 127,267,085
18.845.355 36.660.053

167.020.035 181.786.596

£487.124.439 £494.399.790



LlABlLlTffiS AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Accrued pension and other liabilities, less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

2019

: 38,985,902
22,973,478
11,456,467
4.158.079

77,573,926

172,049,836

121.883.751

371,507,513

2018

$ 30,789,153
22,673,489
14,643,104
4.365.199

72,470,945

122,463,230

122.913.717

317,847,892

104,372,035 166,125,080
11.244.891 10.426.818

115,616,926 176,551,898

Total liabilities and net assets $487.124.439

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowances and discounts

Provision for doubtfiil accounts

Net patient service revenues less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue

Disproportionate share funding

Total revenues

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total expenses

(Loss) income from operations

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income, net
Net periodic pension cost, other than service cost
Contributions without donor restrictions
Development costs
Other "nonoperating loss

Total nonoperating gains, net

(Deficiency) excess of revenues and gains over expenses

Unrealized appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released ft-ora restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions at beginning of year

Net assets without donor restrictions at end of year

$465,757,562 $452,510,375
r21.644.6441 r20.334.2491

444,112,918 432,176,126

21,610,585
22.566.094

19,454,686
17.993.289

488,289,597 469,624,101

284,646,960
169,119,057
21,382,132
16,902,437
4224.046

266,813,278
160,290,214
19,968,497
16,136,984
4.368.765

496.274.632 467.577.738

(7,985,035) 2,046,363

4,120,862
(640,624)
834,004
(739,596)

13.135.6991

438.947

912,170

(482,735)
434,010

r55.070.4021

(61,753,045)

166.125.080

6,086,794
(1,099,092)

629,198
(635,408)
(489.2941

4.492.198

(7,546,088) 6,538,561

2,325,151
302,826
128,600

20.436.931

29,732,069

136.393.011

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

Balances at September 30, 2017

Excess of revenues and'gains over expenses
Restricted investment income

Changes in interest in perpetual trust
Donor restricted contributions

Unrealized appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released from restriction used for operations
Assets released from restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost

Balances at September 30,2018

Deficiency of revenues and gains over expenses
Restricted investment income

Changes in interest in perpetual trust
Donor restricted contributions

Unrealized appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released from restriction used for operations
Assets released from restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost

Net Assets Net Assets

Without With

Donor Donor Total

Restrictions Restrictions Net Assets

S136,393,011 $ 9,726,007 $146,119,018

6,538,561 _ 6,538,561
_ 27,373 27,373
— 341,439 . 341,439
— 646,924 646,924

2,325,151 61,431 2,386,582

302,826 302,826

— (247,756) (247,756)

128,600 (128,600) —

20.436.931 20.436.931

29.732.069 700.811 30.432.880

166,125,080 10,426,818 176,551,898

(7,546,088) _ (7,546,088)
— 31,596 31,596
— (110,168) (110,168)
— 1,536,316 1,536,316

912,170 15,219 927,389

(482,735) - (482,735)
- (220,880) (220,880)

434,010 (434,010) -

Balances at September 30,2019

(55.070.4021

(61.753.0451

S104;372.03S

818.073

(55.070.4021

(60.934.9721

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

Operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments
Change in interest in perpetual trust
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Bond discount/premium and issuance cost amortization
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Other current assets

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Accrued pension and other liabilities

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements
Proceeds from sales of investments

Purchases of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on capital leases
Bond issuance costs

Restricted gifts and investment income
Net cash used by financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure:
At September 30,2019, amounts totaling $1,251,690

related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
were included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

2019 2018

(60,934,972) $ 30,432,880

16,902,437
55,070,402
(1,567,912)
(803,714)
110,168
482,735
(289,968)

(23.995,656)
(1.017,574)
(3,533,266)
(1,049,682)
6,945,059
299,989

(3,186,637)
r5.978.3401

(22,546,931)

(24,121,790)
17,814,698
54,831,303

(31.397.904^

17,126,307

16,136,984
(20,436,931)

(674,297)
(5,304,630)
(341,439)
(487.593)
(313,993)

(5,828,809)
(176,498)
1,711,535

(1,031,639)
(5,312,460)
2,561,918
291,872

6.039.303

17,266,203

(36,812,874)
14,819,012
32,671,019

(40.605.8991

(29.928,742)

(3,689,000) (11,509,593)
3,513,632 8,130,000
(676,199) (707,299)
(95,551) (120,118)
767.912 674.297

(179.2061 (3.532.7131

(5,599,830) (16,195,252)

61.849.320 78.044.572

^ 56.249.490 $ 61.849.3?Q

See accompanying notes.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

1. Organization

CMC Healthcare System, Inc. (the System) is a not-for-profit organization formed effective July 1,2001.
The System functioned as the parent company and sole member of Catholic Medical Center (the Medical
Center) (until December 31, 2016, as discussed below). Physician Practice Associates, Inc. (PPA),
Alliance Enterprises, Inc. (Enterprises), Alliance Resources, Inc. (Resources), Alliance Ambulatory
Services, Inc. (AAS), Alliance Health Services, Inc. (AHS), Doctors Medical Association, Inc. (DMA)
and St. Peter's Home, Inc.

On December 30, 2016, the System became affiliated with Huggins Hospital (HH), a 25-bed critical
access hospital in Wolfeboro, New Hampshire, and Monadnock Community Hospital (MCH), a 25-bed
critical access hospital in Peterborough, New Hampshire, through the formation of a common parent,
GraniteOne Health (GraniteOne). GraniteOne is a New Hampshire voluntary corporation that is
recognized as being a Section 501(c)(3) tax-exempt and "supporting organization" within the meaning
of Section 509(a)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). GraniteOne serves
as the sole member of HH and MCH and co-member of the Medical Center, along with the System.
GraniteOne is governed by a thirteen member Board of Trustees appointed by each of the respective
hospitals within the GraniteOne system. The GraniteOne Board of Trustees governs the GraniteOne
system through the existence and execution of reserved powers to approve certain actions by the Boards
of Trustees of each of the hospitals. Through GraniteOne, this more integrated healthcare system
enhances the affiliated hospitals' ability to coordinate the delivery of patient care, implement best
practices, eliminate inefficiencies and collaborate on regional planning. These efforts strengthen the
hospitals' ability to meet the healthcare needs of their respective communities and provide for a more
seamless patient experience across the continuum of care. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018 do not include the accotmts and activity of
GraniteOne, HH and MCH,

On September 30,2019, GraniteOne, the Medical Center, the System, certain subsidiaries of the System,
HH and MCH entered into a Combination Agreement (the Agreement) with Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Health p-HH) to combine GraniteOne and D-HH and its members into a more fully integrated
healthcare delivery system. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the parties intend to revise D-HH's
corporate name to Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health GraniteOne (D-HH GO), which will continue to serve
as the sole corporate member of the existing D-HH System Members (Mary Hitchcock Memorial Health
and Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, New London Hospital (NLH), Cheshire Medical Center (Cheshire),
Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center (MAHHC), Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital (APD) and
Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and New Hampshire (VNH)), and which will be substituted
for GraniteOne as the sole corporate member of HH and MCH and as co-member, of the Medical Center
and certain subsidiaries of the System (the Combination). The overarching goal of the Combination is
to create a New Hampshire-based, integrated and regionally distributed health care delivery system that
better serves its patients and communities. While the System will not be a component of the D-HH GO
System, it will continue to serve as the corporate vehicle through which the Bishop of the Diocese of
Manchester (the Bishop) ensures the Medical Center's adherence to the Ethical and Religious Directives
for Catholic Health Care Services. Neither the System nor the Bishop will have authority over any other
D-HH GO System Member, including HH and MCH. Subject to certain rights reserved to the Bishop
and the System with respect to the Medical Center and the System's subsidiaries, D-HH GO will reserve
to itself certain approval and initiation powers over the governance, financial, programmatic,
administrative, and strategic decisions of D-HH GO System Members.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Organization (Continued)

On December 30, 2019, GraniteOne, the Medical Center, HH and MCH submitted a Joint Notice of
Change of Control to the New Hampshire Attorney General, Director of Charitable Trusts pursuant to
New Hampshire RSA 7:19-b beginning the regulatory review and approval process of the Combination.
If all necessary approvals are obtained and closing conditions satisfied, D-HH GO will consist of a major
academic medical center offering tertiary and quaternary services, an acute care community hospital in
an urban setting (the Medical Center), an acute care community hospital in a rural setting (Cheshire),
five rural critical access hospitals (NLH, MAHHC, APD, HH and MCH), a post-acute home health and
hospice provider (VNH), and nearly 1,800 employed and affiliated primary and specialty care
physicians. D-HH GO System Members will combine their resources to offer a broader array of
inpatient, outpatient and ambulatory services.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Medical Center, PPA, Enterprises,
Resources, AAS, AHS, DMA and St. Peter's Home, Inc. Significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the fmancial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The primary
estimates relate to collectibility of receivables from patients and third-party payors, amounts payable to
third-party payors, accrued compensation and benefits, conditional asset retirement obligations, and self-
insurance reserves.

Income Taxes

The System and all related entities, with the exception of Enterprises and DMA, are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and are exempt from federal income taxes
on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the System's tax
positions and concluded the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant
unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the
consolidated fmancial statements.



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Enterprises and DMA are for-profit organizations and, in accordance with federal and state tax laws, file
income tax returns, as applicable. There was no significant provision for income taxes for the years
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018. There are no significant deferred tax assets or liabilities. These
entities have concluded there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring disclosure and there is
no material liability for unrecogodzed tax benefits. It is the policy of these entities to recognize interest
related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in income tax expense.

Performance Indicator

(Deficiency) excess of revenues and gains over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and
expenses and nonoperating gains and losses. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by
management to be ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as
operating revenue and expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains
or losses, which include contributions without donor restrictions, development costs, net investment
income (including realized gains and losses on the sales of investments), net periodic pension costs
(other than service cost), other nonoperating losses, and contributions to community agencies.

Charity Care

The System has a formal charity care policy under which patient care is provided to patients who meet
certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they are not reported as revenues.

Of the System's $496,274,632 total expenses reported for the year ended September 30, 2019, an
estimated $7,700,000 arose from providing services to charity patients. Of the System's $467,577,738
total expenses reported for the year ended September 30, 2018, an estimated $7,500,000 arose from
providing services to charity patients. The estimated costs of providing charity services are based on a
calculation which applies a ratio of costs to charges to the gross uncompensated charges associated with
providing care to charity patients. The ratio of cost to charges is calculated based on the System's total
expenses divided by gross patient service revenue.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
System's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are primarily due fi-om third-party payors and
amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectible amounts. The System's
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments
that exceeded 10% of investments include the SSGA S&P 500 Tobacco Free Fund and the Dreyfus
Treasury Securities Cash Management Fund as of September 30,2019 and 2018.

10



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when
purchased and investments in overnight deposits at various banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude
amounts whose use is limited by board designation and amounts held by trustees under revenue bond
and other agreements. The System maintains approximately $52,000,000 and $60,000,000 at
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, of its cash and cash equivalent accounts with a single
institution. The System has not experienced any losses associated with deposits at this institution.

Nei Patient Service Revenues and Accounts Receivable

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different from
its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge,
reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient service revenue
is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the year the related
services are rendered and adjusted in future years as final settlements are determined. Changes in these
estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the year in which they occur.

The System recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party payor coverage on the basis of contracmal rates for the services rendered. For uninsured
patients, the System provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance
payors.

The provision for doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected
net collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage,
and other collection indicators. The System records a provision for doubtful accounts in the year
services are provided related to self-pay patients, including both uninsured patients and patients with
deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for a portion of their
balance.

Periodically, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon
historical write-off experience. The results of this review are then used to make any modifications to
the provision for doubtful accounts to establish an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts.
Accounts receivable are written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with
internal policies.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or net
realizable value.

11



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related Party Activity

The Medical Center has engaged in various transactions with GraniteOne, HH and MCH. The Medical
Center recognized approximately $3.3 million and S3.4 million in revenue from these related parties for
the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is reflected within other revenues in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Medical Center also incurred expenses
to these related parties of approximately $2.5 million and $399,000 for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively, of which $800,000 and $399,000, respectively, is reflected within operating
expenses. Additionally, approximately $1.7 million as of September 30, 2019 is reflected within
nonoperating gains (losses) in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
September 30, 2019. As of September 30, 2019, the Medical Center had a net amount due from these
related parties of approximately $2.6 million, of which $4.4 million is reflected within other current
assets and $1.8 million is reflected within accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying
2019 consolidated balance sheet. As of September 30,2018, the Medical Center has a net amount due
from these related parties of approximately $507,000, which is reflected within other current assets in
the accompanying 2018 consolidated balance sheet.

PropeTtv. Plant and Equipment

"Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation,
less accumulated depreciation. The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and charge maintenance and repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of the related assets. The provisions for depreciation and amortization have been determined using
the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 2 to 40 years. Assets which have been purchased but not yet placed in service are
included in construction in progress and no depreciation expense is recorded.

Conditional Asset Retirement Oblieations

The System recognizes the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirements
in the year in which the obligation is incurred, in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (ASC 410-20). When the liability is initially recorded, the
cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related
long lived asset. The liability is accreted to its present value each year, and the capitalized cost
associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon
settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and
the liability recorded is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statements of operations.

As of September 30. 2019 and 2018, $1,036,702 and $1,078,784, respectively, of conditional asset
retirement obligations are included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

12



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2., Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill

The System reviews its goodwill and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether.the carrying
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these assets
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended September 30, 2019
or 2018. The net carrying value of goodwill is $4,490,154 at September 30, 2019 and 2018 and is
reflected within intangible assets and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Retirement Benefits

The Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement benefits for certain employees
of the Medical Center and PPA who have attained age twenty-one and work at least 1,000 hours per
year. The Plan consists ofa benefit accrued to July 1,1985, plus 2% of plan year earnings (to legislative
maximums) per year. The System's funding policy is to contribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to
meet minimum fUnding requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
plus such additional amounts as may be determined to be appropriate from time to time. The Plan is
intended to constitute a plan described in Section 414(k) of the Code, under which benefits derived from
employer contributions are based on the separate account balances of participants in addition to the
defined benefits under the Plan.

Effective January 1, 2008 the Medical Center decided to close participation in the Plan to new
participants. As of January 1, 2008, current participants continued to participate in the Plan while new
employees receive a higher matching contribution to the tax-sheltered annuity benefit program discussed
below.

During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to freeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective
December 31, 2011.

The Plan was amended effective as of May 1, 2016 to provide a limited opportunity for certain
terminated vested participants to elect an immediate lump sura or annuity distribution option.

The System also maintains tax-sheltered annuity benefit programs in which it matches one half of
employee contributions up to 3% of their annual salary, depending on date of hire, plus an additional
3% - 5% based on tenure. The System made matching contributions under the program of $8,462,595
and $7,733,193 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

During 2007, the Medical Center created a nonqualified deferred compensation plan covering certain
employees under Section 457(b) of the Code. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer a portion
of their compensation to be held until payment in the future to the participant or his or her beneficiary.
Consistent with the requirements of the Code, all amounts of deferred compensation, including but not
limited to any investments held and all income attributable to such amounts, property, and rights will
remain subject to the claims of the Medical Center's creditors, without being restricted to the payment
of deferred compensation, until payment is made to the participant or their beneficiary. No contributions
were made by the System for the years ended September 30,2019 or 2018.

13 '



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, IJNC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The System also provides a noncontributory supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain
former executives of the Medical Center, as defined. The System's policy is to accrue costs under this
plan using the "Projected Unit Credit Acniarial Cost Method" and to amortize past service costs over a
fifteen year period. Benefits under this plan are based on the participant's fmal average salary, social
security benefit, retirement income plan benefit, and total years of service. Certain investments have
been designated for payment of benefits under this plan and are included in assets whose use is limited-
pension and insurance obligations.

During 2007, the System created a supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain executives
of the Medical Center under Section 457(f) of the Code. The System recorded compensation expense
of $661,215 and $682,820 for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, related to this
plan.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The System has an "earned time" plan. Under this plan, each qualifying employee "cams" hours of paid
leave for each pay period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations, holidays, or
illness. Hours eamed but not used are vested with the employee and are paid to the employee upon
termination. The System expenses the cost of these benefits as they are eamed by the employees.

Debt Issuance Costs/Oriffinal Issue Discount or Premium

The debt issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for the System's construction and renovation
programs and refinancing of prior bonds and the original issue discount or premium are amortized to
interest expense using the effective interest method over the repayment period of the bonds. The original
issue discount or premium and debt issuance costs arc presented as a component of long-term debt.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements,
pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which the
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes, and donor-restricted
investments.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of the
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used for capital
purchases (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions have been restricted by donors
to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Except for contributions related to capital purchases, donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions
are met within the same year as received are reported as contributions within net assets without donor
restrictions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable are recognized as revenue when the unconditional promise to give is made. Pledges
expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their net realizable value. Pledges that are
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The present value of estimated future cash flows is measured utilizing risk-free rates of return adjusted
for market and credit risk established at the time a contribution is received.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. See Note 8 for
further discussion regarding fair value measurements. Investment income (including realized gains and
losses on investments and interest and dividends) is included in the (deOciency) excess of revenues and
gains over expenses unless the income is restricted by donor or law, in which case it is reported as an
increase or decrease.in net assets with donor restrictions. Realized gains or losses on the sale of
investment securities are determined by the specific identification method and are recorded on the
settlement date. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the (deficiency) excess
of revenues and gains over expenses unless the investments are classified as trading securities or losses
are considered other-than-temporary.

Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
are recognized either in the (deficiency) excess of revenues and gains over expenses or net assets,
depending on whether the derivative is speculative or being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash
flows. See also Note 6.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trust

The System is the beneficiary of trust funds administered by trustees or other third parties. Trusts
wherein the System has the irrevocable right to receive the income earned on the trust assets in perpetuity
are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions at the fair value of the trust at the date of receipt.
Income distributions fi-om the tmsts are reported as investment income that increase net assets without
donor restrictions, unless restricted by the donor. Annual changes in the fair value of the trusts are
recorded as increases or decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 aiid20I8

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Endowment. Investment and Soendine Policies

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The System currently has a policy allowing interest and dividend income earned on
investments to be used for operations with the goal of keeping principal, including its appreciation,
intact.

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events.

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the donor
or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to maximize total return while preserving the capital values of
the funds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to
provide a real rate of return that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon.

The System targets a diversified asset allocation that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return
objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the related expenditure is
incurred.
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The System has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. A claims-made basis
policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy term. The System has
established a reserve to cover professional liability exposure, which may not be covered by insurance.
The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance
coverage may be asserted against the System. In the event a loss contingency should occur, the System
would give It appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting standards. The System expects to be able to obtain renewal or other coverage in future years.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities (Topic
954): Presentation ofInsurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 3D, 2019 and
2018, the System recorded a liability of $13,252,269 and $12,520,618, respectively, related to estimated
professional liability losses covered under this policy. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, the System
also recorded a receivable of $9,584,019 and $8,829,118, respectively, related to estimated recoveries
under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts are included in accrued
pension and other liabilities, and intangible assets and other, respectively, on the consolidated balance
sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insured plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against
excessive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $3,069,898 and $3,061,261
at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, have been discounted at 1.25% and, in management's
opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. At September 30, 2019, $1,397,510 and
$1,672,388 is recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses and accrued pension and other
liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The System has also recorded
$258,107 and $408,034 within other current assets and intangible assets and other, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets to limit the accrued losses to the retention amount at
September 30, 2019. At September 30, 2018, $1,359,646 and $1,701,615 is recorded within accounts
payable and accrued expenses and accrued pension and other liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The System has also recorded $248,403 and $408,513
within other current assets and intangible assets and other, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets to limit the accrued losses to the retention amount at September 30, 2018.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
-  and the System has employed independent actuaries to estimate unpaid claims, and those claims incurred

but not reported at fiscal year end. The System was insured above a stop-loss amount of $570,000 and
$375,000 at September 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims,
and those claims incurred but not reported, at September 30, 2019 and 2018 of $2,334,000 and
$2,849,427, respectively, are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within accounts
payable and accrued expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in Note 11. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services
benefitted.

Advertising Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately $1,298,000 and
$1,918,000 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Recent Accountinp Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14) - Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability
of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the System for the year ended September 30. 2019.
The System has adjusted the presentation of these consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures accordingly. ASU 2016-14 has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The
adoption of ASU 2016-14 had no impact to changes in net assets or total net assets in 2019 or 2018.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-
09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the System expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition
guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. ASU 2014-09 is effective for the System on
October 1,2019. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition
method. The System is evaluating the impact that ASU 2014-09 will have on its revenue recognition
policies, but does not expect the new pronouncement will have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 20\6-0\, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-
10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-01). The
amendments in ASU 2016-01 address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 is effective for the System for the year ended
September 30, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact that
ASU 2016-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued!

In February 2016, theFASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU
2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU
2016-02 is effective for the System on October I, 2021, with early adoption permitted. Lessees (for
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the consolidated
financial statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting
for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full
retrospective transition approach. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption
of ASU 2016-02 on the System's consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) (ASU 2016-18). which provides
guidance on the presentation of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash
flows. ASU 2016-18 will be effective for the System's fiscal year ended September 30,2020, and early
adoption is permitted. ASU 2016-18 must be applied using a retrospective transition method. The
System is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this guidance on its consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (ASU 2018-08). Due to diversity in practice, ASU
2018-08 clarifies the definition of an exchange transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether
contributions are unconditional or conditional. ASU 2018-08 is effective for the System on October 1,
2019, with early adoption permitted The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2018-08
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure
Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement (ASU 2018-13).
The amendments in this ASU modify the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for
Level 3 assets and liabilities, and eliminate the requirement to disclose transfers between Levels 1 and
2 of the fair value hierarchy, among other modifications. ASU 2018-13 is effective for the System on
October 1,2020, with early adoption permitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU
2018-13 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and
February 4,2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30,2019 and 2018

3. Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the following at September 30, 2019:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-terra investments

Accounts receivable

$ 56,249,490
4,021,270

79.322.642

smmm

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits, money market funds,
and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily liquidity to the System. In
addition, the System has board-designated assets that can be utilized at the discretion of management to
help fund both operational needs and/or capital projects. As of September 30, 2019, the balance in
board-designated assets was approximately $110 million.

4. Net Patient Service Revenue

The following summarizes net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Gross patient service revenue
Less contractual allowances

Less provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenue

$1,435,238,995
(969.481,433)
(21.644.644)

$1,341,051,947
(888,541,572)
(20.334.249)

$ 444.112.918 $ 432.176.126

The System itiaintains contracts with the Social Security Administration ("Medicare") and the State of
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ("Medicaid"). The System is paid a
prospectively determined fixed price for each Medicare and Medicaid inpatient acute care service
depending on the type of ilbess or the patient's diagnosis related group classification. Capital costs and
certain Medicare and Medicaid outpatient services are also reimbursed on a prospectively determined
fixed price. The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost
basis which are settled with retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of related cost finding
reports.

Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. The percentage of net patient service revenues earned from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs was 37% and 5%, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2019 and 39% and 5%,
respectively, for the year ended September 30,2018.
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4. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Laws and regulations govemmg the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The System believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations;
compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation
as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion fi"om the Medicare and
Medicaid programs (Note 15).

The System also maintains contracts with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance organizations,
preferred provider organizations and state and federal agencies. The basis for payment under these
agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per day, discounts from
established charges and fee screens. The System does not currently hold reimbursement contracts which
contain financial risk components.

The approximate percentages of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts
and provision for doubtful accounts for the years ended September 30 from third-party payors and
uninsured patients are as follows:

2019

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowance and discounts

2QI8

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowance and discounts

Third-Party
Pavors

99.4%

99.6%

Uninsured

Patients

0.6%

0.4%

Total All

Pavors

100.0%

100.0%

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances, discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized for the years ended September 30 from major payor sources,
is as follows:

2019

Private payors (includes coin
surance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Patient Service

Revenues

524,868,968
151,316,824
725,090,044
33.963.159

Contractual

Allowances

and Discounts

$(264,786,990)
(128,250,350)
(555,260,823)
121.183.270)

$

Provision

for

Doubtful

Account

(7,676,695)
(332,821)

(3,439,271)
flQ.195.857)

■$1.435.238.995 .$(969.481.433)

Net Patient
Service

Revenues

Less Provision
for Doubtful

Accounts

$ 252,405,283
22,733,653

166,389,950
2.584.032

$444.112.918
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4. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

2018

Private payers (includes coin
surance and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Patient Service

Revenues

$ 477,457,407
137,508,097
695,141,198
30.945.245

Contractual

Allowances

and Discounts

Provision

for

Doubtful

Accounts

Net Patient

Service

Revenues

Less Provision

for Doubtful

Accounts

$(229,413,775) $ (9,298,563) $238,745,069
(113,364,379) (651,292) 23,492,426
(523,976,071) (3,140,980) 168,024,147
(21.787.3471 (7.243.4141 1.914.484

SI ■341.051.947 $(888.541.5721 $(20.334.^4?) $432.17^.1^^

The System recognizes changes in accounting estimates for net patient service revenues and third-party
payor settlements as new events occur or as additional information is obtained. For the year ended
September 30,2019, there were no significant adjustments recorded for changes to prior year estimates.
For the year ended September 30, 2018, favorable adjustments recorded for changes to prior year
estimates were approximately $1,000,000.

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and PisDrooortionate Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of the Medical Center's net patient service revenues with certain exclusions.
The amount of tax incurred by the Medical Center for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
was $21,382,132 and $19,968,497, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded in operating revenues and amounted to $22,566,094 and
$17,993,289 for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, net of reserves referenced
below.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 through 2014, the first years that
those payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It
is possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to
address its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redistributions. During
2019, the System reduced the recorded reserves by approximately $4,300,000.
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5. Property. Plant and Eauiproent

The major categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows at September 30:

Useful

Lives 2019 2018

Land and land improvements 2-40 years $  4,246,500 $  3,630,354

Buildings and improvements 2-40 years 137,678,182 128,776,786

Fixed equipment 3-25 years 47,021,894 46,562,689

Movable equipment 3-25 years 154,415,222 138.314,958

Construction in progress 8.565.604 9.269.135

351,927,402 326,553,922

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization f208.816.039J fl91.956.028J

Net property, plant and equipment

Depreciation expense amounted to $16,860,011 and $16,092,263 for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The cost of equipment under capital leases was $7,844,527 at September 30, 2019 and 2018.
Accumulated amortization of the leased equipment at September 30,2019 and 2018 was $7,691,462 and
$7,059,231, respectively. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in depreciation and
amortization expense.

6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30:

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds:

Series 2012 Bonds with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%
per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $1,125,000 to $2,755,000 through July 2032

Series 2015A Bonds with interest at a fixed rate of 2.27%

per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $185,000 to $1,655,000 through July 2040

Series 2015B with variable interest subject to interest rate
swap described below and principal payable in annual
installments ranging from $195,000 to $665,000 through
July 2036

2019 2018

$ 19,800,000 $ 22,450,000

21,650,000 22,255,000

8,060,000 8,260,000
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6. Long-Tcnn Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

2019 2018

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds (Continued):

Series 2017 Bonds with interest ranging from 3.38% to
5.00% per year and principal payable in annual
installments ranging from $2,900,000 to $7,545,000
beginning in July 2033 through July 2044 $ 61.115.000 $ 61,115,000

110,625,000 114,080,000

Construction loan - see below 3,513,632 -
MOB LLC note payable — see below 7,798,500 8,032,500
Capitalized lease obligations 344,079 1,020,278
Unamortized original issue premiums/discounts 5,057,437 5,450,325
Unamortized debt issuance costs _(Iii^.96,818) (1,304,187)

126,041,830 127,278,916

Less current portion (4,158,079) (4,365.199)

$U1.S83.7M

The Authority Revenue Bonds

In December 2012, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $35,275,000 of tax-
exempt fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2012). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical
Center has granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien
on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a
minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant
as of September 30,2019. The proceeds of the Series 2012 bond issue were used to advance refund the
remaining 2002A Bonds, advance refund certain 2002B Bonds, pay off a short terra CAN note and fund
certain capital purchases.

On September 3, 2015, the Authority issued $32,720,000 of Revenue Bonds, Catholic Medical Center
Issue, Series 2015, consisting of the $24,070,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015A Bonds and
the $8,650,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015B Bonds sold via direct placeinent to a financial
institution. Although the Series 2015B Bonds were issued, they were not drawn on until July 1, 2016,
as discussed below. Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical Center has granted the
Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing and fumre
property, plant-and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant as of September 30,
2019.

The Series 2015 A Bonds were issued to provide funds for the purpose of (i) advance refunding a portion
of the outstanding 2006 Bonds in an amount of $20,655,000 to the first call date of July 1. 2016,
(ii) funding certain construction projects and equipment purchases in an amount of approximately
$3,824,000, and (iii) paying the costs of issuance related to the Series 2015 Bonds.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

The Series 2015B Bonds were structured as drawdown bonds. On July 1,2016, the ftill amount available
under the Series 2015B Bonds totaling $8,650,000 was drawn upon and the proceeds in combination
with cash contributed by the Medical Center totaling $555,000 were used to currently refund the
remaining balance of the Series 2006 Bonds totaling $9,205,000.

On September I, 2017, the Authority issued $61,115,000 of Revenue Bonds, Catholic Medical Center
Issue, Series 2017. The Series 2017 Bonds were issued to fund various construction projects and
equipment purchases, as well as pay certain costs of issuance related to the Series 2017 Bonds. Under
the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical Center has granted the Authority a first coUateralized
interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing and future property, plant and equipment.
The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical
Center was in compliance with this covenant as of September 30,2019.

The Medical Center has an agreement with the Authority, which provides for the establishment of
various funds, the use of which is generally restricted to the payment of debt, as well as a construction
fund related to the Series 2017 Bonds. These funds are administered by a trustee, and income earned
on certain of these funds is similarly restricted.

Construction Loan

On July 1,2019, the Medical Center established a nonrevolving line of credit up to $10,000,000 with a
bank in order to fund the expansion of the Medical Center as discussed in Note 15. The line of credit
bears interest at the LIBOR lending rate plus 0.75% (2.84% at September 30, 2019). Advances from
the line of credit are available through July 1, 2021, at which time the then outstanding line of credit
balance will automatically convert to a term loan. Upon conversion, the Medical Center shall make
monthly payments of principal and interest, assuming a 30-year level monthly principal and interest
payment schedule, with a final maturity of July 1, 2029. The bank shall compute the schedule of
principal payments based on the interest rate applicable on the conversion date. Payments of interest
only are due on a monthly basis until the conversion date. The Medical Center has pledged gross receipts
as collateral and is also required to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical
Center was in compliance with this covenant as of September 30, 2019. As of September 30,2019, the
Medical Center has drawn $3,513,632 on this line of credit.

MOB LLC Notes Payable

During 2007, MOB LLC (a subsidiary of Enterprises) established a nonrevolving line of credit for
$9,350,000 with a bank in order to fund construction of a medical office building. The line of credit
bore interest at the LIBOR lending rate plus 1%. Payments of interest only were due on a monthly basis
until the completed construction of the medical office. During 2008, the building construction was
completed and the line of credit was converted to a note payable with payments of interest (at the one-
month LIBOR rate plus 1.4%) and principal due on a monthly basis, with all payments to be made no
later than April 1,2018.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

On March 27,2018, the MOB LLC note payable discussed above was refinanced to a term loan totaling
$8,130,000. Interest is fixed at 3.71% and is payable monthly. Principal payments of $19,500 are due
in monthly installments beginning May 1,2018, and continuing until March 27, 2028, at which time the
remaining unpaid principal and interest shall be due in full. Under the terms of the loan agreement, the
Medical Center and MOB LLC (the Obligated Group) has granted the bank a first collateralized interest
in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The
Medical Center and the System also guarantee the note payable. The Obligated Group is required to
maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Obligated Group was in compliance with
this covenant as of September 30,2019.

The aggregate principal payments due on the revenue bonds, capital lease obligations and other debt
obligations for each of the five years ending September 30 and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 4,158,079
2021 2,650,886
2022 2,779,704

2023 3,001,881
2024 3,094,120
Thereafter 106.596.541

Interest paid by the System totaled $4,688,512 (including capitalized interest of $158,155) for the year
ended September 30, 2019 and $4,351,405 (including capitalized interest of $251,490) for the year
ended September 30,2018.

The fair value of the System's long-term debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on
the System's current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of bonowing arrangements. The fair
value of the System's long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease obligations, was approximately
$128,000,000 and $122,000,000 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Derivatives

The System uses derivative financial instmments principally to manage interest rate risk. During 2007,
MOB LLC entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional amount of $9,350,000
in connection with its line of credit. Under this agreement, MOB LLC paid a fixed rate equal to 5.21%,
and received a variable rate of the one-month LEBOR rate. The interest rate swap agreement terminated
April 1,2018. The change in fair value of this interest swap agreement totaled $184,767 during 2018,
which amount was included within nonoperating investment income within the 2018 consolidated
statements of operations.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continuedl

In January 2016, the Medical Center entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional
amount of $8,650,000 in connection with its Series 201 SB Bond issuance. The swap agreement hedges
the Medical Center's interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments from variable rates
to a fixed rate. The swap agreement is designated as a cash flow hedge of the underlying variable rate
interest payments, and changes in the fair value of the swap agreement are reported as a change in net
assets without donor restrictions. Under this agreement, the Medical Center pays a fixed rate equal to
1.482%, and receives a variable rate of 69.75% of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.46% at September 30,
2019). Payments under the swap agreement began August 1, 2016 and the a^eement will terminate
August 1,2025.

The fair value of the Medical Center's interest rate swap agreement amounted to a liability of $220,010
as of September 30,2019, which amount has been recorded within accrued pension and other liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of the Medical Center's interest rate
swap agreement amounted to an asset of $262,725 as of September 30, 2018, which amount has been
recorded within intangible assets and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
(decrease) increase in the fair value of this derivative of $(482,735) and $302,826, respectively, has been
included within the consolidated statements of changes in net assets as a change in net assets without
donor restrictions for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018.

7. Operating Leases

The System has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical equipment. The
System also has noncancelable leases for office space and its physician practices. Rental expense under
all leases for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018 was $4,847,292 and $4,857,031, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

2020 S 3.180,427
2021 3,151,760
2022 3,178,564
2023 3,155,635
2024 3.048.854
TTiereafter 5.620,891

S21.336.131
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8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited

Investments and assets whose use is limited are comprised of the following at September 30:

2019
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost

Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,988,051 $ 16,988,051 $ 16,525,946 $ 16,525,946
U.S. federal treasury obligations 19,045,894 19,043,708 36,950,913 36,957,749
Marketable equity securities 44,292,283 41,130,117 44,031,227 39,959,906
Fixed income securities 38,160,610 38,096,345 57,757,424 58,911,509
Private investment funds 51,796,283 21,653,351 55,530,346 25,886,418
Pledges receivable 758.184 758.184 z_

S171.Q41.305 $137.669.756 $17§.241.»8

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, the use of various
valuation approaches, including market, income and cost approaches, is permitted.

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from sources independent
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own assumptions about how market
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of
which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure
fair value.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used by the System for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
The three levels of inputs are as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data.
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8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Liroitcd (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques. The
three valuation techniques are as follows:

• Market approach and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities;

•  Cost approach - Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e.,
replacement cost); and

•  Income approach - Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on
market expectations (including present value techniques).

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30,2019 and 2018.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used:

U.S. Federal Treasury Oblieations and Fixed Income Securities

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The System holds fixed income
mutual funds and exchange traded funds, governmental and federal agency debt instruments, municipal
bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as Level I within the fair value
hierarchy.

Marketable Equity Securities

Marketable equity securities are valued based on stated market prices and at the net asset value of shares
held by the System at year end, which generally results in classification as Level I within the fair value
hierarchy.

Private Investment Funds

The System invests in private investment funds that consist primarily of limited partnership interests in
investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominandy comprised of equity and
fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other less liquid investments.
Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the System values these
investments, which ordiiiarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata interest in the net assets of the
limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each investment manager from time to
time, usually monthly and/or quarterly.
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8. Tnvestments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the fiinds and/or recently settled transactions. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation
of certain private investment funds, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from
actual values, and differences could be significant. Management beUeves that reported fair values of its
private investment funds at the consolidated balance sheet dates are reasonable.

Fair Value on a Recurrine Basis

The following table presents information about the System's assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input to the valuations at September 30.

2019

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. federated treasury obligations
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities
Pledges receivable

Investments measured at net asset value:
Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

Liabilities

Interest rate swap agreement

2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. federated treasury obligations
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Interest rate swap agreement

Investments measured at net asset value;
Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

Level 1

16,988,051
19,045,894

44,292,283
38,160,610

Level 2 Level 3

$ 16,525,946
36,950,913

44,031,227
57,757,424

758.184

S758.184

Total

$ 16,988,051
19,045,894

44,292,283
38,160,610

758.184

119,245,022

$ -

51.796.283

sizmum

$220.010 $ 220.010

$ 16,525,946
36,950,913

44,031.227
57.757.424-

262.725262.725

$262.725 155,528,235

55.530.346

S2n.058.581
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8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

The following table presents the assets (liabilities) carried at fair value as of September 30, 2019 and
2018 that are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Balance at September 30, 2018
Net activity

Balance at September 30, 2019

Balance at September 30,2017
Unrealized gains
Balance at September 30, 2018
Unrealized losses

Balance at September 30, 2019

Pledges Receivable

$
758.184

^758.184

Interest Rate Swan Agreement

$(224,868)
487.593

262,725
1482.7353

There were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the years ended September 30, 2019 or
2018.

Net Asset Value Per Share

The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency of those assets whose fair value
is estimated using the net asset value per share practical expedient at September 30:

Category

2019

Private investment funds

Private investment funds

Fair Value

$48,155,175

3,641,108

Unfunded

Commitments

Redemption
Frequency

Daily/monthly
Quarterly

Notice Period

2-30 day notice
30 day notice

2018

Private investment funds

Private investment funds

$52,108,790
3,421,556

$ - Daily/monthly
Quarterly

2-30 day notice
30 day notice
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8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

Investment Stratemes .

U.S. Federal Treasiirv Obligations and Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of these investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable source of
income, preserve capital, reduce the volatility of the total portfolio, and hedge against the risk of
deflation or protracted economic contraction

Marketable Eouitv Securities

The primary purpose of equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and ̂ owth of income
with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of loss. The
total equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to economic sector, industry,
number of holdings and other characteristics, including style and capitalization. The System may
employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have distinct investment styles.
Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fiilly diversified, it is expected that the
combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

Private Investment Funds

The primary purpose of private investment fiinds is to provide further portfolio diversification and to
reduce overall portfolio volatility by investing in strategies that are less correlated with traditional equity
and fixed income investments. Private investment funds may provide access to strategies otherwise not
accessible through traditional equities and fixed income such as derivative instruments, real estate,
distressed debt and private equity and debt.

Fair Value ofOther Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses,
amounts payable to third-party payors and long-term debt. The fair value of all financial instruments
other than long-term debt approximates their relative book values as these financial instruments have
short-term maturities or are recorded at amoimts that approximate fair value. See Note 6 for disclosure
of the fair value of long-term debt.
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9. Retirement Benefits

A reconciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, the Medical Center's
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement
Income Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018, and a statement of funded status of the plans for both years is as follows:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

Changes in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations

at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid
Actuarial Ooss) gain
Expenses paid

Projected benefit obligations at end of year

Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status of plan at September 30

Amounts recognized in the
balance sheets consist of:

Current liability
Noncurrenl liability

2019

$(270,114,507)
(1,500,000)

(11,301,910)
7,935,050

(48.841.695)
1 468.125

2018

$(284,200,778)
(1,500,000)

(10,628,197)
7,117,759
17,666,264
1.430.445

Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

2019 2018

$(4,140,755) $(4,567,286)

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement Income Plan

2019 2018

(154,744)
408,853

(174,264)

(140,414)
411.692
155,253

$(2,829,963)
(25,000)

(114,026)
173,921

(372.806)
16.623

$(3,062,398)
(25,000)
(104,714)
171,828
173,565
16.756

(322,354,937) (270,114,507) (4,060,910) (4.140,755) (3,151,251) (2,829,963)

185,414.590
5,194,931
8,141.191

(7,935,050)
M.468.125)

189J47.537

181,485,20! - - 2,140,827 2.144.861
12,074,468 - -7 56,327 141,614

403.125 408,853 411,692 120,167 42.936
0.117.759) (408.853) (411.692) (173.921) (171,828)
n.430.4451 z:_ =_ fl6.6231 (16.7?$)

185.414.590 ^ ^ .,2.126.777 ?.|40.827

.t rR4 699 9171 tf4 Q6Q 9lQ1 Sr4 140 7551 Sfl 024 4741

$  - $ - $ (391,100) $ (398,750) $
fl33.007.4001 f84.699.9l71

$n33.Q07.4Q01

f689.1361

if4 060.9101 $r4.140.7551 Sf 1.024.4741 $ f689.1361

The net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from net assets without donor
restrictions into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $4,686,885.

The current portion of accrued pension costs included in the above amounts for the System amounted to
$391,100 and $398,750 at September 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, and has been included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying balance sheets.

The amounts recognized in net assets without donor restrictions for the years ended September 30
consist of:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

2019 2018

Prc-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

2019 2018

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

2019 2018

Amounts recognized in the
balance sheets - total plan:

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Net loss $(160.478.7001 £f 105.860.7121 $(2.141.???) S(2.102.0?4) $lL2Q2Ji2) S(1.4?2.H?)

Net amount recognized £ f 160 478 7001 £f 105 860.7121 $iU2m£2) HI ,492,143)
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9. Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the years ended September 30:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
AinortizHiion of actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

2019

$  1,500,000
11,301,910

(13,738,629)

2018

1,500.000

10,628,197
(13,110,637)

3.275.000

Pre*l987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

2019 201i

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

154,744

134.713

140,414

147.466

2019

25,000

114,026
(155,594)

62.049

2018

S  25,000

104,714

(153,960)
67.898

S  289457 5 287.880 5 45.481 S 43 652

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in net assets without donor restrictions
for the years ended September 30,2019 and 2018 consist of:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

2019 2018

Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

2019 2QiS

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement Income Plan

2019 2018

Net loss (gain)
Amortization ofactuarial loss

Net amount recognized

$  57,388,232 % (16,630,095) $ 174,264 $ (155,253) $ 472,073 $ (161,219)
1134.7131 1147.4661 162.0491 (»7.S98)

^  54.620.827 5 119905.0951

The investments of the plans are comprised of the following at September 30:

Catholic Medical Center Pre- i 987 Supplemental

S  410.024

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Allncalinn Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan Retirement Income Plan

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

5.0% 0.0% 3.5% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 35% 1.1%

65.0 70.0 68.5 66.2 0.0 0.0 68.5 66.2

20.0 20.0 24.6 23.7 0.0 0.0 24.6 23.7

10.0 JM U _i4

100 0% 100.0% IOQ.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100 0%

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities
Fixed income securities

Other

The assumption for the long-term rate of return on plan assets has been determined by reflecting
expectations regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, with consideration given to the
distribution of investments by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual asset class.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at
September 30 are as follows:

Catholic Medical Center

201*9"'°" ''2OI8
Pre-1987 Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plan

2019

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase
3.12%

N/A

4.23%

N/A

2.70%

N/A

353%

N/A

2019

2.93%

N/A

2018

4.10%

N/A
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9. Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan net periodic
benefit costs for the years ended September 30 are as follows:

Catholic Medical Center

Pension Plan

Pre-1987 Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plan

New Hampshire
Medical Labmtoriea

Reltrcmeni Income Plan

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

4.23% 3.79% 3.93% 3.22% 4.10% 3.52%

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

7.30 % 7.30% N/A N/A 7J0% 7.30%

Discouni rate

Rate of compensation increase
Expected long-term return on plan assets

The System expects to make employer contributions totaling $6,500,000 to the Catholic Medical Center
Pension Plan for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020. Expected employer contributions to the
Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and New Hampshire Medical Laboratories
Retirement Income Plan for the fiscal year ending September 30,2020 are not expected to be significant.

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years
ending September 30 are as follows:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025 - 2029

Catholic

Medical Center

Pension Plan

$ 9,243,136

9,993,328
10,827,746
11,705.953
12,473,696

72,831,683

Pre-1987

Supplemental
Executive

Retirement Plan

$  396,345
381,634

366,382
350,590

334,272

1,409,626

New Hampshire
Medical Laboratories

Retirement

Income Plan

$194,433
200,720
200,423
200.594

197,969
947,912

The System contributed $8,141,191, $408,853 and $120,167 to the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan,
the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and New Hampshire Medical Laboratories
Retirement Income Plan, respectively, for the year ended September 30,2019. The System contributed
$403,125, $411,692 and $42,936 to the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, Pre-1987 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement Income Plan,
respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2018. The System plans to make any necessary
contributions during the upcoming fiscal 2020 year to ensure the plans continue to be adequately funded
given the current market conditions.
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9. Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the financial assets of the above
plans measured at fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input
valuation as of September 30:

2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Investments measured at net asset value:

Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Investments measured at net asset value:

Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

Level 1

6,607,245
48,731,127

47.028.757

$ 2,160,634
39,221.636
44.497.162

Level 2 Level 3 Total

;  6,607,245

48,731,127
47.028.757

102,367,129

89.107.185

^191-474.314

$ 2,160,634
39,221,636
44.497.162

85,879,432

101.675.985

$lS7.5gS.417

10. Community Benefits

The System rendered charity care in accordance with its formal charity care policy, which, at established
charges, amounted to $22,670,908 and $21,671,846 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Also, the System provides community service programs, without charge, such as the
Medication Assistance Program, Community Education and Wellness, Patient Transport, and the Parish
Nurse Program. The costs of providing these programs amounted to $977,697 and $983,861 for the
years ended September 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.
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11. Functional Expenses

The System provides general heal± care services to residents within its geographic location including
inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows at
September 30, 2019:

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Healthcare

Services

$241,819,757

132,091,040
21,382,132
10,590,235
3.178.047

General and

Administrative

$42,827,203
37,028,017

6,312,202

1.045.999

Total

$284,646,960
169,119,057
21,382,132

16,902,437
4.224.046

S4Q9.Q6l.2il S87.213.421

For the year ended September 30,2018, the System provided $367,226,914 in health services expenses
and $100,350,824 in general and administrative expenses.

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as
depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that
are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the
expenses were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to.

12. Concentration of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables fi'om patients and third-party
payors is as follows at September 30:

2019 2018

Medicare 45% 44%

Medicaid 12 12

Commercial insurance and other 24 23

Patients (self pay) 5 8

13Anthem Blue Cross 14 ■

100% 100%
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13. Endowments and Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Endowments

In July 2008, the State of New Hampshire enacted a version of UPMIFA (the Act). The new law, which
had an effective date of July 1, 2008, eliminates the historical dollar threshold and establishes prudent
spending guidelines that consider both the duration and preservation of the fund. As a result of this
enactment, subject to the donor's intent as expressed in a gift agreement or similar document, a New
Hampshire charitable organization may now spend the principal and income of an endowment fund,
even from an underwater fund, after considering the factors listed in the Act.

Endowment net assets consist of the following at September 30:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

2019

Board-designated endowment fiinds $110,175,169 $ - $110,175,169

Donor-restricted endowment ftmds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount and
amounts required to be maintained in
perpetuity by donor - 7,342,731 7,342,731

Accumulated investment gains zl- 2.902.160 2,902,160

Total endowment net assets

2018

Board-designated endowment funds $107,832,023 $ — $107,832,023

Donor-restricted endowment ftmds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount and
amounts required to be maintained in
perpetuity by donor - 7,342,731 7,342,731

Accumulated investment gains 3.084.087 3,.Q§4iQ87

Total endowment net assets
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13. Endowments and Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balance at September 30, 2017

Investment return, net

Contributions

Appropriation for operations
Appropriation for capital

Balance at September 30, 2018

Investment return (loss), net

Contributions

Appropriation for operations
Appropriation for capital

Balance at September 30, 2019

$102,045,292 $ 9,726,007 $111,771,299

5,658,131 430,243 6,088,374

128.600

107,832,023

1,909,136

434.010

646,924

(247,756)
(128.6001

10,426,818

(63,353)

536,316
(220,880)
(434.0101

646,924

(247,756)

118,258,841

1,845,783

536,316
(220,880)

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment fimds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the Medical Center to retain as a fimd of perpetual
duration. There were no such deficiencies as of September 30,2019 or 2018.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:

2019

Funds subject to use or time restrictions:
Capital acquisitions
Health education

Indigent care
Pledges receivable

Funds of perpetual duration

$  258,494
909,765
168,437
758.184

2,094,880
9.150.011

2018

37,941
899,288
253,492

1,190,721

9.236.097
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

14. Investments in Joint Ventures

AAS has a 44% ownership interest in the Bedford Ambulatory Surgical Center. AAS accounts for its
investment in this joint venture under the equity method.

AAS has a 50% ownership interest in the Alliance Urgent Care Services, LLC. AAS accounts for its
investment in this joint venture under the equity method.

The Medical Center, along with four other participating hospitals and Tufts Health Plan, formed Tufts
Health Freedom Plan (THFP), a joint venture. THFP is a health insurance company which began
operations as of January 1, 2016. The Medical Center has an approximate 12% ownership interest in
this joint venture. Selected financial information relating to the above entities for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018 is not shown as such amounts are not significant to the consolidated
financial statements.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Litieation

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been
threatened against the System. The System intends to defend vigorously against these claims. While
ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indeterminable, it is management's
opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the System.

Re^latory

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning
possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could
result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as significant repayments for patient
services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations are subject to government review
and interpretations as well as regulatory actions unknown or unassorted at this time.

Development Agreement

During fiscal year 2019, the Medical Center entered into a development agreement with PJC Manchester
Realty, LLC ("Rite Aid") in regards to the Medical Center's acquisition of certain property owned by
Rite Aid. Under the development agreement, the Medical Center acquired the property from Rite Aid
for approximately $6.9 million, inclusive of certain costs expected to be incurred to construct a new
building that Rite Aid will own and occupy at a separate location. The purchase of the property from
Rite Aid allows the Medical Center to expand its campus. As the Medical Center retains title to the
project until such time of the second closing, as defined within the development agreement, amounts
paid under the development agreement are recorded by the Medical Center as land acquisition costs, and
totaled approximately $4.6 million as of September 30, 2019.

The Medical Center has outstanding construction commitments related to this project totaling
approximately $8.1 million at September 30,2019.
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Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
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800.2447444 I www.bnncpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

ON OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Board of Trustees

CMC Healthcare System, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMC Healthcare System, Inc. (the System) as of and
for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, and have issued our report thereon, which contains an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. See page 1. Our audits were conducted for
the purpose of forming an opinion on die consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position, results
of operations and cash flows of the individual entities and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived fi-om and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
mformation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In om opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation.to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

BaJir LVC
Manchester, New Hampshire
February 4,2020
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

September 30,2019

Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:

Intangible assets and odier

Assets whose use is limited:

Pension and insurance obligations
Board designated and donor restricted

investments and restricted grants
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements

Total assets

Catholic

Medical

Center

Physician
Practice

Associates

ASSETS

Alliance

Enterprises

Alliance

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

Alliance

Health

Services

Doctors

Medical

Association

$ 47,897,010 $ 2,391,045 $ 3,445,644 S 705,932 S 603,153 $ 222,020 $ 75,443
4,021,270 - - _ _ _ -

78,067,491 - (3,076) - - 1,258,227
4.600.802 - - _ _ _ -
12.780.425 (22.4433 14.433 65.943 1.335.176

147,366,998

118,690,076

11,869,524

18,832,810

122,116,666
18.845.355

159.794.831

5437.721.429

2,368,602 3,457,001 771,875

8,550,580 14,715,075

603,153 2,815,423

76,528

6,731,090

.515 486 950

75,443

Saint

Peter's

Home

933,932

1,079,104

.57 891 951 5 75.443

7,225,204

7.225.204

simm

Elimi-

nations Consolidated

$ 909,243 $ -

24.689

$ 56,249,490
4.021,270

79,322,642
4,600,802
14.198.223

158,392,427

143,111,363

18,600,614

18.832,810

129,341,870
18.845.355

167.020.035

5487.124 439
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LiABrLirres and net assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Due to (from) affiliates
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Accrued pension and other
liabilities, less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets

Catholic

Medical

Center

$ 36,870,043
18,604,407
11,456,467

991,062
3.924.079

Physician
Practice

Associates

Alliance

Entemrises

160,696,816

1H.42I.35I

346.964,225

$  101,896 $ 116,826
4,256,637

(876,484)

71.846,058 3,482,049

9.869,149

33,830
234.000

384,656

1,041,879

7.462.400

13,351,198 8,888,935

Alliance

Resources

;  14,945

(112,489)

(97,544)

69.526

(28,018)

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

Alliance

Health

Services

$1,557,916

(17,750)

1,540,166

372,466

1,912,632

79,512,313 (10,982,596) 3,118,646 15,514,968 7,334,243 979,319
11.244.891 =_

Doctors

Medical

Association

$  9,312

(16,141)

Saint

Peter's

Home

$ 314.964
112,434

(2,028)

(6,829) 425.370

(6,829) 425,370

82,272 8,812,870

90.757.204 flO.982.596) 3.118.646 15.514.968 7.334.243 979.319 82.272 8.812.870

Elimi-

nations

$  -

$437.721.429 S2891.95I $ 75443 $9 238.240

Consolidated

$ 38,985,902
22,973,478
11.456.467

4.158.079

77,573,926

172,049,836

121.883.751

371,507,513

104,372,035

11.244.891

115.616.926

$487 124 439
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended September 30,2019

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowances and discounts

Provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenues less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue

Disproportionate share funding
Total revenues

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Nonoperating gains Oosses):
Investment income

Net periodic pension cost, other than
service cost

Contributions without donor restrictions

Development costs
Other nonoperating (loss) gain

Total nonoperating gains, net

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
on investments

Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released firom restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost
Net transfers (to) from affiliates

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Catholic

Medical

Center

Physician
Practice

Associates

Alliance

Entcmriscs

Alliance

Resources

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

Alliance

Health

Services

Doctors

Medical

Association

Saint

Peter's

Home Eliminations Con.solidafftri

S449.484.087
(■20.972.1631

$ S $ $ $16,273,475
1672.481)

S S S $465,757,562
f2I.644.644)

428,511,924
14,687,063
22.566.094

21,730,371 2,029,569 .1,348,691 2,450,518
15,600,994

589,283 114.787 3,296,789 (24,636,486)
444,112,918
21,610,585
22.566.094

465,765,081 21,730,371 2,029,569 1.348,691 2,450,518 16.190.277 114,787 3,296,789 (24,636,486) 488389,597

227.559,475
161,282,151
21,382,132
15,741,819
3.913.935

59,819,529
2,859,148

25,000
829,215

310,579
310.111

886,058

613,839

15,345,730
6,095,729

34,602

129,091
3,293,166

278,211

201,598

(21,395,940)
(3.240,546)

284,646,960
169,119,057
21,382,132
16,902,437
4.224.046

429.879.512 62.678.677 1.474.905 1.499.897 21.476.061 129.091 3.772.975 f24.636.486) 496.274.632

35,885,569 (40,948,306) 554,664 (151,206) 2,450,518 (5,285,784) (14,304) (476,186) - (7,985,035)

3,875,387 - - - 14,106 - - 231,369 - 4,120,862

(595,606)
834,004

(739,596)
13.153.6993

(24,537) (20,481) •

-

18.000

(640,624)
834,004

(739,596)
f3.135.699)

220.490 124.537) f20.481) — 14.106 249.369 438.947

36,106,059 (40,972,843) 534,183 (151,206) 2,464,624 (5,285,784) (14304) (226,817) - (7,546,088)

1.026,222
(482,735)
434,010

-

-

- - - - (114,052) - 912,170
(482.735)
434,010

(51,110,160)
f46.I33.644)

(3,550,218)
42.163.000

(410,024)
120.167 700.000 f2.500.000) 5.650.000

-

477
- (55,070,402)

364.216 S 114.3041
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATrNG BALANCE SHEET

September 30,2018

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:

Intangible assets and other

Assets whose use is limited;

Pension and insurance obligations
Board designated and donor restricted

investments and restricted grants
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements

Total assets

Catholic

Medical

Center

$ 57.668,500 $
29,009,260
54.074,988

3,583,228
9.150.610

153,486,586

109,898.233

10,875,302

17,859,458

119,411,378
36.660.053

ASSETS

Physician
Practice Alliance Alliance

Associates Enterprises Resources

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

Alliance

Health

Services

173.930.889 1.488

Doctors

Medical

Association

Saint

Peter's

Home

22,273 S 2,745,448 $ 332,128 $ 376,706 $ 166,645

-  - - - 1,251,998

3.750 2.537 57.365 286.666 1.139.687

26,023 2,747,985' 389,493 663,372 2,558,330

8,858,160 14,585,192 - 111,130

-  - - 6,706,247

1,488 - _ _ _

1.608

78,557

22.734

483,405

1,145,179

7,854,219

7.854.219

Elirhi-

nations Consolidated

$ 76,949 $ 460,671 $ - $ 61,849,320

29,009,260

55,326,986
3,583,228
10.664.957

160,433,751

134,597,894

17,581,549

17,859,458

127,267,085

36.660.053

181.786.596

til 606 145 .<14 974 685 £9482803 S -
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LlABlLrriES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities;

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Due to (from) affiliates
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Accrued pension and other
liabilities, less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets

Catholic

Medical

Center

$ 28,743,870
18,755,583
14,643,104
1,477,267
4.131.199

115,111,279

115.229J29

298,091,631

Physician
Practice

Associates

$  68,143

3,791,797

(1.392,988)

67,751,023 2,466,952

6,183,094

8,650,046

Alliance

Enterprises

Alliance

Resources

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

90,029 $ 17,169 S

16,867 (80.123)
234.000 .

340,896 (62,954)

706.541 71,465

7.684.388 .

8,731,825 8,511

Alliance

Health

Services

$1,660,520

2,986

139,672.561 (8,622,535) 2,874,320 14,966.174 7,369.619 615,103
10.426.818 =_ =_ — r_

150.099.379 f8.622.S35t 2.874J2Q 14.966.174 7.369.619 6I5.1Q3

$1 1 606.145 $14 974 685

Doctors

Medical

Association

$  5,590

(23,609)

Saint

Peter's

Home

$ 203,832
126,109

(400)

1,663,506 (18,019) 329,54!

390,851

2.054357 (18,019) 329,541

96,576 9,153,262

96.576 9.153.262

Elimi

nations

$  -

Consolidated

$ 30,789,153
22.673,489
14,643,104

4.365.199

72,470,945

122,463,230

122.913.717

317,847,892

166,125,080
10.426.818

176.551.898

$494399 790
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Catholic

Medical

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowances and discounts $436,357,697 $ - $

Provision for doubtfixl accounts fl9.593.7141 ii_
Net patient service revenues less
provision for doubtful accounts 416,763,983

Other revenue 12,515,169
Disproportionate share funding 17.993.289

Total revenues 447,272,441

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 217,868,046
Supplies and other 153,527,155
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax 19,968,497
Depreciation and amortization 14,972,724
Interest 3.933.617

Total expenses 410,270.039

Income (loss) from operations 37,002,402

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income 5,699,700
Net periodic pension cost, other than

service cost (1,023,371)
Contributions without donor restrictions 629,198
Development costs (635,408)
Other nonoperating (loss) gain fSl 1.679)

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net 4.158.440

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

Unrealized appreciation on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released from restriction used for capital
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost 18,843,760 1,364,053
Net transfers (to) from affiliates (35.782.824) 31.967.000

Change in net assets without donor restrictions ^ 229.210

Physician
Practice

24,664,782

55,518,048
2,191,509

57.709.557

(33.044,775)

(57,068)

24,664,782

41,160,842 (33,101,843)

Alliance Alliance

Associates Enterprises Resources

Alliance

Ambu

latory
Services

-  $ -  $

Alliance Doctors

Health Medical

Services Association

$16,152,678 $

(740.5351 ^

2,026,051 1,306,175 2,685,142
15,412,143

572.119

25,000
752,790

333,910
435.148

1.546.848

479,203

158,797

(18,653)

8.285
(57.0681 148.429

1,016,430

594.149

1.610.579

(304,404) 2,685,142

14,377,316
5.867,844

41,518

20.286.678

(4,302,416)

3,429

3.429

229,118
223.054 1.112.760 4.130.000

131,102

2,026,051 1,306,175 2,685,142 15,984,262 131,102

142,023

142.023

(10,921)

627.632 (304,398) 2,688,571 (4.302,416) (10,921)

2,184,604 _ _ _ _ _ _
302,826 _ _ - - _ _
128,600 _ _ _ - _ -

Saint

Peter's

Home Eliminations

-  $ - $452,510375

^  ̂ (20.334.249)

3,020,016.
333,456

194,683

(457,868)

224,862

14.100

238.962

(218,906)

140,547

10

432,176,126
19,454,686
17.993.289

3,090,287 (27,536,141) 469.624,101

3,090387 (27,536,141)

(23,995,148) 266.813.278
(3,540.993) 160,290,214

19,968,497
16,136,984

^  4.368.765
3.548.155 (27.536.141) 467.577.738

2,046,363

6,086,794

(1,099,092)
629,198
(635,408)
(489.2941

4.492.198

6.538.561

2325,151
302,826
128,600

20,436,931

$aam) -  $ 79 732n6Q
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Catholic Medical Center

Board of Trustees - 2020

John Cronin Esq., Chair

Cronin, Bisson & Zalinsky, P.O.

Manchester, NH

icronin@cbzla\v.com

Susan M. Kinney, RN, MSN

Saint Anselm College

Manchester, NH

skinnev@ansclm.edu

Nell Levesque, Vice Chair

NH Institute of Politics

Manchester, NH

nlevesaue@anselm.edu

Derek McDonald, ex offlcio

Bishop's Delegate for Health Care
Diocese of Manchester

Manchester, NH

dmcdonald@rcbm.org

Matthew Kfoury, Secretary

Central Paper Company

Manchester, NH

mkfourv@cenlralDaDer.com

Marie McKay

Bigelow & Company
Manchester, NH

marie@,bigeiowcDa.com

Pamela Diamantis, Treasurer

Curbstone Financial Management Corp
Manchester, NH

Ddiamantis@curbsionefinancial.com

Robert A. Catania, MD

President, CMC Medical Staff

Surgical Care Group
Manchester, NH

robert.catania@cmc-nh.org

Carolyn G. Caussen, MD
Willowbend Family Practice

Bedford, NH

carolvn.caussen@cmc-nh.org

Louis I. Fink, MD

New England Heart & Vascular Institute
Manchester, NH

louis.fink@cmc-nh.org

John J. Munoz, MD

Manchester Urology Associates, PA

Manchester, NH

iohn.munoz@cmc-nh.org

Joseph Pepe, MD ex officio

PresidentyCEO

Catholic Medical Center

Manchester, NH

ioseDh.DeDe@cmc-nh.org

Catherine Provencher, CPA

University System of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH

catherine.Drovencher@usnh.edu

Timothy Riley

Harbor Group

Manchester, NH

trilev@harborgrouD.com
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Key Personnel - Salary and Job Descriptions

^  ■) sgi^i jloescrjptlons

President &. CEO $  816,920.00 ca-

Executive VP.CFO $  473,803.20 [Z

EVP/Chief ODeratine Officer $  485,659.20 □

VP.Operations/CIO $  273,603.20 ET

VP of Nursine / Chief Nursing Officer $  267,758.40 cz

VP, General Counsel $  216,320.00 □

Senior Vice President, Provider Network & Integration $  297,731.20 i3r

interim Chief Medical Officer / Executive Medical Director, Population Health $  345,009.60 et

Fvftrnfive Director, Phvsician Practice Associates $  145,648.46 cz

Senior Vice President, Operations $  302,016.00 [Z

Fxer.iitive Director. Surgical Services $  189,408.13 cz

Executive Director. Support Services / Security $  126,250.00 □



BB ̂ K/i CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM
iV-- JOB DESCRIPTION

cat>iouc medical

...... ■^■■.-v..-..-.. - -r,— - '

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual whoseeks or needs our care as part of Christ's healing ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE: January. 2013

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: President/CEO
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: President/CEO
REPORTS TO: Board of Directors

POSITION SUMMARY:

Provides overall leadership, direction and management for Catholic Medical Center and its
subsidiaries.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Under the direction of the Catholic Medical Center Board of Directors and within established Catholic
Medical Center and Corporate policies and procedures, the incumbent performs the following
functions:

1. Participates in Catholic Medical Center Board and Committee meetings and serves on the
CMCPPA Board.

2. Directs the development and implements the mission, business, strategic direction and objectives
of the hospital and subsidiaries.

3. Directs the development of the operating policies, procedures, structures and programs required
to implement the general policies established by the Boards of the hospital and subsidiaries.

4. Directs the general management of the organization, consistent with Catholic Medical Center s
Bylaws, mission statement, vision and philosophy, to support the achievement of strategic
objectives, keeping the Board informed about the plans, progress and financial condition of the
organization.

5. Prepares and presents annually to the Board of Directors of Catholic Medical Center.
a. Short and long range strategic plans for Catholic Medical Center and subsidiaries.
b. Long term financial plans for the organization.
c. Operating and capita! budgets for Catholic Medical Center and subsidiaries.
d. Public relations and marketing plans for Catholic Medical Center and subsidiaries.
e. Fund raising plans for Catholic Medical Center.

Page 1 of 4



6. Assures compliance with Federal and State regulations and Joint Commission.

7. Oversees a corporate compliance plan to the organization.

8. Serves as liaison to Medical Executive Committee and medical staff.

9. Directs and maintains all physical properties of Catholic Medical Center and subsidiaries in good
state of repair and operating conditions.

10. Participates in local, regional or national activities related to specific needs of the organization.
Keeps the Catholic Medical Center Board informed about significant local, regional and national
health care issues and trends.

11. Responsible for appropriate hiring, discipline and discharge of employees and organizes the
executive corporate staff of Catholic Medical Center within approved resource constraints to
support the achievement of the organization's strategic objectives, through the authority delegated
by the Board of Directors.

12. Executes on behalf of Catholic Medical Center and its subsidiaries contractual agreements,
leases, licenses, permits and certificates required for the operations of Catholic Medical Center
and subsidiaries.

13. Directs the management of the organization's day-to-day operations, establishing operating
policies and procedures; sets priorities and allocates resources to provide for the effective and
cost-efficient functioning.

14. Conveys the image of the Catholic Medical Center; communicates the policies and priorities of the
Board to the Executive Management Team and employees; represents the concerns of the
various constituencies to the Board.

15. Directs the Executive and Senior Management Teams of the organization and conducts regular
meetings of the Team.

16. Perfomis similar or related duties as assigned or directed.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job. with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job:
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1. Physical requirements include ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; to pick, pinch,
or otherwise work primarily with fingers, to grasp. Primary functions involve sitting most of the
time, but walking and standing may be required occasionally.

2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Primary functions include
activities in which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions or discussion
to employees, physicians, visitors and outsiders.

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and make fine discrimination in
sound.

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

5. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures,
accounting and extensive reading.

6. Ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems
where there is little accepted method or procedure; participate in the formulation and carrying out
of policies, objectives and programs for major division or functions; exercise considerable
ingenuity and exceptional judgment to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret results and
make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility; direct and coordinate the work of
subordinates in order to attain objectives.

7. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or excessive stress; ability to work with frequent
interruptions and respond appropriately to unexpected situations.

8. Ability to transport self to and from offsite locations.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS; Limited

WORK SCHEDULE:

•  Generally Monday through Friday, day shift; occasional requirements to participate in special
events.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

•  Master's Degree in Hospital, Healthcare or Business Administration or a combination of
equivalent education and related Senior Management experience.

Experience:

•  Substantial related healthcare leadership experience as a CEO or a senior position, as deemed
appropriate by Board of Trustees.
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Licensure/Certification:

None

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.

1 have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:.

Employee Signature: Date:

Manager Name:.

Manager Signature:. Date:

Disclaimer:

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respectfor the human dignity of every individual who

seeks or needs our care as part of Christ's healing ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/12

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: Finance

REPORTS TO: President/CEO

POSITION SUMMARY:

The EVP, CFO is responsible for the development, interpretation, coordination and administration of
the system's policies on finance, accounting, insurance, investments, financing, internal controls and
auditing. The position is also responsible for the maintenance of records and procedures required to
adequately safeguard the assets of the system. The EVP. CFO participates in strategic planning,
compatible with the system's objectives and financial business plan.

Under the overall direction of the President/CEO, and within established departmental policies and
procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions:

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. Develops, interprets, coordinates and administers the corporate policies on finance,
investments, insurance, accounting systems, internal controls and auditing. Maintains
knowledge of national, state and local economic conditions and determines their impact on
current operations. Keeps abreast of all regulatory activities which may influence the fiscal
management of the system.

2. Prepares and presents consolidated, system-wide, operating and capital budgets to the Board
of Trustees for their review and approval, in conjunction with the CEO.

3. Reviews each service provider's business plan and correlates the plans with operating
budgets for appropriateness. Provides a corporate-wide review process of adual performance
against budget to ensure that operations are maintained within allocated funding levels.
Develops and maintains a corporate-wide auditing system.

4. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees periodic reports outlining
the corporation's financial position in all areas by assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.

5. Prepares and files all federal, state and local financial reports.
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6. Prepares and ensures the distribution of any dividends, cash distribution or other remuneration
due investors for the for-profit corporations. Files required financial information with the Office
of the Secretary of State.

7. Reviews and provides for current and adequate insurance protection to guard CMC from
liability and/or loss.

8. Researches and acquires funding for various corporate ventures and Initiatives.

9. Evaluates the system's rate structures and recommends changes, when needed.

10. Evaluates for management and the Board of Trustees, the system's objectives and programs
as they relate to third-party reimbursement.

11. Negotiates agreements with health maintenance organizations, preferred provider
organizations, and outside groups contracting for healthcare services.

12. Oversees the medical records and admissions functions.

13. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Executive Management Team, including
but not limited to serving on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and
representing administration as needed or requested.

14. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in
appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations according to
location.

15. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains
■work area in an orderly manner.

16. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established organizational and
departmental policies and procedures.

17. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget, and company matters. Maintains good
communications: establishes and maintains positive working relationships with employees,
regulatory agencies, vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations.

18. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job. with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safeiy perform the
essential functions of the job:
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1. Ability to bend the body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend
hand(s) and arm{s) in any direction. Ability to stand for sustained periods of time. Abilityto move
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for long periods of time. Ability to raise objects from
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position.

2. Ability to pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole and or arm
as in handling.

3. Ability to express or exchange Ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey
detailed questions to elicit information from others.

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount of force frequently
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

5. The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and
outside.

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting,
and extensive reading.

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret
results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work
of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Limited

WORK SCHEDULE:

•  Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend
scheduled or unscheduled requirements; periodic ovemight travel for meetings, educational
programs, etc.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

•  Bachelors Degree or a combination of related education, knowledge and related experience;
Masters Degree in a related healthcare or business discipline preferred.

Experience:

•  Sufficient previous experience as a Senior Level Manager in healthcare.
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standard nf Business Conduct

individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could .
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
anv instance where you feel there "is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you cornply
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.

have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:.

Employee Signature:

Manager Name:.

Manager Signature: -

Dlsclaimer:

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual who

seeks or needs our care as part of Christ's healing ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE: June, 2014

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: VP. GIG
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: IS Executive

REPORTS TO: Executive Vice President / CFO

POSITION SUMMARY:

Responsible for all information and communication systems for the Health System Network, including
voice and data communications networks, information systems business and clinical applications, and
other related technologies as adopted by service lines and departments. Must ensure the continuous
delivery of available and responsive systems, and timely and accurate data throughout Catholic
Medical Center and its affiliates as appropriate. As a member of the senior management team,
formulates plans for maximizing the use of information technology in support of corporate business
objectives. Participates with senior management in a proactive manner to build strategic plans for the
organization through the effective collection, organization and delivery of critical information to insure
that information resources and services are in place to support established business plans. Manages
a complex infrastructure supporting a diverse user base, utilizing applications provided by multiple
vendors, including custom written and designed applications. The user community resides across
multiple locations. The network operates 24x7x365, supporting over 250 individual applications

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Under the general direction of the Executive Vice President/CFO and within established policies and
procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions:

1. Directs and manages the information and communication technologies and services for Fiscal,
operational, clinical and decision-support uses for CMC and its affiliates.

2. Provides strategic and tactical planning, development, evaluation, and coordination of the
information and technology systems for the health care network.

3. Facilitates communication between staff, management, vendors, and other technology
resources within the organization.

4. Responsible for the management of multiple information and communications systems and
projects, including voice, data, imaging, and office automation.
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5. Pians, develops, implement's, maintains and continuously enhances ail network hardware and
software for the corporation

6 Responsible for minimizing the investment required to produce established service levels. This
requires the incumbent to maintain contact with suppliers and leasers of equipment and
supplies, and to maintain a current knowledge and awareness of technology, equipment, prices
and terms of agreements. The incumbent subsequently evaluates ail factors, performs
appropriate cost/benefit analysis and favors alternatives that minimize costs commensurate with
acceptable risks. Defines, develops, designs and implements plans and strategies to maintain
state-of-the-art solutions.

7. Designs, implements, and evaluates the systems that support end users in the productive use of
computer hardware and software.

8. Develops and updates an information systems strategic plan for meeting current and future
needs of CMC and its affiliates.

9. Coordinates the core steering group, and insures that it functions as a mechanism which
improves the overall value of IT consistent with CMC priorities.

10 Serves as the principal developer of corporate poiicies and standards aimed at minimizing costs
' and maximizing controls related to the acquisition, impiementation and operation of information
and communication systems.

11 Coordinates ailocation of resources to provide high levels of service for deveiopment of new
technology solutions to support CMC strategies and pnonties.

12 Provides periodic reports of IT activity, status, and costs to senior management, executive
' management, the board of directors, and various committees as required.

13 Provides leadership to multidisciplinary task forces and committees in defining and acquinng
technoiogy solutions to meet business requirements and CMC strategic pnonties.

14 Participates in formSi and informal CMC task forces and meetings involving planning, quality
improvement, and other matters of priority to the Executive Management Team.

15. Ascertains, establishes and offers education and training programs for existing and future users.

16 Prepares, presents and administers plans, capital and operating budgets for the information
services group. The incumbent has responsibiiity for monitonng iT actiyihes and costs as they
relate to the overall utilization of resources required to meet corporate l/S targets.

17 Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients, trains, supervises, directs
■ schedules and assigns work of subordinates. Outiines scope of authonty as weil as pb
resDonstoilities of empioyees under supeivision. initiates and approves personnel actions
including, but not iimited to, hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding.
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disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts
formal/informal performance evaluatigns and recommends merit increases.

18. Negotiates all hardware, software and integration contracts, soliciting involvement and
participation of other management team members as appropriate.

19. Provides direction and monitoring of progress on major EDP/IS projects, including the rapid
mobilization of resources to diminish implementation time lines and organizational impacts.

20. Develops and implements user-training programs.

21. Develops, implements and monitors the federal meaningful use requirements related to health
information technology to ensure successful timely compliance with the financial incentives.

22. Interacts with senior management in determining systems needs, changes, improvements, and
subsequently provides direction for new systems from project inception through installation and
functional operation.

23. Develops and executes plans and programs to inform and communicate with users.

24. The incumbent must take a corporate view of systems and problems, and generate strategies
that are consistent with the strategic goals of CMC, and in the best interest of the overall system.

25. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Senior Management Team, including but
not limited to serving on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and
representing administration as needed or requested.

26. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise.

27. Exercises care in the use and operation of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work
area in a clean and organized manner.

28. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, client/patient, budget and all company matters.

29. Participates in appropriate role in disaster and fire drills, fires, and other emergency situations.

30. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job:
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1 ;■ Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction, raise
objects from a lower to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position;
Dick pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or arm, appiy
pressure to an object with fingers and palm; sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or
fingers.

2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word.
3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations

In sound.

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently
or constantly io lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

5. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures,
accounting, transcription, computer terminal work, and extensive reading.

6. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations.

7. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations.

8. Requires the ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing
problems where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the
formulation and carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions.
Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily
evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and
coordinate the work of subordinate supen/ision in order to attain objectives.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Limited

WORK SCHEDULE; . . .
•  Generally Monday through Friday, days; occasional requirements to cover special events, penodic

overnight travel, etc.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:
•  Bachelor's degree in a related field required.
.  Advanced degree (MBA, Master of Health Care Administration, Master of Computer Science)

preferred.

Experience'
.  A minimum of fifteen years information systems management expenence preferably in theapplication and delivery of information system technologies in a health care environment.
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System integration experience implementing systems which involve multiple vendors and
multidisciplinary teams under specific schedules and budgets with committed deliverables.
Must have a strong background and experience with project management methodologies
including a successful track record of large scale information systems project implernentations
Must understand and be capable of coordinating a healthcare business strategy to the application
of information technology. Must be capable of anticipating the information technology needs of the
organization as a result of the strategic initiatives which have been established.

.  The successful candidate will have strong skills in information technology components including
but not limited to local and wide area network topologies, hardware components, voice
communication technologies including tariffs and regulatory considerations. Knowledge of
computer hardware and data base architectures, including relational, basic, objected based
technologies, and electronic data exchange, programming languages, and fourth and fifth
generation tools. The candidate must have a strong understanding of the persona! computer
industry, the trends that drive it as well as the IT industry in general.

•  The candidate must have a background in business and clinical systems, including experience in
their implementation in a hospital system with a strong ambulatory presence. Merger, conversion,
and consolidation experience is a must. • . r

•  The individual must be capable of evaluating the effectiveness of the l/S staff across a variety of
disciplines including communications, systems development, operations, people management,
strategic planning, and personal computer deployment and use.

•  Strong planning and accounting skills including the ability to construct strategic plans, analyze
cash flows, along with the long term implications of capital and expense expenditures.

•  Strong communication skills including the ability to interact with executive level management,
physicians, community business leaders, patients, employees and agencies. The ability to speak
in a public forum, present ideas, and generate acceptance of concepts and strategies.

.  Training and experience in contract law, and contract management, including the preparation and
management of system integration contracts which have fixed time frames, penalties, and
deliverables. Training and experience in the preparation and development of software license
agreements. ,

•  Training and experience In the development of l/T lease arrangements including step leases,
capital leases, operating leases, and technology exchange leases.

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.
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I have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Empioyee Name:.

Employee Signature: "^^te:.

Manager Name:.

Manager Slgnature:^ ^ Date:,

Disclaimer:

The above Information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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The heart of Catholic Medical Center is carry out Christ's healing ministry by offering health, healing,
and hope to every individual who seeks our care.

EFFECTIVE DATE; May, 2018

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: Vice President of Nursing/ Chief Nursing Officer
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: Chief Nurse Officer
REPORTS TO: President/CEO

POSITION SUMMARY:

The Vice President and Chief Nursing Officer is responsible for all professional administrative
activities in the department of nursing. Administers the interpretation and implementation of the
standards of nursing practice throughout CMC, assures that competent, compassionate standards are
uniformly applied in the provision of patient care across all service lines. Plans, organizes,
implements and evaluates supportive and evaluative services that provide to all patient care and
hospital areas mechanisms to achieve a clinical environment that provides for the comfort and safety
of all patients.

Supervises and directs patient care services leadership toward attainment of identified short- and
long-term goals and objectives; executes strategies and plans designed to achieve said objectives
and collaborating with other hospital executives to meet organizational goals and objectives.

Provides for an efficient and effective mechanism of communication that assures consistency across
all service lines and within all hospital departments. Assists other Vice Presidents and senior
executives in the clinical administration of the hospital.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES;

Under the general direction of the CEO and in"collaboration with the Sr. Vice President of Operations
and within established CMC and departmental policies and procedures and all applicable laws,
through own actions or by delegating to appropriate co-workers, the incumbent performs the following
functions:

1. Interprets and oversees the implementation and evaluation of uniform quality standards for
nursing practice that are approved by recognized experts and other accreditation agencies.

2. Works closely with management, senior leaders and nursing leadership in developing and
maintaining all the nursing affairs of the hospital.

3. Works in coordination with the EVP/CFO. EVP/COO and Senior VPs on all matters relating to
smooth operations, efficiencies, short and long-term strategies of the Medical Center.
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4. Identifies and articulates the vision and strategic direction for the delivery of patient care and the
discipline of Nursing across all patient care settings, directs and collaborates on the
implementation of strategies to achieve them.

5. Creates an environment in which collaboration is valued and excellence in clinical care, education,
and research is promoted and achieved.

6. Establishes vision and is accountable for programs which support the nursing profession such as
professional recognition programs, nursing leadership development, nursing research and nursing
tuition programs.

7. Oversees the development of educational programs that will assist with the interpretation of the
standards of practice and their application to direct patient care.

8. Partners with the Medical Staff, CMO, PI and Infection control to promote patient safety and
quality patient care.

9. Oversees patient experience as it relates to nursing.

10. Maintains a "just culture" in regards to nursing peer review and quality improvement.

11. Partners with Office of Catholic Identity to ensure the Ethical and Religious Directives for
Healthcare Services are evident in provision of patient care

12. Serves as the senior spokesperson for Nursing. Advises the senior leadership, the medical staff,
board and individual clinical facilities and other internal and external groups by providing input
about the implications of decisions and change on the quality of patient care, on nursing practice,
and on nursing care provider

13. Develops and ensures a safe and effective patient care environment through participation in
institutional planning, product evaluation, and evaluation of new systems and programs that
impact nursing care in the organization.

14. Introduces methods that will help the hospital and nursing staff be efficient In providing care and
developing lines of communication and flow of information among the administration, medical staff
and nursing.

15. Disseminates information to responsible departments and promotes communication exchange
16. Communicates policies and priorities of CMC to the nursing staff.

17. Assures the provision of a clinical environment for students in nursing and other related health
fields. Assures that the educational objectives of the students and the placement within the
organization are consistent. Ensures that the State Board of Nursing receives the student
affiliation schedules.

18. Assures compliance for TJC, HCFA and other State and Federal regulatory bodies.
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19. Maintains an appropriate patient classification system. Assures that the appropriate numbers and
classification of personnel are assigned to provide patient care. Reviews, with the appropriate
executive, any discrepancies that exist.

20. Assures that the appropriate contractual agreements are current and meet insurance and legal
requirements for the use of outside nursing agencies. Assures that appropriate orientation and
evaluation of the agency nurses are completed and kept on file.

21. Maintains a system for assuring that the licenses of the nursing personnel are current. Maintains
communication with the State Board of Nursing and communicates any changes or disciplinary
action necessary to the nursing personnel.

22. Promotes and fosters an inter-professional approach to patient care, and the coordination of care
among disciplines.

23. Creates an environment that encourages recruiting and retention of clinical employees.

24. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients, trains, supervises, directs, schedules
and assigns work of subordinate staff whether through own efforts or by delegation to subordinate
supervisory staff.

25. In conjunction with HR, responsible for appropriate hiring, disciplining and discharging of
employees overseen by this position within the constraints of the budget and authority delegated
by the CEO.

26. Outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supervision.
Initiates and approves personnel actions including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring,
suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving
assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts formalAnformal performance evaluations and
recommends merit increases.

27. Provides leadership and direction for the development of strategies to promote the recruitment,
retention, and recognition of excellence in Nursing; including but not limited to the oversight and
recommendations regarding compensation and benefit programs for nursing staff

28. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary
guidelines. Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase of equipment, technology, services
and/or manpower to achieve cost-effective acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of the
departments and subsidiary companies. Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual
agreements to ensure value is received and takes action to eliminate non-value costs.

29. Oversees the Nursing Shared Governance Structure and leads the Nursing Leadership Council.

30. Resolves grievances related to the nursing staff interactions with patients, families, nurses,
hospital staff and administration in conjunction with the patient liaison and patient experience
department.
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31. Serves as the administrative liaison to board committees as requested. Attends and serves on
professional/civic service organizations as a CMC representative.

32. Attends meetings and ad hoc task forces in matters relating to hospital needs.

33. Assists in planning new services that generate additional sources of patient care and revenue.

34. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise.

35. Represents the best interests of CMC in the community or on any community Boards.

36. Exercises care in the use and operation of CMC equipment and reference materials.

37. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and CMC matters.
38. Conducts all of the above and performs similar or related duties as required or directed by the

CEO and consistent with the mission of CMC with the utmost degree of ethics and professionalism

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job:

1. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

2. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations.

3. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations.

4. Ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular
field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in the
analysis of facts and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions to determine what
actions should be taken, modifying or adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions,
making decisions based on precedent and policy.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Limited

WORK SCHEDULE:

•  Generally Monday through Friday, days; occasional requirements to be called and called in nights
and weekends and cover special events, periodic overnight travel, etc.

QUALIFICATIONS:
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Education:

•  Graduate of an N.L.N. approved nursing program.
•  Masters Degree In Nursing required.

Experience:

•  Minimum of seven (7) or more years of experience in Nursing Administration at the executive
level.

Licensure/Certifi cation:

•  Current registration in the State of New Hampshire as a Registered Nurse.
•  Nursing Administration certification strongly preferred.

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.

I have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee

Name: -

Employee Signature:

Date:

Manager Name:.

Manager Signature: ^ Date:.
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Disclaimer:

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
Interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes ail other versions.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

TITLE: Vice President
Patient & Physician COMPENSATION
Support Services APPROVAL:

DEPARTMENT: Administration EFFECTIVE:
REPORTS TO: CEO, President. & SVP,COO APPROVAL:

PRIMARY PURPOSE

The Vice President, Patient and Physician Support Services, is responsible for the adrninistrative direction
including planning, organizing, budgeting, implementing, evaluating and ensuring the efficient,
auality performance of all assigned departments/areas of responsibility to support or provide quality health care
serviis assures that standards are uniformly applied in the provision of patient care across services lines.
Accountable for the fo!lov/ing departments: Admissions. Health information Management. Social WorWCase
Management, Pastoral Care. Patient Complaint Program, Quality Management (Hospital and Medical Staff),
Credentialing', CME, Attendant Services. Risk Management, Corporate Compliance, the Medical Management
Program, CMC Medical Director, and the Physician Advisor for Medical Management

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Under the direction of the Chief Executive Officer and SVP. COO. and within established organizational and
departmental policies and procedures. JCAHO standards, and all-applicable state and federal regulations, the
incumbent performs the following functions:

Primary Functions:

1  Provides leadership, direction and general management to the department directors and programs including,
but not limited to. developing goals and objectives, establishing and implementing policies and procedures for
the operational and long-range planning of services of Catholic Medical Center.

2. Develops collaborative, influential relationships with the medical staff, third party payers, community agencies,
nursing homes, and the 010 to assure efficient systems and resource utilization along the continuum to
provide the corisistent delivery of high quality services to patients, the community, and medical staff.

3. Assists in maintaining a hospital-v/ide Quality Management Program that evaluates the quality of care
provided to patents and meets the requirements of accrediting agencies, including the Medical Staff. Serves
as the Senior Management representative to the Board of Directors for the Quality Management Committee.

4. Responsible for the Patient Complaint Program supporting the rights of patients, addressing their needs and
ethical concerns, and evaluating patient satisfaction.

5  Assures that the Admission Department supports the financial and informaUonal needs of all departments to
have correct demographic and billing information. Assures systems are in place for bed placement throughout
the hospital, including pre-admissions and direct admissions.

6  Assures the provision of Social WorWCase Management services meet resource management, discharge
planning medical management (Including physician profiling, clinical resource utilization, numing unit profiles,
avoidable days), patient rights, ethics and legal requirements of Catholic Medical Center and its subsidianes.
Identifies opportunities for improvements with length of stay reduction, practice variation, and cost savings
processes without compromising quality patient care.

Assures the provision of Pastoral Care services to patients, family members and staff.

Provides leadership and overall direction for Quality Management, Medical Staff Support Services, CME.
S^l sJff medical staff committees. (I.e.. Credentials Committee. Medical Execuhve Committee.
Professional Health Committee) and Peer Review. Assures appropnate processes and systems are in place

AdministralionWice President Patient & Physician Support Services
10/07/03
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for the credentialing of medical staff members (Initial appointments and reappointments). and serves as the
Senior Manager responsible for medical staff quality, risk management functions, corporate compliance and
patient complaints.

9  Assures the Health Information Management Department meets the needs of Catholic MedicalCenter
physicians payers and hospital-wide departments in accordance with state, federal and JCAHO reguiauons.
Provides leadership and direction for appropriate education of medical staff and hospital employees including
compliance, coding, documentation, and reimbursement functions.

10 Provides direction for system wide programs, policies, and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable
' federal and state laws (i.e. CMS and Medicaid) and JCAHO for all CMC employees, medical staff and

volunteers.

11 Provides facilitation for process improvement within departments in order to impact on overall cost, quality and
satisfaction for patient care.

12. Provides support to all hospital departments to assist them in the provision of patient care.

13. Interviews and selects candidates for employment Orients, trains, supervises, directs, schedules and assigns
work of subordinate staff v/hether through own efforts or by delegation to subordinate supervisory staff.
Outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates and
approves personnel actions including, but not limited to. hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging,
assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. Prepares and
conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and recommends merit Increases.

14. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary guidelines.
Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase of equipment, technology, services and/or manpower to
achieve cost-effective acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of departments and subsidiary companies.
Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual agreements to ensure value is received.

15. Keeps the Chief Executive Officer/COO informed of all events, activities, or problems, which will, or may have,
a significant effect on hospital operations.

16. Assures appropriate policies, procedures and guidelines are in place witti managed care contracting impacting
on financial reimbursement, quality medical management and satisfaction including capitated contracts.

17. Participates in Strategic Planning functions of frie hospital, including the management, organization,
participation and timely completion of special projects assigned by the CEO.

18. Provides direction and participation in the development of organization-wide management educational
activities.

19 Attends Executive Committee of the Medical Staff and other medical staff committees as needed. Facilitates
" and/or chairs medical staff work teams to assure that the planning and development of services is completed.

20. Works closely with members of the medical staff, their elected officers and department chairs/chiefs to resolve
issues, advance new and improved clinical programs, and ensure quality of care,

21. Works with medical staff members to maintain and improve performance in financial, utilization and
patient/payor satisfaction matters.

22. Develops and maintains effective relations with internal and external constituents.

23 Provides educational activities and written communication to ptiysicians related to the following: policies and
procedures that affect their practices directly, initiatives within the organization as well as current market
activities in the surrounding geographic market.

.c^pmndary Functions:

AdministradonWicc President Patient & Physician Support Services
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1  Attends/participates and serves on professional/civic service organizations as a Catholic Medical Center
Senior Management representative.

2 Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in appropriate role indisasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations according to location.

3  Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional affiliations to
keep abreast of latest trends In field of expertise.

4  Serves as the administrative liaison to Medical Staff, Ethics Board Committees, Quality Management
Committee, and other board committees as requested.

5  Exercises care in the use and operation of Catholic Medical Center equipment and reference materials.

6. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and Catholic Medical Center matters.

7. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed.

Knowledge. Skills and Abilities

•  Individuals must possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities listed or be able to explain and demonstrate that the ,
individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable accommodation, using some
other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the necessary physical requirements with or without the aid
of mechanical devices to safely perform the essential functions of the job.

1  Ability to deliver patient care In a manner that is appropriate to patient's age, physical ability and Intellectual
development. Must demonstrate proficiency In assessing treatment and responses and adapting care to
meet the needs of the patient population served; neonatal, pedlatric, adolescent, adult and/or geriatric.

2. Physical requirements Include ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) In any direction; raise objects from a lower
to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position; pick, pinch, type, or otherwise work
primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or arm; apply pressure to an object with fingers and palm;
sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or fingers.

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions Include activities in
\Artiich Incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions to employees, physicians, patients,
families, and external contacts.

4. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communlcatiori and to make fine discrimination In sound.

5. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently or
constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures, accounting,
transcription, computer terminal work, and extensive reading.

7. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions and respond
appropriately to unexpected situations.

8. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations.

9  Ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems where there is
little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation In the formulation and carrying out of policies,
obiectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgrnen
reoulred to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of
responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives.

AdministrationWicc President Patient & Physician Support Services
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10 Worthing knowledge of hospital organization, management, and operations. Basic knowledge of hospital
accounting and finance, JCAHO standards, state and local government regulations, and human resources
principles.

11. Ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular field and the use
of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in the analysis of facts and conditions
regarding Individual problems or transactions to determine what actions should be taken, modifying or
adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions, making decisions based on precedent and policy.

12. Ability to receive training and guidelines from supervisor before assuming program responsibilities. Functions
independently following training.

13. Familiarity with database, spreadsheet and word processing software.

14. Ability to interact effectively with people of varied educational, socioeconomic and ethnic backgrounds, skill
levels and value systems. Ability to work closely and professionally with representatives of regulatory, civic,
and service organizations, healthcare professionals and members of the medical staff.

15 Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud and
abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in any
instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. Responsible for
detecting offenses by employees within ones department. Requires that suspicion or knowledge of any
person(s) violation of the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you
comply with the requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job
performance.

OSHA RATING:

ACCESS TO PHI:

WORK SCHEDULE:

2

Limited

Generally Monday through Friday, day shift; expectation of
evening, night, weekend scheduled or unscheduled requirements;
Periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational programs, etc.
Ability to take Administrative On-call.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

Exoerlence:

Masters Degree in Hospital or Health Care Administration or Business

Minimum of seven years experience in a management position in
health care, including Operations, program planning and strategic
development

AdministrationWicc President Patient & Physician Support Services
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B /^IVl CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM | | | f
IV^ JOB DESCRIPTION liii

CATHOUC MCOWAL ceJ^EH

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual who

seeks or needs our care as part ofChrist's heking ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE: October. 2012

POSITION TITLE: Executive Medical Director of Catholic Medical Center Health Systems
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: Administration
REPORTS TO: SRVP/Dperations / NEHI & Physician Practices

COn/IPENSATION: See Contract

POSITION SUMMARY

Executive Medical Director at Catholic Medical Center Health Systems (CMCHS) is responsible for
advancing ne\w and improved clinical programs, ensuring low cost, high quality of care and improving
performance in financial, utilization and patient/family/payer satisfaction matters.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Under the general direction of the SRVP/ Operations/NEHl & Physician Practices, within established
departmental policies and procedures and all applicable laws, through own actions or by delegating to
appropriate co-workers, the incumbent, performs the following functions:

1  Cooperates and participates in the development of overall strategic vision and plan for the hospital
system with an emphasis on physician integration and aligning hospital and physician interests as
well as creating value.

2. Works closely with the SRVP/ Operations / NEHI & Physician Practices in developing and
maintaining internal and external stakeholder relationships and programs and initiatives.

3. Wori<s closely with the Chief Medical Officer (CMO) and the administration to help the hospital and
its medical staff be more effective and efficient in providing care and develop lines of
communication and flow of information between administration and the medical staff with the help
of physician leaders.

4. With the CMO and CMC Medical Directors, serves as a resource to the medical staff in regard to
.compliance and consistency in credentialing, reappointments, risk, quality, bylaws, policies, rules
and regulations.

5. Works in coordination with the CMO and others in administration to resolve grievances relating to
the medical staff interactions with patients, families, nurses, hospital staff and administration.



6. Assists the CMO and the medical staff in the process of risk/quality and corrective actions by
education and communication.

7. Supports the medical staff elements of The Joint Commission (TJC), Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid (CMS) and well as other accreditation and regulatory bodies.

8. Identifies and encourages future physician leaders.

9. Meets with and supports current medical staff leaders including elected medical staff and
appointed medical directors to provide mentoring, guidance, education, and coordination of
services.

10. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Management Team, including but not
limited to serving on committees and task forces and performs other duties as physician leader
when requested or needed.

11. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations
according to location.

12. Responsible for compliance and enforcement of all established organizational and department
policies and procedures.

13. Ensures confidentiality of employees, legal, budgetary, and company matters. Maintain good
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with employees,
physicians, regulatory agencies, vendors, consultants, and the public.

14. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the knowledge, skills and abilities listed or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and possess the
necessary physical requirements with or without the aid of mechanical devices, to safely perform the
essential functions of the job.

i. Physical requirements include the ability to raise objects from a lower to a higher position or to
move objects horizontally from position to position; the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any
direction; pick, pinch, type or othenwise primarily work with fingers; Perceiving attributes of objects
such as size, shape, temperature or texture by touching with skin, particularly that of fingertips;
use upper extremities to exert force in order to draw, haul or tug objects in a sustained motion; to
press against something with steady force in order to thrust forward, dov\mward or outward; apply
pressure to an object with the fingers and palm; ability to substantially move wrists, hands and/or
fingers; bending body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist; bending body
downward and forward by bending leg and spine; ability to bend legs at knee to come to rest on
the knee or knees.
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2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include
activities in which incumbent must convey detailed or Important spoken instructions to patients,
physicians, families and other employees.

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations
in sound.

4. Ability to exert up to 20 pounds of force occasionally, and/or a negligible amount of force
constantly to move objects.

5. The incumbent is subject to hazards including a variety of physical conditions such as proximity to
moving mechanical parts and electrical currents or exposure to chemicals.

6. The incumbent is subject to normal inside environmental conditions.

7. The incumbent is not substantially exposed to adverse environmental conditions.

8. Visual acuity sufficient for work \which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting,
transcription, computer terminal operation and extensive reading,

9. Requires the ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a
particular field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in
the analysis offsets and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions to determine
what actions should be taken within the limits of standard practice.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Complete

QUAUFICATIONS

Education:

•  MD or DO degree

Experience:

•  A minimum of 15 years as a Clinical Physician and experience as a Physician Leader such as
Medical Director. President of the Medical Staff or Chair of the Department.

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to vifhich you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.
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i have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. 1 understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:.

Employee Signature: Date:

Manager Name:.

Manager Signature: Date:

Disclaimer:

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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In-- job description

CATMOUC Meoiou. CENTER

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual who

seeks or needs our care as part of Christ's healing ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE; December 2017
Reviewed December 2017 CO

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: Executive Director of Operations, PPARC
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: Catholic Medical Center - Physician Practices
REPORTS TO: SVP, NEHI/Physician Practice Network

POSITION SUMMARY:

The Executive Director of Operations, PPAPC is responsible for the planning, assessment, evaluation
and operations of the PPAPC of Catholic Medical Center. Manages the delivery of services and
responsible to oversee new initiatives, process improvement Initiatives and data collection and
analysis within the PPAPC network. In addition the Executive Director will have operational and
financial management responsibilities for the PPAPC. This will be accomplished through collaboration
with other practice managers, SVP, NEHI/Physician Practice Network, Medical Director of the PPAPC
and the providers to meet the performance objectives of Physician Practice Associates.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Under the direction supervision of the SVP, NEHI/Physician Practice Network and in collaboration
with the (PPA) Physician Practice Associates Medical Director, and within established policies and
procedures, the incumbent performs the following essential functions:

1. Creates and provides a framework for quality reporting (dashboards) that are consistent with the
PCMH initiative to include the ACO's and private insurer's quality indicators.

2. In conjunction with the SVP of PPAPC prioritizes initiatives and develops time frames and
implementation plans.

3. Assumes oversight of and develops process improvement initiatives of the PPAPC along with
input from SVP. Medical Director and Practice managers

4. Works with and oversees the PM on implementation of process improvement activities to
standardize key workflows

5. Collaborates with IT and the EMR to include implementation of new systems for the PPAPC.

1 of 5
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6. Works with PM to develop management tools for improved monitoring of practice management.
Develops tools to monitor the PPAPC on provider productivity, revenue enhancement, expense
management and provider satisfaction with PPA.

7. Directs the implementation of the PCMH model with the PPAPC.

8. Provides direction to practice through monthly monitoring and achievement of annual budget and
business plan. Communicates practice achievement plan to provider and staff to ensure targets
are met/exceeded. Places emphasis on provider productivity, revenue enhancement, expense
management and provider satisfaction with PPA.

9. Oversees the PM to direct the day to day operation of practice. Implements PPA best practice
models in clerical and clinical areas, medical record management protocols, and regulatory
compliance, including adherence to Joint Commission standards.

10. Provides or delegates training on policies and procedures (e.g. registration, billing coding, new
payer plans, reimbursement and accounting).

11. Works collaboratively with the Medical Director, SVP and the Physician Recruiter in the hiring and
integration of new providers to the PPAPC in a timely fashion.

12. Assures credentialing process of provider is accurate and complete. Guides provider enrollment
into appropriate payer plans.

13. Conducts regular meetings at each practice with provider and staff to keep information current and
resolve issues. Prepares agendas and maintains meeting minutes.

14. In association with the finance team and the practice mangers develops operational and capital
budgets. Ensures practice managers are within budget.

15. Oversees physical property in conjunction with CMC Property Manager; sen/es as a liaison
between offsite facilities manager, condo associations as appropriate and Practice.

16. Along with the practice managers, reviews each practice's monthly income statement and
registration/billing reports - provides financial information to each provider on a regular basis.

17. Works in conjunction with Catholic Medical Centers Compliance Director and (PPA) Physician
Practice Associates Medical Director to ensure practice meets required compliance and clinical
competency thresholds.

18. Notifies SVP, NEHI/Physician Practice Network and the Medical Director, PPAPC of key provider
issues on regular basis, with proposed resolutions. Implements resolutions.

19. Implements and supports a system of continuous quality improvement to ensure effective and
efficient use of resources and smooth patient flow, while adhering to budget and optimizing
provider productivity.

20. Adheres to all operational excellence standards and stresses excellence to all practice personnel.

21. Provides periodic reports or other data relative to practice operations to PPA management.
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22. Ensures rental and internal/external service contracts for property and equipment are current and
services are value-added works, In conjunction with the SVP, NEHI/Physician Practice Network
and hospital policies.

23. Works with the SVP. NEHI/Physician Practice Network with regard to office building and architect'
in construction projects, providing direction on facility location, design, equipment, furniture, etc.
Responsible for selection, purchase and delivery of equipment, furniture and supplies, within
established purchasing policies and budget constraints.

24. Integrates practice with Human Resources and ensures clerical and clinical vacancies are
' filled/covered in a timely fashion. Ensures staff coverage for vacancies.

25. Analyzes results of patient satisfaction surveys on a monthly basis and takes appropriate action to
improve satisfaction level.

26. Works in collaboration with billing department to ensure that billing is done timely and effectively.
Assists PPA Administration and provides feedback when testing new billing/registration models,
enhancements, and changes to the billing system.

27. Investigates any patient complaints, assuring a satisfactory resolution.

28. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, client/patient, budget and all company matters.

29. Interviews and selects candidates for employment within area of responsibility. Develops a
comprehensive orientation plan for new employees. In conjunction with Human Resource
Services, outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities. Initiates and/or makes
recommendations for personnel actions, including but not limited to hiring, transferring,
suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding or disciplining involving assigned personnel.
Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations, or job performance improvement
plans and recommends appropriate merit increases involving subordinate staff.

30. Ensures all staff maintains appropriate competencies (licensures & certifications) within area of
responsibility per job description.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job;

1. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force
frequently or constantly to lift; carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

2. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress.

3. Ability to work independently with frequent interruptions and respond appropriately to unexpected
situations; be even-tempered and flexible.
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4. Ability to manage and direct subordinates including the delegation of authority and responsibility.
Skill in evaluating the effectiveness of existing methods and procedures.

5. Ability to accept constructive feedback and initiate appropriate actions to correct situations.

6. Ability to establish an atmosphere of collaboration.

7. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Complete

WORK SCHEDULE:

• Generally Monday through Friday, day shift. Must be able to work additional hours as required
to respond to the demands of the position.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

•  Master's Degree preferred.

Experience:

•  Three years of relevant experience in healthcare management, billing and reimbursement or
related field preferred.

Licensure/Certifi cation:

•  None

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.

I have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the expectations

and requirements outlined in this position description. 1 understand that receipt of this position description
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is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:(P/ease Print)

Employee Signature; Date;

Disclaimer:

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classffication. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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CATHOUC MGOIOM. CeNTGB

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM
JOB DESCRIPTION

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual who

seeks or needs our care as part ofChrist's healing ministry through the Catholic Church. -

EFFECTIVE DATE: November, 2012

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: Senior Vice President, Operations / Strategic Development
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: General Counsel
REPORTS TO: President/CEO

POSITION SUMMARY:

The Senior Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development is responsible for overseeing
long-term strategic initiatives of the Hospital both internal and external to the institution. The Senior
Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development participates in all strategic development and
planning, including the management, organization and implementation of special projects assigned by
the President/Chief Executive Officer. The Senior VP Operations/ Strategic Development will also
function as the General Counsel. General Counsel is responsible for overseeing and directing all of
the legal affairs of Catholic Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. The General
Counsel is responsible for protecting the organization from legal and regulatory risk.

Under the overall direction of the President/CEO. and within established departmental policies and
procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions:

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

1  Responsible for overseeing long-term strategic initiatives both internal and external to CMC.

2. Participates in all strategic development and planning, including the management, organization
and implementation of special projects assigned by the President/CEO.

3. Responsible for overseeing Vice President of Strategy.

4  Serves as General Counsel to the CEO and the Board of Trustees on matters affecting Catholic
Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. Maintains knowledge of federal and
state laws and regulations and determines their impact on the organization s operations and
strategic initiatives. Keeps abreast of all legal and regulatory activities which may influence the
operations of the system.

5. Maintains, develops and reviews policies, procedures and practices to ensure compliance with
federal and state laws and regulations. Develops, recommends and implements changes to
existing policies, procedures and programs as necessary.
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6. Responsible for oversseing Vice President of Human Resources and the Human Resources
department as it relates to employment, compensation, benefits administrations, employee/labor
relations, policies and procedures, organization development and training and employee records.
Outlines scope of authority and job descriptions of employees under supervision; initiates
personnel actions, including but not limited to hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging,
assigning rewards and disciplinary of adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel.
Prepares and conducts formal and informal performance evaluations and recommends
appropriate merit awards for employees under supervision.

7. Responsible for overseeing the Quality department, Including the Data Center.

8. Responsible for overseeing and participation in all strategic planning initiatives, including
identifying and pursuing opportunities to grow the organization through strategic transactions.

9. Responsible for Community Relations and Governmental Affairs. Responsible for maintaining
strong relationships with community and business leaders to enhance the goodwill and reputation
of the organization though regular and active participation in community events and service on
appropriate non-profit boards.

10. Keeps the CEO informed of all legal and regulatory events, activities or issues which may have a
significant effect on hospital operations.

11. Managers and oversees all legal and regulatory actions which may be brought against the
organization, including hiring and overseeing outside legal counsel.

12. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees regular reports outlining the
organization's legal and regulatory affairs.

13. Manages and oversees all the organization's governmental affairs and relations at federal, state
and local levels. Responsible for maintaining strong relationships with governmental leaders and
elected officials for the benefit of the organization.

14. Oversees corporate compliance and risk management for the organization.

15. Maintains personal and professional training and development. Keeps abreast of changes and
maintains status in the field. Maintains professional affiliations, attends outside seminars and
conferences, and confers with peers at other hospitals and organizations.

16. Serves as management representative to the Board of Trustees on appropriate committees.
Serves as representative of the hospital and /or CEO on various affiliated boards of the
organization.

17. Participates in the functions and activities of the Catholic Medical Center Executive Management
Team including but not limited to assigned operations of the Hospital, serving on comrnittees and
task forces, preparing reports as requested, and representing administration as needed or
requested.
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18. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in
appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, and other emergency situations according to location.

19. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work
area in an orderly manner.

20. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established organizational and department
policies and procedures.

21 Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and company matters. Maintains good
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with employees,
regulatory agencies, vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations.

22. Performs similar or related duties and required or directed.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job:

1  Ability to bend the body downward and fonward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend
hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction. Ability to stand for sustained periods of time. Ability to move
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for long periods of time. Ability to raise objects from
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position.

2. Ability to pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole and or arm
as in handling.

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey
detailed questions to elicit information from others.

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount offeree frequently
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects.

5. The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and
outside.

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting,
and extensive reading.

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret
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results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work
of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives.

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Limited

WORK SCHEDULE:

•  Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend
scheduled or unscheduled requirements; periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational
programs, etc.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

•  Juris Doctorate Degree required.

Experience:

•  Significant previous experience as a senior level executive, and/or counsel for a healthcare
organization.

Standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluabng your overall job performance.
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I have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:.

Employee Signature: Date..

Manager Name:.

Manager Signature: Date:_

Disclaimer

The above information on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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QD CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM
JOB DESCRIPTION

CATHOUC MKD<CAL CENTER

ti." I u-

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity ofevery individual who

seeks or needs our care as part of Christ's healing ministry through the Catholic Church.

EFFECTIVE DATE: May, 2015

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt

POSITION TITLE: Executive Director of Surgical Services
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: Surgical Services
REPORTS TO: Senior Vice President Clinical Operations/Chief Nursing Officer

POSITION SUMMARY:

Responsible for planning, directing and managing the provision of the surgical and endoscopy services of
the Catholic Medical Center. Strategically plans, develops and maintains the start up of new and existing
services. Monitors the overall performance of the surgical services and other areas of responsibility.
Maintains relationships with physicians, staff, hospital departments, and other organizations that refer
patients to Surgical Sen/ices and other departments as assigned.

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Under the direction of the SVP/CNO and within established policies and procedures, the incumbent
performs the following functions:

1. Ensures the highest possible level of patient care and maintains the patient care focus of the service
and is an advocate and leader in maintaining and promoting customer satisfaction. Develops and
maintains positive customer relations in the community, enhancing the reputation of CMC and aiding
in its growth.

2. Establishes and maintains a strong delegated authority relationship with management. Obtains a
solid understanding of the Hospital's objectives and the confidence of executive management,
enabling the incumbent to act quickly and independently in meeting the needs of CMC.

3. Establishes the Surgical Services line and other departments as assigned as a recognized
community resource known for provision of excellent health care directly linked with Catholic Medical
Center.

4. Develops Internal systems, utilizing the resources of the hospital whenever appropriate, to support
the operational needs of the organization including finance, planning, marketing, advertising, sales,
information systems, accounting, billing, human resources and other support systems.
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5. Provides administrative leadership to the Operating Room. PACU, PAT, ASC, Sterile Processing and
Endoscopy through the management of all aspects of patient care personnel and budgets to ensure
delivery of quality patient care.

6. Monitors the efficiency of all departments to maximize utilization and makes adjustments as
necessary.

7. Maintains strong professional relationships with providers. Utilizes sophisticated communication
skills when communicating with providers and staff assuring all communication is complete, accurate
and timely.

8. Develops and monitors departmental budgets. Ensures the efficient fiscal performance of Surgical
Services and other departments as assigned.

9. Ensures that daily operations within all departments of responsibility are In compliance with all laws
and guidelines of federal, state and local accrediting agencies and regulators. Implements and
interprets all policies, procedures, rules and regulations affecting the operations of all departments of
responsibility.

10. Participates in the development of contracts and monitors the contract results.

11. Continually evaluates services and develops new services/businesses as needed.

12. Develops and fosters attitudes which will position the business for both short and long range viability
and success.

13. Implements and manages ari organizational structure which effectively delivers the required services
to the patients served and provides an appropriate structure for the organization's employees.

14. Works collaboratively with all areas of CMC and management to assure quality, diversified and price
competitive services which are supported by physicians and medical staffs.

15. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients as appropriate. Outlines scope of
authority and job responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates personnel actions.
Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and recommends merit awards
for employees under supervision.

16. Develops, implements, and maintains an effective marketing network that supports all aspects of
surgical services for CMC.

17. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional
affiliations to keep abreast of the latest trends in field of expertise.

18. Participates in committee meetings. Attends and serves on professional/civic service
organizations as the hospital representative.

19. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations.
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20. Exercises care in the use and operation of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work
area In a clean and organized manner.

21. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed.

22. Develops productive, influential relationships within the service area with physicians, HMO
management, government officials, vendors, and other individuals or representatives of companies
necessary to conduct the affairs of and meet the grow objectives of Surgical Services and other
departments as assigned.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the
essential functions of the job:

1. Ability to designate patient care delivery in a manner that is appropriate to patient's age, physical
ability and intellectual development. Must demonstrate proficiency in assessing treatment and
responses and adapting care to meet the needs of the patient population served.

2. Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; pick, pinch,
type or othenwise work primarily with fingers. Essential functions involve sitting most of the time.
Walking and standing may be required.

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include
activities in which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions to patients,
physicians, families and other employees.

4. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations
in sound.

5. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects.

6. Ability to wear safety glasses, gloves, gowns, masks and other safety equipment as necessary.

7. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures,
accounting, transcription, computer terminal work, extensive reading, and visual inspection
involving small parts/devices.

8. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload and stress.

9. Ability to work with frequent interruptions and respond appropriately to unexpected situations.

10. Ability to travel to meetings and conferences which are held off-site.
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11. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret
results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work
of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives.

OSHA RATING; Category I (Exposure to blood borne pathogens)

PHI ACCESS: Complete

WORK SCHEDULE:

• Generally Monday through Friday, days. Evenings and weekends as necessary.

QUALIFICATIONS:

Education:

•  Bachelor of Science Degree required.
•  Masters degree in Business Administration or Nursing preferred.

Experience:

•  At least five years of management experience in operations, program planning and strategic
development for surgical services.

•  Demonstrated leadership ability.

Licensure/Certifi cation:

•  None
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standard of Business Conduct

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance.

I have been given a copy of this position description, and have read and will comply with the

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description. I understand that receipt of this

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.

Employee Name:

Employee Signature:

Manager Name:.

Date:

Manager Signature:. Date:

Disclaimer:

The above inforrnatlon on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level
of work performed by employees within this classification. It is not designed to contain or be
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of
employees assigned to this job.

This job description supersedes all other versions.
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